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Corporate Information

ANCE=E

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

CHEUNG Yuk Fung (Chairman)

KUI Man Chun

XU Wensheng

LI Wenjin

XU Chang Jun

CHAN Yiu Kwong (resigned on 3 December 2007)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
TAM Chun Fai

LEUNG Wai Man, Roger

XU Sitao

COMPANY SECRETARY
CHAN Yiu Kwong

BERMUDA RESIDENT
REPRESENTATIVE

John Charles Ross Collis

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
LEGAL ADVISERS

As to Hong Kong Law
Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo

As to Bermuda Law
Conyers Dill & Pearman
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Hang Seng Bank Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation

Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Room 2416, 24th Floor

Sun Hung Kai Centre

30 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRAR IN BERMUDA
Butterfield Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN HONG KONG
Tengis Limited

Level 25

Three Pacific Place

No.1 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong
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Simplified Corporate Chart

DRI RBER

The following is a simplified corporate chart of the Group’s principal operating subsidiaries up to the
date of this report.

Hi Sun Technology
(China) Limited
Stock Code: 818

100%

Hi Sun Technology
Holding Limited
(Investment holding and

provision of IT solutions consultancy
and related products)

100% 95% (Note 2)

Beijing Hi Sun Advanced

Hangzhou PAX
Electric Technology Limited

Business Solutions Information
Technology Limited

(Financial solutions and business o,
process operations (“BPO”)) 80% (Note 1)

(Electronic Power Meters and Solutions)

Beijing Hi Sunsray
Information Technology Limited

Pax Technology Limited

(Electronic payment products and services)

(Telecommunication solutions and
Interactive Voice Response ("IVR")
value-added services)

Note 1: Pursuant to a subscription agreement (the “PAX Subscription Agreement”) dated 4 April 2007 entered into
between PAX Technology Limited (“PAX”), and Digital Investment Limited (the “PAX Subscriber”) in relation to the
subscription by the PAX Subscriber of 8,750,000 preference shares of PAX of HK$1.00 each (the “PAX Preference
Shares”) at a total subscription price of US$10 million (equivalent to approximately HK$78.1 million) (the “PAX
Subscription”). The PAX Preference Shares represent 25% of the then existing issued share capital of PAX and
20% of the issued share capital of PAX as enlarged by the PAX Subscription. The Subscriber is a third party
independent of the Group. The PAX Subscription was completed on 23 May 2007.

Note 2:  The Company currently owns 95% of the entire issued share capital of New Concept Services Limited (“New
Concept”). On 8 April 2008, the Company entered into an agreement with Universal Star Group Ltd. (the
“Vendor”), pursuant to which the Company conditionally agreed to purchase, and the Vendor agreed to sell the
5 ordinary shares of nominal value USD1.00 each in New Concept, representing 5% of the entire issued share
capital of New Concept, owned by the Vendor, for a cash consideration of approximately HK$15.5 million (the
“Acquisition”).

The Acquisition constitutes a connected transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
and is subject to reporting, announcement and approval by the independent shareholders at the special general
meeting of the Company to be convened and held to consider and if thought appropriate, to approve the
Acquisition and the transaction contemplated under the acquisition agreement by the independent shareholders
of the Company (the “SGM”). Details of the Acquisition and the SGM are disclosed in the announcement of the
Company of 10 April 2008.
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Simplified Corporate Chart
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

BRREFAREES

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an annual general
meeting (the “Annual General Meeting”) of Hi Sun
Technology (China) Limited (the “Company”) will be
held at Room 2416, 24th Floor, Sun Hung Kai Centre,
30 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong on Friday,
23 May 2008 at 10:30 a.m. for the following
purposes:

1.

To receive and adopt the audited consolidated
financial statements and the reports of the
directors of the Company (the “Directors”) and
of the auditors for the year ended 31 December
2007;

To re-elect retiring Directors and to authorise
the Board of Directors to fix their remuneration;

To re-appoint auditors and to authorise the
Board of Directors to fix their remuneration;

As special business, to consider and, if thought
fit, pass the following resolutions, with or without
modifications, as Ordinary Resolutions:

“THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (c) of this resolution,
the exercise by the Directors during the
Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of
all the powers of the Company to allot, issue
and deal with additional shares of
HK$0.0025 each in the share capital of the
Company and to make or grant offers,
agreements and options (including warrants,
bonds, notes and other securities which
carry rights to subscribe for or are
convertible into shares of the Company)
which would or might require the exercise
of such powers be and is hereby generally
and unconditionally approved;
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(b)

Notice of Annual General Meeting

the approval in paragraph (a) of this
resolution shall authorise the Directors
during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter
defined) to allot, issue and deal with
additional shares of HK$0.0025 each in the
capital of the Company and to make or
grant offers, agreements and options
(including bonds, warrants, debentures,
notes and any securities which carry rights
to subscribe for or are convertible into
shares of the Company) which would or
might require the exercise of such powers
after the end of the Relevant Period;

the aggregate nominal amount of share
capital allotted or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted (whether
pursuant to options or otherwise) by the
Directors pursuant to the approval in
paragraph (a) of this resolution, otherwise
than pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue (as
hereinafter defined); or (ii) the exercise of
any option granted under the share option
scheme of the Company or any other option
scheme or similar arrangement for the time
being adopted for the grant or issue to
officers and/or employees of the Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries of shares or
rights to acquire shares of the Company;
or (iii) any scrip dividend or similar
arrangement providing for the allotment of
shares in lieu of the whole or part of a
dividend on shares of the Company in
accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company in force from time to time; or (iv)
an issue of shares in the Company upon
the exercise of rights of subscription or

BRREFASES
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

BRREFAREES

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2007

conversion under the terms of any existing
warrants of the Company or any existing
securities of the Company which carry rights
to subscribe for or are convertible into
shares of the Company, shall not exceed
20% of the aggregate nominal amount of
the share capital of the Company in issue
as at the date of the passing of this
resolution and the said approval shall be
limited accordingly; and

for the purpose of this resolution, “Relevant
Period” means the period from the date of
the passing of this resolution until whichever
is the earliest of:

() the conclusion of the next annual
general meeting of the Company;

(i) the passing of an ordinary resolution
by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting revoking or varying the
authority given to the Directors by this
resolution.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares
of the Company or issue of option,
warrants or other securities giving the
right to subscribe for shares of the
Company, open for a period fixed by
the Directors to the holders of shares
of the Company, or any class thereof,
whose name appear on the register of
members of the Company (and, where
appropriate, to holders of other
securities of the Company entitled to
the offer) on a fixed record date in
proportion to their holdings of such
shares (or, where appropriate, such
other securities) as at that date (subject
to such exclusions or other
arrangements as the Directors may
deem necessary or expedient in relation
to fractional entitlements or having
regard to any restrictions or obligations
under the laws of, or the requirements
of any recognised regulatory body or
any stock exchange in, any territory
outside Hong Kong applicable to the
Company).”
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

BRREFAREES

5.

“THAT:

(@)

subject to paragraph (b) of this resolution,
the exercise by the Directors during the
Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of
all powers of the Company to repurchase
shares of HK$0.0025 each in the capital of
the Company on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
or on any other stock exchange on which
the shares of the Company may be listed
and recognised by The Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong
(“Securities and Futures Commission”) and
the Stock Exchange for such purpose,
subject to and in accordance with the rules
and regulations of the Securities and
Futures Commission, the Stock Exchange
or of any other stock exchange as amended
from time to time and all applicable laws in
this regard, be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved,;

the aggregate nominal amount of shares of
the Company authorised to be repurchased
by the Company pursuant to the approval
in paragraph (a) of this resolution during
the Relevant Period shall not exceed 10%
of the aggregate nominal amount of the
issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of the passing of this resolution,
and the said approval shall be limited
accordingly; and

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2007
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

BRREFASES

(c) for the purpose of this resolution, “Relevant
Period” means the period from the date of
the passing of this resolution until whichever
is the earliest of:

() the conclusion of the next annual
general meeting of the Company; and

(i) the passing of an ordinary resolution
by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting revoking or varying the
authority given to the Directors by this
resolution.”

“THAT subject to the passing of Resolutions
No.4 and No.5 set out in this notice convening
this meeting, the general mandate granted to
the Directors to allot, issue and deal with
additional shares pursuant to Resolution No.4
set out in the notice convening this meeting be
and is hereby extended by the addition thereto
of an amount representing the aggregate
nominal amount of shares in the capital of the
Company repurchased by the Company under
the authority granted pursuant to Resolution
No.5 set out in the notice convening this
meeting, provided that such amount of shares
so repurchased shall not exceed 10% of the
aggregate nominal amount of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of passing
this resolution.”

By Order of the Board
Li Wenjin
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 April 2008
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

BRREFAREES

Notes:

(1)

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting
convened by this notice is entitled to appoint one or more
proxies to attend and vote in his stead. A proxy need not
be a member of the Company.

A form of proxy for use at the meeting is enclosed.

Completion and delivery of the form of proxy will not
preclude a member from attending and voting in person
at the meeting or any adjourned meeting if the member
so desires.

To be valid, a form of proxy must be duly completed and
signed in accordance with the instructions printed thereon
and lodged, together with the power of attorney or other
authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarilly
certified copy of that power or authority, at the principal
place of the business of the Company at Room 2416,
24th Floor, Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the
time appointed for holding the meeting or any adjourned
meeting (as the case may be).

With regard to resolution no.2 in this notice, the Board of
Directors proposes that the retiring Directors, namely, Mr.
Cheung Yuk Fung, Mr Tam Chun Fai and Mr. Leung Wai
Man, Roger be re-elected as Directors. The biographies
of these Directors are also set out in Appendix Il to the
circular of the Company to be despatched to the
shareholders accompanying with this annual report.

Mt

(1)

2)
(3)

(4)

(5)
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Chairman’s Statement

ER|E

Dear Shareholders,

The Group reported profit of HK$192.52 million for
the year ended 31 December 2007 as compared to
HK$133.60 million in 2006. The increase in the profit
for the year was mainly contributed by strong growth
in our recurring profits from electronic payment
products and services and telecommunication
solutions and information technology operation value-
added services.

In year 2007, we continued to maintain an optimal
growth of our existing business sectors while seeking
new investment opportunities to strengthen the
Group’s growth momentum. It was a challenging year
for us which was further exemplified by the
development of the business process operations
(“BPO”) business under our financial solutions arm
and the acquisition of Hualong Group, in the
electronic power meters and solutions industry. We
believe the resulting new income streams will
enhance the Group’s overall profitability and help to
deliver the best values to our shareholders over the
long term.

In May 2007, we attracted new investments of
US$10 million (approximately HK$78 million) from
institutional investors subscribing approximately 20%
interests in PAX, providing additional working capital
for PAX’s business operation and positive exploration
of the international markets.
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Chairman’s Statement

ER|E

The financial solution segment incurred a segmental
loss of HK$8.11 million which was attributable to
certain delays in certain projects and organisation
restructure. With a vision to strive for more stable,
sustainable and recurring income streams, we have
refocused our strategies and implemented certain
measures to leverage our expertise into BPO and
out-sourcing services to financial institutions. By the
end of 2007, our ATM network consisted of 700
ATMs located in 5 major cities in China, providing
convenient and timely access to millions of local
residents.

Subsequent to the acquisition of 95% interest of
Hualong Group in July 2007, we spent approximately
six months in restructuring and reorganisation.
Hualong Group continued to uphold its dominant
position in the domestic market, and formed strategic
partnership with international leader aiming at the
export markets.

Looking ahead, we are confident of the underlying
competencies of our core and developing businesses
and of the economies in which they operate. China,
with its continuously growing trade across the region
and gradually easing trade restrictions, is poised to
become the largest consumption market in the world.
The Group has established its foothold in the
telecommunication, financial and energy sectors,
which are expected to experience the most robust
growth in the coming years. We are poised to
capitalize on the business opportunities in these fast-
growing industries, and is backed by a seasoned
and dedicated management team. We are confident
that our model to develop a high value-added
business operation will be a great success.
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Chairman’s Statement

ER|E

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank the
management and employees for their concerted
efforts and contributions to the Group. Particularly, |
would like to extend my sincerest appreciation to Mr
Chan Yiu Kwong, who has resigned as executive
director and retained his position as the Company
Secretary of the Company during the year for his
dedication and commitment throughout these years.

Also, | take this opportunity to express my utmost
gratitude to our customers, bankers, suppliers,
business associates and most valued shareholders
for their continuous trust and support to the Group.

Cheng Yuk Fung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 April 2008
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Directors and Senior Management

ESREEEEAER

As at 18 April 2008, the date of the Report of the
Directors, the biographical details of the directors
and senior management of the Company are as
follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

CHEUNG YUK FUNG Chairman

Mr. Cheung, aged 62, has been the Chairman and
Director of the Company since November 2001. He
graduated from the Faculty of Radio Electronics at
Peking University in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) and worked as a professor at Peking
University thereafter. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Cheung was a chairman of a company listed in the
PRC and a director of a company listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong
Kong Stock Exchange”) and has working experience
in international trade, finance, asset management
and strategic planning. Mr. Cheung was honoured
many awards, including being selected as the young
entrepreneur with outstanding contribution to China,
and won the first prize of national golden award for
enterprise initiators in the 4th National Technology
Industrialist Award and many other awards.

KUl MAN CHUN

Mr. Kui, aged 42, has been the Director of the
Company since June 2001. He graduated from
Peking University in the PRC with a master’s degree
in international relations and has over 15 years of
experience in the information technology industry and
investment activities. Mr. Kui is also the chairman
and chief executive officer of Hi Sun Limited (“HSL”),
the Company’s controlling shareholder. Prior to
joining HSL in 2000, Mr. Kui was the president of an
enterprise in the PRC.
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XU WENSHENG

Mr. Xu, aged 39, has been the Director of the
Company since February 2003. He graduated from
the Dalian University of Technology with a bachelor’s
degree in computer science and engineering. Mr. Xu
is also the director of HSL. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Xu was the president of a system
integration company and has an extensive experience
in computer systems integration of the financial
industry.

LI WENJIN

Mr. Li, aged 44, has been the Director of the
Company since June 2001. He graduated from
Peking University in the PRC with a master’s degree
in law. He has over 15 years of experience in
investment and administrative affairs. Mr. Li is also
the managing director of HSL. Prior to joining HSL
in 1999, he had worked for several companies in
the PRC and Hong Kong.

XU CHANG JUN

Mr. Xu, aged 41, has been the Director of the
Company since July 2001. He graduated from Peking
University in the PRC with a master’s degree in
international economics. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Xu had worked for several companies
in the PRC and Hong Kong. He has over 15 years
of experience in corporate management of enterprise
in Hong Kong and the PRC.
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Independent Non-executive Directors
TAM CHUN FAI

Mr. Tam, aged 46, has been an independent non-
executive Director of the Company since May 2004.
He graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a bachelor of arts degree in
accountancy. Mr. Tam is a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and is a
member of Chartered Financial Analyst and has over
20 years’ experience in auditing, corporate advisory
services as well as financial management and
compliance work. Mr. Tam is currently the financial
controller and company secretary of Beijing
Enterprises Holdings Limited, a major red chip
company listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

LEUNG WAI MAN, ROGER

Mr. Leung, aged 51, has been an independent non-
executive Director since September 2004. He
graduated with a Bachelor’s degree in Law and a
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from The University
of Hong Kong. He also graduated with a bachelor’s
degree in Law from the University of Western Ontario,
Canada. Mr. Leung has been a practicing solicitor in
Hong Kong since 1984 and is now a partner of the
law firm, Messrs Foo, Leung & Yeung. He is also
admitted as a solicitor in England and Wales and as
a barrister, solicitor and notary public in Ontario,
Canada. Mr. Leung has extensive working experience
in law both in Hong Kong and in Canada. He served
as a member of the Inland Revenue Board of Review
from 1997 to 2005 and is appointed as a China-
appointed Attesting Officer since January 2003. Mr.
Leung is currently an independent non-executive
director of a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.
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XU SITAO

Mr Xu, aged 44, has been an independent non-
executive Director of the Company since July 2001.
He graduated from Peking University in the PRC
with a bachelor of arts degree in economics and
from the University of Connecticut with a master of
arts degree in economics. He also holds a master of
science degree in Finance from Boston College. Mr.
Xu is currently the Chief Representative China of the
Economist Group and a director of Advisory Services
(China) of Economist Intelligence Unit. Prior to the
Economist Group, he was a senior economist at
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia)
Limited in Hong Kong from May 2003 to May 2004
and was the Chief Asian Economist of Societe
Generale from September 2000 to November 2002.
Between 1996 and 2000, he was a Regional Treasury
Economist at Standard Chartered Bank. Prior to that,
he was an Emerging Asia Economist of Standard &
Poor’s MMS International in Singapore.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

As at 18 April 2008, the date of the Report of the
Directors, Messrs Li Xiaoguang, Yao Cheng Chang,
Nie Guoming, Jiang Hongchun and Miss Hui Lok
Yan were the Company’s senior management.
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LI XIAOGUANG

Mr. Li, aged 45, has been the Chief Executive Officer
of Beijing Hi Sunsray Information Technology Limited
since September 2003. He graduated from Peking
University in the PRC master’s degree in Computer
Science. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Li was a
member of a company’s senior management in
Beijing. He has over 20 years of experience in
corporate management.

YAO CHENG CHANG

Mr. Yao, aged 44, has been the Chief Executive
Officer of Beijing Hi Sun Advanced Business
Solutions Information Technology Limited since
August 2007. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Yao
was the vice president of a multi-national company.
He has over 15 years experience in financial IT
services.

NIE GUOMING

Mr. Nie, aged 46, has been the President of Pax
Technology Limited since July 2001. He graduated
from Tsinghua University with degree in Electronic
Engineering and from Southeast University in PRC
with a master’s degree in Electronic Engineering. He
has over 12 years payment industry experience.

JIANG HONGCHUN
Mr. Jiang, aged 38, is the Chief Executive Officer of
Hangzhou Pax Electronic Technology Limited. He
graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong University. He
has over 15 years of experience in banking solutions
and meter solutions.

HUI LOK YAN

Miss. Hui, aged 29, has been the Group Deputy
Financial Controller of the Company since March
2007. She graduated from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration. Miss. Hui is currently a certified public
accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Prior to joining the Company,
She was a manager of an international public
accountancy Firm.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERBME

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate
Governance Report in the Group’s annual report for
the year ended 31 December 2007.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of
its Board of Directors (“Board”) in ensuring effective
leadership and control of the Company and
transparency and accountability of all operations.

The Company recognises the importance of good
corporate governance to the Company’s healthy
growth and has devoted considerable efforts to
identifying and formulating corporate governance
practices appropriate to the Company’s needs.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are
based on the principles (“Principles”), code provisions
(“Code Provisions”) as set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (“CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (“Listing
Rules”).

The Company has complied with most of the Code
Provisions save for certain deviations from the Code
Provisions in respect of Code Provisions A.2.1, A.4.1
and E.1.2, details of which will be explained below.

The Company periodically reviews its organisational
structure to ensure that operations are conducted in
accordance with the standards of the CG Code.
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The key corporate governance principles and
practices of the Company are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business
is vested in the Board, which assumes the
responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company by directing
and supervising its affairs. All directors should take
decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters
of the Company which include the approval and
monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those
may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the
Company Secretary, with a view to ensuring that
Board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed.

Each director is normally able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at
the Company’s expense, upon making request to
the Board.
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The day-to-day management, administration and
operation of the Company are delegated to the senior
management. The delegated functions and work
tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the abovementioned
officers.

The Board has the full support of the senior
management to discharge its responsibilities.

Composition

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of
skills and experience appropriate to the requirements
of the business of the Company and to the exercising
of independent judgement.

The Board currently comprises eight members,
consisting of five executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors.

The Board of the Company comprises the following
directors:

Executive directors:

Cheung Yuk Fung (Chairman)
Kui Man Chun

Xu Wensheng

Li Wenjin

Xu Chang Jun

Independent non-executive directors:

Tam Chun Fai (Chairman of Audit Committee)
Leung Wai Man, Roger (Member of Audit Committee)
Xu Sitao (Member of Audit Committee)
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The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in
all corporate communications issued by the
Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to
time.

None of the directors of the Company had any
relationship among the members of the Board of
the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Board
at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive directors with at least
one independent non-executive director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual
confirmation from each independent non-executive
director of his independence pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all independent non-executive directors to
be independent in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors bring a
wide range of business and financial expertise,
experiences and independent judgement to the
Board. By taking the lead in managing issues
involving potential conflict of interests and serving
on Board committees, all independent non-executive
directors make various contributions to the effective
direction of the Company.
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Appointment and Succession Planning
of Directors

The Company has established formal, considered
and transparent procedures for the appointment and
succession planning of directors.

Each of the non-executive director of the Company
is subject to retirement by rotation once every three
years.

Deviation from Code Provision A.4.1 (& reasons):
Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election.

Although the independent non-executive directors
are not appointed for a specific term, all directors of
the Company are subject to retirement by rotation
once every three years and any new director
appointed to fill a causal vacancy shall submit
himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the
first general meeting after appointment pursuant to
the Company’s Bye-laws. Up to the date of this
report, the Company has entered into services
agreement with all the independent non-executive
directors respectively providing for specific term.

Training for Directors

Each newly appointed director receives induction on
the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to
ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company.
Besides, the Company shall consider to engage
external legal and other professional advisors for
providing professional development and training
programmes to directors on an occasional basis.
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Board Meetings

Regular Board meetings were held four times during
the year for reviewing and approving the financial
and operating performance, and considering and
approving the overall strategies and policies of the
Company.

Number of Meetings and Directors’
Attendance

The Board met four times during the year ended 31
December 2007 for approving the final results for
the year ended 31 December 2006, interim results
for the period ended 30 June 2007 and reviewing
the quarterly results. In addition, the Board held
twenty six meetings for formulating policies and
implementing laid-down policies during the year
ended 31 December 2007.
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The individual attendance record of each director at
the meetings of the Board and Audit Committee
during the year ended 31 December 2007 is set out

below:

SEFRBE-TTLE+-A=+—H
N E SRR EREEC O
ZEBIRERIWT

Attenance/Number of meetings

EREEBITREY
Audit
Committee Regular

Meetings Meetings Others

Name of Directors EElR EREEE ERE3 H iy

Cheung Yuk Fung ®E g N/A 4/4 Note 2

N iE A ffat2

Kui Man Chun REE N/A 4/4 12/26
N iE A

Xu Wensheng R A& N/A 4/4 11/26
N iE A

Li Wenjin EYE N/A 4/4 25/26
iE A

Chan Yiu Kwong (Note 1) PRIE S (et 1) N/A 4/4 22/26
N iE A

Xu Chang Jun wmEE N/A 4/4 15/26
N iE A

Tam Chun Fai B i 2/2 4/4 Note 2

fiat2

Leung Wai Man, Roger 2ER 2/2 4/4 Note 2

fiat2

Xu Sitao R 2/2 4/4 Note 2

fiat2

Notes: ftat
1. Mr. Chan Yiu Kwong has resigned as executive director 1. BREBXEE TELF+ A =-HEENT
on 3 December 2007. BF o

2. The Directors have not attended these meetings, the
purpose of which were mainly to deal with implementation
of policies and administrative routine.
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Practices and Conduct of Meetings
Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each
meeting are normally made available to directors in
advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all
directors at least 14 days before the meetings. For
other Board and committee meetings, reasonable
notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are sent to all directors at
least 3 days before each Board meeting or committee
meeting to keep the directors apprised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company
and to enable them to make informed decisions.
The Board and each director also have separate
and independent access to the senior management
whenever necessary.

The Qualified Accountant and Company Secretary
attend all regular Board meetings and when
necessary, other Board and committee meetings to
advise on business developments, financial and
accounting matters, statutory compliance, corporate
governance and other major aspects of the
Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and
keep minutes of all Board meetings and committee
meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated to
directors for comment within a reasonable time after
each meeting and the final version is open for
directors’ inspection.
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According to current Board practice, any material
transaction, which involves a conflict of interests for
a substantial shareholder or a director, will be
considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meeting. The Company’s bye-laws
also contain provisions requiring directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at
meetings for approving transactions in which such
directors or any of their associates have a material
interest.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Deviation from Code Provision A.2.1 (& reason):
Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same
individual.

Mr. Cheung Yuk Fung is the Chairman and four of
the other executive directors who share the role of
the Chief Executive Officer. The Company has
intention to appoint a Chief Executive Officer.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible
for the effective functioning of the Board in
accordance with good corporate governance
practice. With the support of the Company Secretary
and the senior management, the Chairman is also
responsible for ensuring that the directors receive
adequate, complete and reliable information in a
timely manner and appropriate briefing on issues
arising at Board meetings, and that all key and
appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a
timely manner.
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The role of the Chief Executive Officer focuses on
implementing objectives, policies and strategies
approved and delegated by the Board. He/She is in
charge of the Company’s day-to-day management
and operations. The Chief Executive Officer is also
responsible for developing strategic plans and
formulating the organisational structure, control
systems and internal procedures and processes for
the Board’s approval.

The Board considers that due to the scale of
operations of the Group and the daily operations of
the Group’s business are delegated to the senior
management and department heads, the
appointment of a Chief Executive Officer is not
necessary.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely,
the Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Audit Committee, for overseeing particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Board committees are posted on
the Company’s website and are available to
shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board
committees are independent non-executive directors
and the list of the chairman and members of each
Board committee as at the date of this report is set
out below:

Audit Committee
Tam Chun Fai (Chairman)
Leung Wai Man, Roger
Xu Sitao
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Nomination Committee

Leung Wai Man, Roger (Chairman)

Tam Chun Fai

Li Wenjin (appointed on 3 December 2007)

Chan Yiu Kwong (resigned on 3 December 2007)

Remuneration Committee
Tam Chun Fai (Chairman)

Leung Wai Man, Roger

Li Wenijin

The Board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expenses.

Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing the structure, size and composition
of the Board, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for nomination and appointment of
directors, making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and succession planning of
directors, and assessment of the independence of
the independent non-executive directors.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process
of selecting and recommending candidates for
directorships by making reference to the balance of
expertise, skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of such
individuals, the requirements of the business of the
Group and other relevant statutory requirements and
regulations. An external recruitment agency may be
engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection
process when necessary.
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In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws 87(1)
and 87(2), Mr. Cheung Yuk Fung, executive directors
of the Company, Mr. Tam Chun Fai and Mr. Leung
Wai Man, Roger, independent non-executive directors
of the Company, shall retire by rotation and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the 2008
annual general meeting.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the
directors standing for re-election at the 2008 annual
general meeting of the Company.

The Company’s circular dated 28 April 2008 contains
detailed information of the directors standing for re-
election.

Remuneration Committee

The primary objectives of the Remuneration
Committee include making recommendations on and
approving the remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages of the directors and the
senior management. The Remuneration Committee
is also responsible for establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no director or any of
his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her
own remuneration, which remuneration will be
determined by reference to the performance of the
individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions.

BERRE 2 REIMRIES7(1)%87(2)f -
RAARRMITEBRETBLEE - AARBIL
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The Remuneration Committee normally meets for
reviewing the remuneration policy and structure and
determination of the annual remuneration packages
of the directors and the senior management and
other related matters. The Human Resources
Department is responsible for collection and
administration of the human resources data and
making recommendations to the Remuneration
Committee for consideration. The Remuneration
Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or the
Board of the Company about these
recommendations on remuneration policy and
structure and remuneration packages.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors (including one independent
non-executive director who possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise). None of
the members of the Audit Committee is a former
partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the
following:

(@) To review the financial statements and reports
and consider any significant or unusual items
raised by the qualified accountant or external
auditors before submission to the Board.

(b) To review the relationship with the external
auditors by reference to the work performed by
the external auditors, their fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of external auditors.
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(c) To review the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Company’s financial reporting system,
internal control system and risk management
system and associated procedures.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2007 to review the financial
results and reports, financial reporting and
compliance procedures, internal control system and
risk management review and processes and the re-
appointment of the external auditors.

There is no material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

There is no different view taken by the Audit
Committee from the Board regarding the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of external
auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31
December 2007 has been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry had been made to all the directors
and the directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2007.

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2007

© FHARRPBREHIE - AEFEE

EZZEERBE_TTELF T A=+
—HAIEFEBRITMAEHE  BHUBE
mLRHRE MEBRSLTERRF  ARE
2 K R B B I B EE AR A KR B BE S
Bz BED

TEEEXRSGHARRBFEEELE 2
BENEEERREZEMHHIBR -

ERZB @M LB EE - T - B
TRRELMBERHNEFEEE -

AAABE-FTLF+-A=+-AL
FEEMOMHAEREAREN -

EHR 5 HNERES R
AR B EIRH £ R B 10FT 8 L B

TAESETEFRXZNERESTR ([F%E
TR o

ENEREFFLABSNE EFCR
RRERBE-TELET-A=1—A
LEE-EFARETA



e <

[/

The Company has also established written guidelines
with exact terms as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules for securities transactions by employees
who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
price-sensitive information of the Company.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment of annual and
interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and
other disclosures required under the Listing Rules
and other regulatory requirements.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2007.

The statement of the external auditors of the
Company about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements is set out in the “Auditors’
Report” on page 74 to 77.

INTERNAL CONTROL

For the internal control system of the Company, the
Board has developed the Group’s systems of internal
control and risk assessment and management. The
Board has overall responsibility for reviewing and
maintaining an adequate and effective internal control
system to safeguard the interests of the shareholders
and the assets of the Group. During the year, the
Board has conducted reviews of the internal control
system and considered the internal control system
of the Group has been implemented effectively.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The external auditors have rendered certain non-
audit services to the Company for the year ended
31 December 2007 amounted to approximately of
HK$2.65 million. The remuneration paid to the
external auditor of the Company in respect of audit
services for the year ended 31 December 2007
amounted to approximately of HK$3.4 million.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for
demanding a poll on resolutions at shareholders’
meetings are contained in the Company'’s bye-laws.
Details of such rights to demand a poll and the poll
procedures are included in all circulars to
shareholders and will be explained during the
proceedings of meetings.

Poll results will be published in newspapers on the
business day following the shareholders’ meeting and
posted on the website of the Stock Exchange.

Deviation from Code Provision E. 1.2 (& reason):
Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the Chairman
of the Board should attend the annual general
meeting. The Chairman did not attend the annual
general meeting held on 30 May 2007, however, Mr.
Li Wenijin, as an executive director of the Company,
took the chair pursuant to the bye-laws of the
Company.
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The Board recognises that the general meetings of
the Company provide a forum for communication
between the shareholders and the Board. The
Chairman of the Board, or at his absence, an
executive director of the Company, as well as
chairmen of the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, or
in their absence, other members of the respective
committees, and where applicable, the independent
Board committee, will be available to answer
guestions at future shareholders’ meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’
meetings on each substantial issue, including the
election of individual directors.

The Company continues to enhance communications
and relationships with its investors. Designated senior
management maintains regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them
abreast of the Company’s developments. Enquiries
from investors are dealt with in an informative and
timely manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company
maintains a website at www.hisun.com.hk, where
extensive information and updates on the Company’s
business developments and operations, financial
information, corporate governance practices and
other information are posted.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Yuk Fung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 April 2008
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

The Directors submit their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND
GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the Group during
the year were sales of information technology
products, provision of business process operation
services, provision of information system consultancy
and integration services, and information technology
operation value-added services.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year
by business and geographical segments is set out
in note 5 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2007 are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 78.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend (2006: Nil).

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in note 25 to
the financial statements.
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DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group
during the year amounted to HK$21,400 (2006:
HK$490,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 15 to
the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE
OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share
capital and share options are set out in note 24 to
the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2007, the Company had other
reserves of HK$133,244,000 available for distribution
as calculated under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended) (2006: HK$108,089,000).
However, the Company’s share premium account, in
the amount of HK$776,034,000 (2006:
HK$269,586,000) may be distributed in the form of
fully paid bonus shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s bye-laws and there was no restriction
against such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years
is set out on page 204.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION
OF SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares
during the year. Neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the
Company’s shares during the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:

CHEUNG Yuk Fung

KUI Man Chun

XU Wensheng

LI Wenjin

XU Chang Jun

CHAN Yiu Kwong (resigned on 3 December 2007)

Independent non-executive Directors:
TAM Chun Fai

LEUNG Wai Man, Roger

XU Sitao

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws 87(1)
and 87(2), one-third of the Directors of the Company
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the annual general meeting of the Company.

Messrs. Cheung Yuk Fung, Tam Chun Fai and Leung
Wai Man, Roger will retire and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
As at the date of this report, each of Mr. KUl Man
Chun, Mr. LI Wenjin, Mr. XU Wensheng and Mr. XU
Chang Jun has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of one year from 1 January
2004 and shall continue thereafter unless and until
terminated by either the Company or the Directors
giving to the other not less than a notice of three
months. Save as disclosed herein, none of the
Directors had any existing or proposed service
contracts with the Company or any member of the
Group (excluding contracts expiring or determinable
within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company, its fellow
subsidiaries or its holding company was a party and
in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior
management are set out on pages 16 to 20.

Report of the Directors

EEEHE

EECRBEN

RABFEEH  REFLLE FXER
£ BRXERERFEELEESFBER
RAFIMNRBEX  EFHE -_ZTTMF—
A—BEF /RE—F URXRHREEAR
M BRIERBEEARRRERME )T #E L
APV =EAZBAMEIE - BRARBER
BEN SEFHEEARR KN AKET
B B 2 RIRT B S AT AR RIS & 4
BEABER—FRERXAELRRBLE
mBARE CEERERIN 2RBFEH -

EENEHNZER

AR HERMB A RS EZERA R
BERNAFERERLFATAKEGEE
AARRIZEZNETERXEEHREBEM
EA#ED HEXAKBEGAEHEIEAA
#)

EEREREBABZBEFE

EXLRREBABZEEABEHREHEN
F16H E20H -

EEMNE(FE)ERLTE 22 EEER 41




42

Report of the Directors

EEEHE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2007, the interests and short
positions of each Director and chief executive in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO"), as recorded in the register maintained by
the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as
notified to the Company were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each in the
Company

R_ZEE+F+_A=+-—"H SEFK
THRREN ARG REREEZE (E&RLE
HEREBERG (TEHFRBEEG])) 2K
- HEROEESFTHEE  ELRALRRD
AIRIEE A5 L EEHEI2EFE 2 ERL
MEHERR A 2EREABENT ¢

ARBEREE000258 T 2 HBER

Number of shares held

FEROGHE

Personal Corporate
interest interest Total
Name of Director EENSE BARER NE) R mE
Kui Man Chun RER 25,200,000 757,083,636 782,283,636

(note (i) (B4 &£ (i)
Xu Wensheng R A& 18,696,000 - 18,696,000
Li Wenjin EXE 26,400,000 - 26,400,000
Xu Changjun REE 22,200,000 - 22,200,000
Xu Sitao ArEE 600,000 - 600,000
Chan Yiu Kwong PR 12 8,548,000 - 8,548,000
(note (ii)) (&% (ii))

Note: Hfat -

()  These shares are held by Kui Man Chun through Hi Sun
Limited, a company which Kui Man Chun holds a 99.16%
interest, and Rich Global Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Hi Sun Limited.

(i) ~ Mr. Chan Yiu Kwong has resigned as Director of the
Company on 3 December 2007.

() ZEERMHABEEEFBH Sun Limited CRB &
FH99.16% Mz 2 A &) & Hi Sun Limited 2 &
& ff B A FIRich Global Limited#$ & ©

(i) MREBAEER_ZZLFT+_AZHAEBER
NAESR -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(a) The Company

i\

The Company operates a share option scheme
(the “Scheme”) for the purpose of attracting,
retaining and motivating talented employees in
order to strive for future developments and
expansion of the Group. Eligible participants of
the Scheme include the Group’s full-time
employees, and executive and non-executive
Directors. The Scheme became effective on 29
November 2001 and unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain valid and effective for a
period of 10 years from that date.

The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted shall not (together with
all the other Schemes, if any) exceed 10% of
the total issued capital of the Company as at
date of approval of the Scheme unless the
Company obtains a fresh approval from
shareholders to renew the 10% limit.

The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the
Scheme, together with any unexercised share
options granted under the Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company in
issue, may not exceed 30% of the relevant class
of securities of the Company in issue at any
time. On 18 March 2004, 33,000,000 share
options were granted to certain directors and
employees at an exercise price of HK$0.374
per share (the average closing price of the
shares as quoted in the daily quotations sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited for the five business days immediately
preceding 18 March 2004) with an expiry date
of 17 March 2014.
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Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on
17 August 2005, a refreshment of the limit on
grant of options under the Scheme was
approved by the shareholders. Upon refreshing
the 10% limit on grant of options under the
Scheme, 33,305,403 shares may be issued
pursuant to the grant of further options under
the Scheme.

On 26 September 2005, 33,300,000 share
options were granted to certain directors and
employees at an exercise price of HK$0.768
per share (the average closing price of the
shares as quoted in the daily quotations sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited for the five business days immediately
preceding 26 September 2005) with an expiry
date of 25 September 2015.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on
28 June 2006, each of the existing issued and
unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in
the share capital of the Company was
subdivided into four ordinary shares of
HK$0.0025 each (the “Share Subdivision”),
which was approved by the shareholders of the
Company and became effective on 29 June
2006.
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The Share Subdivision has led to an adjustment
to the exercise prices of the outstanding options
and the number of shares to be issued by the
Company upon exercise of the outstanding
options. For share options with exercise period
from 18 March 2004 to 17 March 2014, the
number of shares to be issued by the Company
upon full exercise of such outstanding options
immediately before the Share Subdivision has
been increased from 23,000,000 shares to
92,000,000 shares and the exercise price has
been adjusted from HK$0.374 to HK$0.0935
per share. For share options with exercise period
from 26 September 2005 to 25 September
2015, the number of shares to be issued by the
Company upon full exercise of such options
immediately before the Share Subdivision has
been increased from 33,300,000 shares to
133,200,000 shares and the exercise price has
been adjusted from HK$0.768 to HK$0.192 per
Share.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on
11 December 2006, a refreshment of the limit
on grant of options under the Scheme was
approved by the shareholders. Upon the
refreshment of the 10% limit on grant of options
under the Scheme, an additional 43,000,000
shares may be issued pursuant to the grant of
further options under the Scheme.

On 2 January 2007, 43,000,000 share options
were granted to certain employees at an exercise
price of HK$2 per share (the average closing
price of the shares as quoted in the daily
quotations sheets issued by Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited for the five business days
immediately preceding 2 January 2007) with an
expiry date of 1 January 2010.
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Share options granted to a Director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive Directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
Director of the Company or to any of their
associates, in excess of 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time or with an
aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 21 days from the date of the
offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is
determinable by the Directors, and commences
either immediately or after a certain vesting
period and ends on a date which is not later
than 10 years from the date of the offer of the
share options or the expiry date of the Scheme,
if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is
determinable by the Directors, but may not be
less than the higher of (i) the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of the offer of the share options; (ii)
the average Hong Kong Stock Exchange closing
price of the Company’s shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer;
and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares.
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Report of the Directors

As at 31 December 2007, the particulars of the RZZEZTAFF_A=1T—0 RE
options granted to each of the Directors and ZET AR TRESERARNRIEE ZE
employees of the Company under the Scheme IRIEFFIBWT
are as follows:
Movements in the Share Options: FHEREZE
Number of
options held at
Exercise price Number of 31 December
after Share  options held at 2007
Subdivision 1 January 2007 Granted  Exercised Lapsed R-FBLE
HS  R=BE2tE during during duing t=A=1-H
Name Date of grant Re2%k  -B-BAk the year the year the year it
e RuAH &Z?Egj% ZEREZA $W5¥§E ERETE EFREAN BREE
BT
Directors
gz
Mr. Kui Man Chun 18 March 2004* 0.0935 12,000,000 - (12,000,000) - -
REBLE “ZEME=A+NR"
26 September 2005 0.192 13,200,000 - (13,200,000) - -
ZERRENAZTAE"
Mr. Xu Wensheng 26 September 2005 0.192 13,200,000 - (13,200,000) - -
BXERE “ERRENACTAE”
Mr. Li Wenjin 26 September 2005 0.192 13,200,000 - (13,200,000) - -
ENERE “ETRENACTRE"
Mr. Xu Chang Jun 26 September 2005** 0.192 13,200,000 - (13,200,000) - -
REELE “ETRENACTRET
Mr. Chan Yiu Kwong 26 September 2005™* 0.192 4,000,000 - (4,000,000) - -
RELEE “EERENACTRE”
éNo\te 1)
GER)
68,800,000 - (68,800,000 - -
Employees
E&
(In aggregate) 18 March 2004* 0.0935 13,200,000 - (13,200,000) - -
5 R L
2 January 2007 *** 2.00 - 43,000,000 (1,210,000) (332,000) 41,458,000
“EEtE-AzH ™
82,000,000 43,000,000 (83,210,000) (332,000) 41,458,000
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The exercisable period of the above share options is
from 18 March 2004 to 17 March 2014 (both dates
inclusive).

**  The option period commences on 26 September
2005 and expires 10 years thereafter. Options
granted are vested as follows:

On 26 September 2005
On 26 September 2006

Up to 50%
Up to 100%

***  The exercisable period of the above share options is
from 2 January 2007 to 1 January 2010 (both dates
inclusive).

Note 1.  On 3 December 2007, Mr. Chan has resigned

as Executive Director of the Company.

During the year, the weighted average closing
price immediately before the dates on which
the options were exercised was HK$2.38 per
share.

As at the date of this report, the Company has
41,458,000 share options outstanding.

(b) Employee incentive scheme of a

subsidiary

On 4 April 2005, the Company approved its
wholly-owned subsidiary, Turbo Speed
Technology Limited (“Turbo Speed”), to adopt
an employee incentive scheme (the “Employee
Incentive Scheme”) to motivate the employees

(b)

* O LAEEEZITEME—_TTNF=At+
NBZ-_Z—MOF=A++B (BEER
MmHE) -

o BRESEA _TTRAFAA-_TRERA
% 10K - EREBRERERR
W

“EERFAA-1+NH
—EERFNLA=-+H

= %50%
=% 100%

v PR ITERB ST EF A
BE-_Z-TF5-A—RH(BFEEEMA)

Krax1: R-TETLFT-_A=B  RELH
ERRBHITESE -

FA - BEBRETS BB 2N
FHWHEAEFR2.38F T °

RARIRE HE © ARAFH 41,458,000
D EERR R M RTTIE ©

—ZXHBARZEERRBE

RZEZERFMNAMA » ARQEHE
H2>&MWE QA Turbo Speed
Technology Limited ([Turbo Speed))
FwEBEREIE ([EEREF
Zl]1) » LAZ B Turbo Speed M E [ B

of Turbo Speed and its subsidiary (the “Turbo &) ([Turbo Speed&E ) 2B E -
Speed Group”). Eligible participants of the EERBHEZEGERSEERE
Employee Incentive Scheme include the full-time Turbo Speedsk EE i B ARl 2 2
employees of Turbo Speed or any of its BfE 8 - BFETurbo Speeddk H (£ 1
subsidiary, including any directors of Turbo TBRAFMNERNES (BTEEAR
Speed or any of its subsidiary (but excluding RAEBESFZEMAL) » HE LiisHE

any person who is a Director of the Company)
provided always that such term shall exclude
any person who has tendered his resignation or
who at the relevant time is working out his period
of notice pursuant to his employment contract
or otherwise. The Scheme became effective from
4 April 2005 to 31 December 2008, unless
terminated by resolution of a remuneration
committee formed by the Board to administer
the Employee Incentive Scheme (the
“Committee”).
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The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted shall not exceed
4,682,275 ordinary shares of Turbo Speed
(“Turbo Speed Shares”), representing
approximately 13.0% of the existing issued share
capital of Turbo Speed, currently held by a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Share
options may be offered to any employee
determined by the Committee in its absolute
discretion from time to time by reference to: (i)
the performance of that Employee; and (i) the
financial performance of the Turbo Speed Group
and the extent to which the Turbo Speed Group
has achieved its intended business plans. The
maximum number of the Turbo Speed Shares
which may be offered to an employee who is
also a director of companies within the Turbo
Speed Group in any 12-month period may not
exceed 1% of the entire issued share capital of
Turbo Speed.

On 8 July 2005, 1,425,000 share options had
been granted to certain directors and employees
of a subsidiary of Turbo Speed to subscribe
ordinary shares of Turbo Speed at an exercise
price of HK$1.922 per share. The exercisable
period of the above share options is from 8 July
2005 to 31 December 2008 (both dates
inclusive). During the year ended 31 December
2006, 1,245,000 share options have been
lapsed. During the year ended 31 December
2007 and up to the date of this report, no share
options have been exercised. As at the date of
this report, Turbo Speed has 180,000 share
options outstanding.
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During the year ended 31 December 2007, no
share options have been exercised and lapsed.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligation
to repurchase or settle the options in cash. As
at the date of this report, Turbo Speed has
180,000 share option outstanding.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

The register of substantial shareholders maintained
under Section 336 of the SFO shows that as at 31
December 2007, the Company had been notified of
the following substantial shareholders’ interests and
short positions, being 5% or more of the Company’s
issued share capital. These interests are in addition
to those disclosed above in respect of the Directors
and chief executive.

e

HE_ZTTLF+_A=1+—HILHF
B W (EAREREITE IR -
2N 55 B 30 4 DA IR B (B o (8 S IR
ZERHRBETEEML - RATHRS FIEH
Hi » Turbo Speedf 180,00017 & K 1T
150 g IR A o

FTERRRAROKEBKRS <&
mRIAR

RANRIRERE S LB RMIE336KFE
LEERRERMABR RZZTEZTLF
+ZA=+—8 AREEMNSTHEE
REBERRAED BHITRAS%IA £ 2 #E
WRAR RERETEREXEES
B EERITRAE 2 ER -

Approximate
percentage of

Name of Number of Number of shareholding*
Shareholder ordinary shares underlying shares Total IR 2D
REEHE HBER#EAE HBERGOHEB By Bo
Rich Global Limited 757,083,636 (L) - 757,083,636 33.92%
(“RGL")**
Hi Sun Limited (“HSL”)** 757,083,636 (L) - 757,083,636 33.92%
(Note 2)
(Hfet2)
Kui Man Chun 757,083,636 25,200,000 782,283,636 35.05%
REFR
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Notes:
1. The Letter “L” denotes a long position in shares.

2. HSL is interested in the Company’s share capital by virtue
of its 100% shareholding in RGL, and these shares are
held by Kui Man Chun through HSL, a company which
Mr. Kui Man Chun holds a 99.16% interest.

* The percentage is calculated based on the total issued
number of shares of the Company as at 31 December
2007.

** Mr. Kui Man Chun and Mr. Li Wenijin are Directors of RGL
and Mr. Kui Man Chun, Mr. Li Wenjin and Mr. Xu Wensheng
are Directors of HSL which were deemed or taken to
have interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Other significant related party transactions entered
by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2007 and up to the date of this report, which also
constitute transactions under the Listing Rules, are
disclosed in Notes 36 and 37 to the financial
statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

Purchases
- the largest supplier 14%
- five largest suppliers combined 44%
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Sales
- the largest customer 25%
—  five largest customers combined 46%

None of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors
own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
had an interest in the major customers or suppliers
noted above.

CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE

SHARES ISSUED BY SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Convertible preference shares issued
by Turbo Speed
On 9 November 2004, Turbo Speed, a subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a subscription
agreement with independent third parties in
relation to the subscription of 6,837,608
convertible preference shares of US$0.10 each
of Turbo Speed for a total subscription price of
US$4 million (approximately HK$31.2 million) (the
“TS Subscription”).

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 4
April 2005, the Company approved the TS
Subscription and the TS Subscription was
completed on 29 April 2005.

On 18 January 2007 and 27 April 2007,
6,837,608 convertible preference shares in Turbo
Speed were converted into 103,733,334 new
ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.0025
each at a conversion price of HK$0.3 per share.

As at 31 December 2007, no convertible
preference share in Turbo Speed was
outstanding.
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(b) Convertible preference shares issued

by Emerging Technology Limited
(“Emerging Technology”)

On 21 August 2006, Emerging Technology, a
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
subscription agreement with independent third
parties and connected persons in relation to the
subscription of 760,778 convertible preference
shares of US$1.00 each of Emerging Technology
for a total subscription price of US$18 million
(approximately HK$140 million) (the “ET
Subscription”).

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on
25 September 2006, the Company approved
the ET Subscription and the ET Subscription
was completed on 12 October 2006.

On 28 September 2007 and 22 November 2007,
760,778 convertible preference shares in
Emerging Technology were converted into
128,713,235 new ordinary shares of the
Company of HK$0.0025 each at a conversion
price of HK$1.088 per share.

As at 31 December 2007, no convertible
preference share in Emerging Technology was
outstanding.

(b) Emerging Technology Limited

([Emerging Technologyl) % 1T
ZABBRELR
RZZEERFENAZ+—H8  XRF
B B A B1Emerging Technology£a J& 37
F=7 kEEANLTHREEmMerging
Technology 760,778 &A% EIE1. oo%
T2 A R ERRFT L RBEHE

R B E A 18,000,000% 7T ( Zﬁ
140,000,000/ L) ([ETREE]) o

BER_ZEZEFNA-_+THBEAEB
ZEBRER AARIMEETRE -
METRBER T F+A+=H
FERK o

RZZEZTEFANAZFNBERZ
tF¥+—-—A=-+=8" 760,778Hx
Emerging Technology 7] #2 J& {8 5% i 1%
ABmESR1.088F T H ] A
128,713,235 T X E {E0.0025/8 7T 2
RAB LB -
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B %17 MEmerging Technology A # i%
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Acquisition of 5% interest in New
Concept Services Limited (“New
Concept”)

The Company currently owns 95% of the entire
issued share capital of New Concept. On 8 April
2008, the Company entered into an agreement with
Universal Star Group Ltd. (the “Vendor”), pursuant
to which the Company conditionally agreed to
purchase, and the Vendor agreed to sell the 5
ordinary shares of nominal value USD1.00 each in
New Concept, representing 5% of the entire issued
share capital of New Concept, owned by the Vendor,
for a cash consideration of approximately HK$15.5
million (the “Acquisition”).

The Acquisition constitutes a connected transaction
for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules and is subject to reporting, announcement and
approval by the independent shareholders at the
special general meeting (the “SGM”) of the Company
to be convened and held to consider and if thought
appropriate, to approve the Acquisition and the
transaction contemplated under the acquisition
agreement by the independent shareholders of the
Company. Details of the Acquisition and the SGM
are disclosed in the announcement of the Company
of 10 April 2008.
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PENSION SCHEME

The subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong are required
to participate in a defined contribution retirement
scheme or the Group or Company set up in
accordance with the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Ordinance. Under the scheme, the employees
are required to contribute 5% of their monthly salaries
up to a maximum of HK$1,000 and they can choose
to make additional contributions. The employer’s
monthly contributions are calculated at 5% of the
employee’s monthly salaries up to a maximum of
HK$1,000 (the “Mandatory Contributions”). The
employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’s
Mandatory Contributions upon their retirement at the
age of 65 years old, death or total incapacity.

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the
Group is required to contribute an amount to certain
retirement benefit schemes based on approximately
7% to 20% of the wages for the year of those
workers in the PRC. The local municipal government
undertakes to assume the retirement benefits
obligations of those workers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors have an interest in any
business constituting a competing business to the
Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on the information that is publicly available to
the Company and within the knowledge of its
directors, the Directors confirm that the Company
has maintained during the year the amount of public
float as required under the Listing Rules.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Yuk Fung
Chairman
Hong Kong, 18 April 2008
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Financial Highlights HBEME
2007 2006  Change
—EELHF —EETRF 2
HK$’000 HK$’000 +/(-)%
FE T FH& T
RESULTS EF 5
Turnover ] 779,605 473,122 +65%
Profit before income tax B BT 15 B¢ A % 7 216,768 145,242 +49%
Profit for the year F N i F 192,521 133,600 +44%
Attributable to: fEfL -
— Equity shareholders —ARARERE
of the Company BAEA 184,276 133,600
— Minority interests — LR 8,245 -
192,521 133,600
Earnings per share for PN/ £
profit attributable BB AREMN
to the equity holders of w2 IR
the Company: AH -
— Basic —HK HK$0.090 HK$0.083 +8%
— Diluted —#8 HK$0.083 HK$0.070 +19%
As at 31 December
BR+=-—BA=+—H
2007 2006  Change
—EELHF —EETRF 2
HK$’000 HK$’000 +/(-) %
FEx FHE T
KEY BALANCE SHEETITEMS =E¥E&@EXKHEH
Total equity T AR RE 1,100,860 679,672 +62%
Net current assets mENE EFE 778,581 592,099 +31%
Total assets EERBE 1,490,745 847,110 +76%
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Net assets per share EREEFE 0.493 0.362 +36%
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2007 2006 2005
—EEtLE —TTERE —ZTTRF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET TET

Segmental turnover DHEEER
Electronic payment products BEFXNEM

and services Ko Bk 7 323,143 197,843 133,073
Telecommunication solutions, BABRAFTR -

services and related products, Ak 7% 2 iE B EE mm &

and information technology B RHRE

operation value-added services & IE{E IR 5 210,810 110,805 147,756
Financial solutions, services and & BLf# R 75 2 ~ IR

related products N K EE 111,847 162,953 157,784
Business process operations ¥i5iEE 12,282 1,521 -
Electronic power meters BEFAEERK

and solutions fRIRTT 2R 120,472 - -
Others H 1,051 - 150

779,605 473,122 438,763
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2007 2006 2005
—EELF —ZZTETRF ZTETHF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T AT FHET
Segmental results DEEE
Electronic payment products EFXNEM
and services N Bk 7 62,890 30,081 12,912
Telecommunication solutions, BABRAT R
services and related products, IR & HH# E &
and information technology NERRRES
operation value-added BERS
services 115,504 44 599 68,024
Financial solutions, services TRBATE
and related products Ak 7% [z 48 &= o (8,106) 35,157 13,103
Business process operations ¥BES (6,236) (4,246) -
Electronic power meters BEFNEEE
and solutions NIRRT ER 1,711 - -
Others =i - - 150
165,763 105,591 94,189
Other gains, unallocated Hfh iz - K2
Gain on disposal of HERERESF 2
investment securities 43,101 59,727 -
Gain on revaluation of KEBHFEMNWE
investment securities 6,155 2,699 -
Gain on deemed disposal BIEHE —XKHWB QA
of a subsidiary 2 Wz 43,258 - -
Interest income MEMA 9,303 4,831 1,403
Others HAth 11,599 1,102 1,184
113,416 68,359 2,587
Other expenses Hipxk
Share-based compensation i& 2 B (27,616) (2,387) (4,493)
Overheads [ # X AR (31,998) (22,518) (21,343)
(59,614)  (24,905)  (25,836)
Finance costs il & A (2,797) (3,803) (3,998)
Income tax expenses FrEBmExX (24,247) (11,642) (4,638)
Net profit Farg | 192,521 133,600 62,304

i\
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Our results for 2007 reflected increases in total
turnover, gross profit and net profit from that for
2006. The Group’s turnover amounted to HK$779.61
million, representing a growth of 65% compared to
2006. The gross profit and net profit amounted to
HK$356.84 million and HK$192.52 million
respectively, representing an increase of 71% and
44% respectively compared to 2006. With strong
growth in our recurring profits from electronic
payment products and services and information
technology operation value-added services, we
continuously strive to deliver the best values to our
shareholders with new and exciting investment
opportunities. During the year, we have further
enhanced our developments in the business process
operations business under our financial solutions arm
and successfully completed the acquisition of
Hangzhou PAX Electronic Technology Company
Limited (formerly known as Hangzhou Baifu Hualong
Holding Company Limited), Pacific Sheen
International Limited and their respective subsidiaries
(collectively the “Hualong Group”) in the electronic
power meters and solutions industry. The overall
gross profit margin improved as a result of operation
efficiencies and effective cost management.

On 2 January 2007, 43,000,000 share options were
granted to certain employees at an exercise price of
HK$2.00 per share, resulting in share-based
compensation of HK$27.62 million recognised in
2007. Convertible preference shares issued by two
subsidiaries have been fully converted into ordinary
shares of the Company during the year.

e

AEBN ST+ FEERBBEERE -
FHRGHBE ST NFHELF - A&
B &% A779,610,0008 7T HE-ZTZ
NEM6E5% - TF R4 F D B A
356,840,0005% 7T & 192,520,000/ 7T © 5
AR BT NF FFA71%N44% - BEE KRB
BEFXNERERBUARENRIFEL L
BERBOLEEEMNEAIER  XEBT
BB IATNRITIRE#S - ARERIEM
RERBR - FA - AEEE—TRASH
BAFTRBTEBELEEBNER IR
BFREBEERMBAFTRITEFEIEF =
ﬁﬁhME*ﬁﬁ&mﬁﬁﬁimﬁm*H
BEEZERERRAR) LEIBEEKRER AR &
ZEEZHWBLAR (SBIEREE]) HIK
% TH) c BEEMNEABERIER ALK
WMEHEEMEUARE -

R_ZEZE+F—A-H RAETEERT
43,000,000 &A% 42 - H1TEE A STHK2.00
BT BRRN_ETLFHEIABRLAH
27,620,000/ 7T - FRMK B A A EIT2
ARBEELIREEHIBRAARA LR

W e

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2007



[/

With regard to our balance sheet, at the end of
2007, the total assets as at 31 December 2007
amounted to HK$1,490.75 million, compared with
HK$847.11 million as at 31 December 2006. Current
assets as at 31 December 2007 was HK$1,156.94
million, compared with HK$737.05 million as at 31

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEZFWED

ER_ZETLFEMEEAGBERA@E

—EEEFF+ZA=+— Elmé“?f@ﬁ?%
1,490,750,0008 7L - R_EZEF+ = A
=+—HA8]/A847,110,000/8 7T - B EE
RZEETELtF+HA=Z1T—HBA
1,156,940,0008 7L - R_EZEF+ = A

December 2006.

=+—HA|/&737,050,000/% T °

e <

Electronic payment solutions and EFIRBRIFREREM
products
2007 2006  Change
—EELHF —EERF pei
HK$’000 HK$’000 +/(-)%
FET FET
Turnover - 323,143 197,843 +63%
Gross profit = 7 113,939 71,478 +59%
Gross profit margin (%) FE F & (%) 35% 36%
Operating profit 1 e A 62,890 30,081  +109%
Operating profit margin (%) 1 & M E (%) 19% 15%
Research and development Tt 75 K B 3% AR A 9,657 7,224 +34%
costs
Capital expenditure BARR X 607 1,502 -60%
Net assets employed Freh A& EFE 236,210 82,736  +185%

PAX continued to be the leader in the EFT-POS
terminals market in Mainland China. In May 2007,
we attracted new investments of US$10 million
(approximately HK$78 million) from institutional
investors subscribing approximately 20% interests
in PAX, providing additional working capital for PAX’s
business operation and positive exploration of the
international markets. R&D costs rose by 34% with
more exertion placed in development of new models
such as our latest mobile EFT-POS terminal and
contactless payment device.

BT B A E T R S B A
mi@—%{a R c R-TETLFHA
AEBSIARBREERED S H20%E
#m v W% AN TR & B8 # 10,000,000 7T (49
78,000,000 7C) * RE BFFELIRMRE
WNEBEES  WEBEERBEMS - %
ﬁiﬁiﬂ:ﬂ% EZEREBREFHERH

vfﬁllzzm%lma—*ﬁ&b THEIREH
mm%&#%ﬁﬁ%tﬁ,ﬁ%\%

EEMKX (PE) BRQE —EZLFFRHR
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PAX experienced strong volume growth of 63% on a
year-on-year basis, with a new sales record of
170,000 units in 2007. The shipment contribution of
Mainland China market was 84% while the
international market contributed the rest. Despite the
keen market competition, we managed to maintain
healthy gross and operating profit margins through
new product designs and leverage from volume
growth.

During the year, sales volume of PAX’'s EFT POS-
terminals in Mainland China grew by 70%. By the
end of 2007, the total numbers of EFT-POS terminals
in Mainland China amounted to approximately 1
million terminals, reflecting a relatively low penetration
rate as compared to most developed countries. It
provides ample room for the expansion of PAX’s EFT-
POS terminals business. On the other hand, bank
payment cards issuance in Mainland China kept
surging and total number of bank payment cards
exceeding 1.4 billion by Q4 2007. In 2007, card
payment transaction volume grew by 20% to 15.4
billion, while total transaction sum increased by 30%,
reaching RMB62.0 billion and representing about
21% of the community commodity retail amount in
the region. In 2008, PAX’s EFT-POS terminals sales
in Mainland China are expected to keep its
momentum, as fueled by the rising acceptance of
card payments incessant improvement of the
payment transactions and processing infrastructure.
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In addition, PAX further established presence in the
international market. Sales volume grew by 72% in
2007. Currently, our products are sold to certain
European countries, such as Denmark, France,
Russia. Markets in the Middle East included the UAE
and Saudi Arabia while in Africa, our market covered
South Africa and Ghana. In 2008, we will look for
new opportunities and delve into the North and South
American markets and Oceania countries. With the
first class products and services, we endeavor to
make PAX an international brand symbolizing top
quality electronic payment products and solutions.

Telecommunication solutions, services

Management Discussion and Analysis
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AN BEE— S EBRBRMISE IR -
MR_EELF - HEHEMN72% - WEF - K
%E@E&Eﬁ%%%?@kﬂ\l\lﬁ -

BRE - KB o RERMIS B IEM

KA A - MAEEMN - REBHTIS
BEEERNMB - R N\F > AEH
ESHIEE  WERAMRBEILEEREESN

BIARKFMNBER - &iE—

/)Ib E an & HE

AEEH N EETERASRKREER

Fﬁ%ﬁﬁlxuu KRR ENBER &

nig o

EMBARAATR - RBEREBRER AR

and related products, and information BN ELEERK
technology operation value-added
services
2007 2006 Change
HK$’000 HK$ 000 +/(-)%
TE T FHE T
Turnover =5 L] 210,810 110,805 +90%
Gross profit EH 181,617 85,227  +113%
Gross profit margin (%) EF & (%) 86% 77%
Operating profit b Mmﬂ 115,504 44,599  +159%
Operating profit margin (%) 12 e A E (%) 55% 40%
Capital expenditure BEARARE 3,895 11,165 -65%
Net assets employed FrEh A& EFE 196,554 97,680 +101%

BEMNE(FE)ERLFA 22 LEER 63




Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEZWEDN

During the year, we further extended our exclusive
nation-wide IVR platform for China Mobile. Market
size of IVR business continued to grow and recovered
from the market reorganisations in prior year.
Benefited from the centralisation of IVR platforms,
turnover contributed by the IVR platform operations
grew by 97%. Further improvement was noted in
the gross and operating profit margins as compared
to 2006, while operating profit points to reach 55%.
Entertainment content, songs dedication and
interactive games remained the top three popular
voice data contents.

For the year 2008, we anticipate more modest
growth in the IVR business after three consecutive
years of significant increases in the traffic volume
since 2005. Whilst, we expect a steady growth in
the operating profit through a combination of
operation efficiencies and effective cost management.

It is expected that 3G trial spots will be initiated
upon the opening of Beijing Olympic Games in mid
2008. While the Olympic Games will be the world’s
focus, the Group is technically prepared for the
launch of IVVR platform featuring video contents,
and actively seek new ideas and innovations in our
business.
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Financial solutions, applications,
services and related products

ERMBRALTE -ERA - BBRAME
B E m

2007 2006 Change
HK$’000 HK$ 000 +/(-)%
FET FHE T
Turnover & X 111,847 162,953 -31%
Gross profit ¥ 6,404 52,043 -88%
Gross profit margin (%) EFE (%) 6% 32%
Operating loss/(profit) mEEE CaFl) (8,106) 35,157 -123%
Operating profit margin (%) & & & 7 & (%) n/a 7 & A 22%
Capital expendiure BAR X 3,446 121 +2,748%
Net assets employed FrEh A& EFE 160,302 169,844 -6%
In 2007, operating loss of HK$8.11 million and RZTEETLF - KLEEIEAES,110,0008

decreased margins were mainly attributable to certain
delays in the Bank of China core banking project.

With a vision to strive for more stable, sustainable
and recurring income streams, we have placed
certain refocusing measures to leverage our
underlying strength and expertise into business
operations and out-souring services to financial
institutions. Nevertheless, financial solutions will
remain our core competencies and continue to create
values and opportunities for us to break through.

T MaEMETREIZEANPTERTLZ
D IRITIHB BRTRERR -

SENERE - AIFELREFENRAR
R AEBECIERE TEREMER - A
EXBELTERARMNBEAEZRER
HE o AR A RBEEINHBRS o R
T BAR T BN AR ORE N M
BREAMAEEENESE  FEHRMELER
i 38 (B AR 75 B 1
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e

Business process operations EKEE

2007 2006 Change
—EEtHE —TITF pak))
HK$’000 HK$’000 +/(-)%

FHET FET
Turnover & EE 12,282 1,521 +707%
Gross profit/(loss) EF(EE) 6,700 (496) n/a A~ iE A

Gross profit margin (%) FEHE (%) 55% n/a T iE A
Operating loss L EE (6,236) (4,246) n/a TiE A
Capital expenditure EARAX 24,878 34,192 -27%
Net assets employed Freh A& EFE 51,962 33,575 +55%

With our trusty relationships with several Chinese
national and regional banks and core competencies
developed under our financial solutions arm in
previous years, we have migrated into business
process operations (“BPQ”) for financial institutions
and achieved significant progress. Our services
include payment operation solutions, such as ATMs
as well as other outsourcing services. Our strategy
is to enhance our position and become a significant
service provider to financial institutions in Mainland
China. Total turnover grew by over 8 times in 2007,
with strong growth of 119% in the second half as
compared to 1H 2007. Currently, our ATMs are
deployed under a multiple-year contract with Bank
of Communications (“BoCom”), making us one of
the largest non-bank owners and operators of bank-
branded ATMs in Mainland China. Capital expenditure
continued to grow with an addition of 440 ATMs
successfully deployed and connected during the year.
The transaction and revenue growth were primarily
driven by investments that we made in certain
strategic growth initiatives and we expect these
initiatives will continue to drive revenue growth and
improve profit margin.
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Our management team has significant financial
services and payment processing-related experience
and has developed extensive network and market
leadership, which continue to attract new business
opportunities for the Group. By the end of 2007,
total number of ATMs is approximately 120,000 and
total number of EFT-POS terminals is approximately
1 million in China. The relatively low penetration rate
of ATMs and EFT-POS terminals are beneficial to
the Group’s further expansion in the sector. In 2008,
our ATM operations will expand incessantly. We
believe there are ample opportunities ahead for us
to become the operator of the largest non-financial
payment network in Mainland China to provide
advanced-functionality services, such as customized
branding solutions to financial institutions, including
one-to-one marketing and advertising services on
the ATM screen, off-premise deposit taking using
electronic imaging, money transfer, and bill payment.
Our relatively low-cost operations and significant
experience in financial solutions and ATM
management provide us with future revenue
opportunities as banks and other financial institutions
look to outsource certain management functions to
simplify operations and lower their costs.

AEEEEEEEAERBRELI AR
HELE  TEZHREEZHEKLTSE
B M ABAASEEBE R EK -

HE_TTLFRE  RPABERA - ATMAE
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HHE—FHE  R_ZTZTNF - X&E
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BB RARZREAIAK A B A IR f 5k
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MAemEBRETPIEREBRBATR -
BRERATMEEN —H -2 HEESR
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Electronic power meters and automated
solutions

Analysis

e

EFAERXRRBBERTR

For the period
from 30 July 2007
to 31 December 2007

—EE2LF

+tA=+HZ

—EE2tF

+ZA=+—BHH

HK$’000

FTER

Turnover LER 120,472

Operating profit 1 A 1,711

Research and development costs it 3% K B % AR AR 4,175

Amortisation of intangible assets B EESE 2,892
Capital expenditure BEAMX

— property, plant and equipment —ME  BEMRERE 95,178

— intangible assets —mEEE 120,015

Net assets employed Freh & EFE 306,682

Subsequent to the acquisition of an effective interest
of 95% in the Hualong Group in July 2007, we spent
approximately six months in restructuring and
reorganisation. Certain retrenchment measures are
now in place to improve cost efficiency. We continued
to uphold our dominant position in the domestic
market. Currently, demand for power meters and
solutions is experiencing significant growth given the
booming economy and reformation in the energy
sector in Mainland China. Power grid investments,
energy supply and efficiency control became one of
the top agenda of the Central Government’s Eleventh
Five Year Plan. State Power Grid and Southern Power
Grid will be investing over RMB1 trillion during the
five-year plan period while electronic power meters
and automated systems/solutions are prerequisite for
the reformation.
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Our strategic partnership with international leaders
aiming at the export markets, mainly the European
and Asia Pacific countries under the IEC standards
progressed satisfactory during the year. We are
receiving orders from diverse overseas countries such
as Sweden and New Zealand. The need to replace
the traditional mechanical meters with the more
technologically advanced and automated electronic
meters and solutions is rapidly growing.

Increased R&D expenses were due to more exertion
placed to improve the quality of existing products
and development of new series. We are also
introducing various software to improve our R&D
quality and productivity. Likewise, we consistently
launch new and innovative products to meet the
ever-changing technology and market demand.

FA - AREEBEREENTHEEEEZY
REBHBAERFHL TS AKBIECE
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PROSPECT

We are confident in the underlying competencies of
our core and developing businesses and of the
economies in which they operate. China, with its
fast growing economy, evidenced by mounting trade
across the region and gradually easing trade
restrictions, is poised to become the largest
consumption market in the world. We have
established our foothold in the telecommunication,
financial and energy sectors, which are expected to
benefit from the growing consumption market in
China with the most robust growth. Backed by a
seasoned and dedicated management team, we
manage to seize every business opportunity in these
fast-growing industries and aim to provide high value-
added solutions and services to our customers.

Going forward, financial solutions segment will remain
our core competencies and continues to create
values and opportunities for us to migrate into other
related service areas. While BPO and electronic
power meters and solutions will bring in new income
streams to further enhance the Group’s profitability.
Electronic payment products and services, and
telecommunication solutions and information
technology operation value-added services are
expected to grow and generate stable and recurring
profit to the Group. We shall continue to devote our
greatest effort to achieve the best values and returns
to our shareholders over the long term.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2007, the Group reported total
assets of HK$1,490.75 million (2006: HK$847.11
million), which were financed by total liabilities of
HK$389.89 million (2006: HK$167.44 million) and
equity of HK$1,100.86 million (2006: HK$679.67
million). The net asset value was HK$1,100.86 million
(2006: HK$679.67 million). It amounted to HK$0.49
per share as compared to HK$0.36 per share as at
31 December 2006.

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had cash of
HK$569.72 million (2006: HK$528.08 million) and
short term borrowings of HK$42.55 million (2006:
HK$7.00 million). The net cash position as at 31
December 2007 was HK$527.17 million as compared
to HK$521.08 million as at 31 December 2006. The
short term borrowings included short term bank loan
to fund the Group’s working capital requirements.
As at 31 December 2006, the Group had financial
liability portion of convertible preference shares
issued by a subsidiary of HK$22.49 million, which
were fully converted into ordinary shares of the
Company during the year 2007. The gearing ratio
(defined as total borrowings divided by shareholders’
equity) was 0.04 compared to 0.04 as at 31
December 2006. The gearing ratio is considered
healthy and suitable for the continued growth of the
Group’s business.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND DETAILS
OF CHARGES

As at 31 December 2007, the Group’s short term
borrowings included short term bank loan which was
denominated in Renminbi, amounting to RMB39.77
million. The short term bank loan was charged at
interest of range from 7.13% to 7.60% per annum.

RBESTRUBER

R-ET+E+-_A=+—H  A=EH
S EEHEA1,490,750,0008 L (ZEZ X
847,110,000/ L) - HEAERER
389,890,000 T (= T T X &F

< :
167,440,000/ T ) M # #7m 42 %
1,100,860,000/8 7t ( = & & X F
679,670,000 ;L) - E&E FE Al A

1,100,860,000 7Tt (= & & X &
679,670,000/87T) - B E E FEH0.498
T MR —_EERF+_A=+—HA
AF%0.36/8 T °

R-ZZEE+F+_A=+—H KEEEF
IH £ 569,720,000 T (ZEZF N F
528,080,000/%8 7T) & 2 B f& B 42,550,000/
T (ZZEZT R4 1 7,000,00087T) - RZZE
E+FF+_AZ+—"HZREIFEAR
527,170,000 7T * HE T F+_H
=+—HA]/A521,080,000/ 7T - SHAEE
BERSBARTER  DEBEEENAEEE
BESERK RZIBEEXRF+_A=+—
H AEBEHEHRH - XWBARIZETHA
BRE LR 2B B EE 9 22,490,000/%8
T HER ZEZELFREZHER AR
NAEILEAERK BEXrBEEE (RTAEELE
BRI EES) £0.04 HE —_ZTTF
+—-A=+—HAIAE0.04 - ttEXREEH R
BRERE  HEFeASEEEFELERZE

K o

EXRBRERFR

N_FTELF+_HA=+—8 ' x5B8Z
HHEEERERUAREIBEZOHIETE
A AR #39,770,0007T © F2HASRITE FIL N
T71A3EZE760E 2 FF KA o
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Management Discussion and

BEEEZWEDN

As at 31 December 2006, the financial liability portion
of convertible preference shares issued by a
subsidiary was HK$22.49 million which was
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and the effective
interest rate was 8.27% per annum. These
convertible preference shares were fully converted
into ordinary shares of the Company during the year
2007.

Approximately HK$270.29 million, HK$113.49 million,
HK$184.99 million and HK$0.95 million of the
Group’s cash balances were denominated in
Renminbi, Hong Kong dollar, US dollar and Euro
respectively as at 31 December 2007.

As at 31 December 2007, short term bank loans of
HK$42.55 million were secured by:

Analysis

e

RZZEZERFT_A=+—8  ARAMN
BILIEZ KB RAEITH A RRE
SRR KB ES S £22,490,0008 7T B
BRAMEREFE27TE - ZEMHRRELRKE
R_EELtFRNEZHERASARA LR

B e

R_EBEE+F+_A=+—"8 £K&EEZ
/4 &% D R4 270,290,000 T -
113,490,000/ 7T * 184,990,000/ 7T &
950,000 T D RIAARE « Bt~ ETT
MBI E -

NR_EBEZ+F+_A=+—H - 42,550,000
B2 EBIRTEENLN TS EERR

HK$ million
BEATT
The leasehold land and building of a subsidiary Apal—XKMBARICHEE
of the Company and the corporate guarantee THREFRBIE=TF
from an independent third party, Shenzhen High  FYII T & ¥ 5 7 1% & 1R
and New Technology Investment Guarantee BRAR 2 EER 5.37
Company Limited
The leasehold land and building of a subsidiary —ZXMBRARIzHELWREF 20.58
Bills receivables of a subsidiary —XHBR A EWEE 10.55
36.50
EXCHANGE RATES EXPOSURE PE R 7 b

The Group derives its revenue, makes purchases
and incurs expenses denominated mainly in US
dollars, Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. Currently,
the Group has not entered into agreements or
purchased instruments to hedge the Group’s
exchange rate risks. Any material fluctuation in the
exchange rates of Hong Kong dollar or Renminbi
may have impact on the operating results of the
Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEZFWED

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liability as at
31 December 2007.

EMPLOYEES

The total number of employees of the Group as at
31 December 2007 was 1,591. The breakdown of
employees by division is as follows:

Electronic payment products and services
Telecommunications solutions, services

and related products, and information
technology operation value-added services

HAREE
RZEZ+LFF+A=1+—8 xEEL
BEMEARKAEE -

=]
AEBR _ZEZ+F+_A=+—HBZE
EREA15901A - EEZRILFAED DT ¢

B NE®RNERS 174

BARBATER  BREMEHEER K 280
BN sOE 2 1B E R

Financial solutions, services and related SRBARATR - RELBEEm® 420

products and business process operations M EE
Electronic power meters and solutions BEFAEERIBRIR 701
Corporate office TERAE 16
1,591

The Group ensures that its remuneration packages
are comprehensive and competitive. Employees are
remunerated with a fixed monthly income plus annual
performance related bonuses. The Group also
sponsors selected employees to attend external
training courses that suit the needs of the Group’s
businesses.

AEERFREFHSFEL2EAAARF
- mMEEZHFMNEREBABEHE &
MEXRBEMZFELL - REBETNER
BHECZRESEANAAKBEBAT 2
ShFRIEFFNEREE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report

18 M % BLED S

PRICEWATERHOUSE(QOPERS

TS B Gt B AT

To the shareholders of Hi Sun Technology
(China) Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial
statements of Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 78 to 203, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at
31 December 2007, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for
the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant
to the preparation and the true and fair presentation

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong

of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents
of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2007
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Independent Auditor’s Report

18 M % BED S

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial
statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2007 and of the
Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 18 April 2008
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Independent Auditor’s Report

8 M % BET S

PRICEWATERHOUSE(QOPERS

TS R G B E AT

FEENE(RE) BERAARRK
(MBEREZTMERZNBRAA)

AZEE (A TEBIEM]) EFZINHNE78E
203EEERX (FE) ARAR (TEAR]) REN
BRARAIATEHEIEREE]) VEEMBERE - i
EMBBRREBFRN_ZTTLF+_A=+T—BHK
BRAREEREREBEZAELFENGEA Ka
R HARDEPRNGEABATRER  ULTRB
SETBCRME M E B T

EERUMBERARENSE

EAREFAARREEBGHMDRRENES
B 76 W 25 B IR R A 8 (ARG B 80 3 B8 ME AR
RREEMA TR SRR BHRE - BHA
BERH  BEREERRUREENA TR
B 765 9 5 A A 40 PO BB S 4 o A3 B 7S R T 72

BORKEGHMERH
IR
KT RE A

RNEFF R M E MM E R FERRM - #
BMEREENEAERE  RIEBER M E
HeEmEsHEEr -

RN EE
BAMNEETEREBERMANEZHZETES
MBERRELER > URBARE-AN
—FLRRPR) FOORERMEERRRE -
Rtz AR ERIEEMBE R - HMATE
AREMNABREMREAMA LR L8
EEFEET-

ZMERBEBESIAMAGRMNEESE
APERETER - EBEERERKZMEST
BRARE - WREMATER A ER
EUFMBERREENFHEMERER
Rt -
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18 M % BED S

BERSNATREFINERBEMBERERMASEL
REERNERERE - FIEENEFEIURRAZ 2D
A BEFHENREFRERMEHM B REK
FEBRERRAWER - £ HZFERE - %
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Consolidated Income Statement

el R

For the year ended
31 December
BE+-HA=+—-HLEE

2007 2006
—EELEF —ZETREF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 3E FHET FET
Turnover B 5 779,605 473,122
Cost of sales 55 A A 6 (422,767) (264,870)
Gross profit E A 356,838 208,252
Other gains H A= 5 113,416 68,359
Selling expenses HERX 6 (70,198) (28,899)
Administrative expenses THER 6 (180,491) (98,667)
Operating profit 5 5 219,565 149,045
Finance costs Bl & A AR 9 (2,797) (3,803)
Profit before income tax B P15 15 A& A 216,768 145,242
Income tax expense Fr 13 B 5 10 (24,247) (11,642)
Profit for the year F 1A 4 A 192,521 133,600
Attributable to: fEfh -
- Equity shareholders of the Company ~ — AR al#mFAE A 184,276 133,600
— Minority interests — VERRE S 8,245 -
192,521 133,600
Earnings per share for profit RARIERFTEBA
attributable to the equity holders JE 15 % ) 2
of the Company: BRAF
— Basic —E K 13 HK$0.0905% T HK$0.083/8 7T
— Diluted —#E 13 HK$0.083/& ;t  HK$0.070/% 7T
The notes on pages 87 to 203 are an integral part of FRTE203E MM NZEE M BHRER 2 EF
these consolidated financial statements. 7 e
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+-—H
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 7 FET FET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets EMEEE
Investment properties WEWE 14 3,363 3,540
Property, plant and equipment mME - W B &K 15 164,817 75,959
Leasehold land ME T 16 43,377 30,559
Intangible assets mEEE 17 122,244 -
333,801 110,058
Current assets mENEE
Inventories rE 19 138,581 28,552
Trade and other receivables, FE U BR SR e HoAh
prepayments & W 5RIE -
and deposits ERNFERES 20 405,548 139,076
Due from a fellow JEW — K[ & 28, 36(b)
subsidiary (R NEIE ] 1,111 -
Due from a related JEW — KB E
company NEE QL 28,36(b) - 67
Financial assets at BAFERA
fair value through i M) Bk B 1R 2
profit or loss CRMEE 21 34,488 41,281
Restricted cash X PR HIIR & 22 7,500 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEFEEY 23 569,716 528,076
1,156,944 737,052
Total assets BEBRE 1,490,745 847,110
EQUITY E
Capital and reserves attributable to RARIEFEAA
the Company's equity holders JE A B AN % (o
Share capital fi% 2% 24 5,580 4,699
Other reserves H b G 25 1,049,267 674,973
1,054,847 679,672
Minority interest DER R S 46,013 -
Total equity e R 1,100,860 679,672

The notes on pages 87 to 203 are an integral part of F8TE203E MM E NG M EmE 2 H A
these consolidated financial statements. 7
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEEREX

As at 31 December

R+=ZHA=+—H
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FETT
LIABILITIES =
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Financial liability portion of —RKM B A RIET
convertible preference shares Z AR E R
issued by a subsidiary SRBEIHY 27, 29 - 22,485
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBEE 30 11,522 -
i M522 22,485
Current liabilities B A&
Trade and other payables FEATBR R R H A
JE 1~ B IR 26 301,489 117,282
Due to a fellow subsidiary BN —KRE XM B
NGIE | 28,36(b) - 13,497
Taxation payable FET B IR 34,323 7,174
Borrowings B = 29 42,551 7,000
378,363 144,953
Total liabilities BERE 389,885 167,438
Total equity and liabilities EEkBERTE 1,490,745 847,110
Net current assets mEBEEFE 778,581 592,099
Total assets less current liabilities EERERRDEE 1,112,382 702,157
On behalf of the Board
REEFZ
XU WENSHENG LI WENJIN
BrRXE E=ENE
Director Director
= =

FEB7TE203E MM IR A M IS MK 2 A &

The notes on pages 87 to 203 are an integral part of
-

N

these consolidated financial statements. 77 °
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Balance Sheet

EEEREX

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—H
2007 2006
—EFLF ZETRF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 7 FER FAT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FERBEE
Investment properties WEWE 14 4,888 5,146
Property, plant and equipment W - BB KRR 15 - 1
Leasehold land HE i 16 29,587 30,347
Investments in subsidiaries RHB AR Z®RE 18 4,136 4,136
38,611 39,630
Current assets mENE E
Prepayments, deposits and FERRIE - B2
other receivables K E Ath & W5k IE 20 485 382
Due from subsidiaries JE W FfT B8 A~ B R I8 18 757,929 100,822
Tax recoverable 18 Uz [3] 1,056 —
Financial assets at fair BAFERA
value through i ) 2k &5 18
profit or loss LERMEE 21 34,488 41,281
Restricted cash X PR IR & 22 7,500 —
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY 23 121,113 247,802
922,571 390,287
Total assets BEBRE 961,182 429,917
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Balance Sheet

BEEER/X

As at 31 December

R+=ZA=+-—H
2007 2006
—EETEHF —EERF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M5 FET FET
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable to ZANYNEIY EES RN
the Company’s equity holders JEAG IR AR K R
Share capital fi% 7% 24 5,580 4,699
Other reserves Hih B 25 909,278 377,675
Total equity M 914,858 382,374
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities REBE
Other payables and accruals H b JE < 518 2
FE TR E 26 10,789 8,908
Due to subsidiaries &1~ B A B3R 18 35,535 21,035
Due to a fellow subsidiary [ — KA &
opE=l/NCI B sl 28 - 14,500
Taxation payable FE B 1R - 3,100
Total liabilities BEBETE 46,324 47,543
Total equity and liabilities EEkBERTE 961,182 429,917
Net current assets mBEEFE 876,247 342,744
Total assets less current liabilities EERBRADAE 914,858 382,374
On behalf of the Board
REESEE
XU WENSHENG LI WENJIN
BRXE =XE
Director Director
= )

The notes on pages 87 to 203 are an integral part of F8TE203EMMIcE iR & M mER 2 H A E

-
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GERBEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2007
BE-SRLFT-A=t-HLEE

Attributable to the equity holders of the Company

RRRERBEAEL
Minority
Share Share Contributed Other Exchange Retained interests
capital premium  surplus  reserves reserve earnings P ERE Total

Rx  ROEE BEABRR HtRE SERE REEBN  BE ait
HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TiEn TER TR TR TErn T#En TER

Balance at 1 January 2007 RZBBLE
—A—-Bz#& 4,699 269,586 168,434 156,494 7,688 72,711 - 679,672

Profit for the year FEREF - - - - - 184,276 8,245 192,521
Shares issued under REXARERE

share options scheme SEIBRTRG (HiE24)

of the Company (Note 24) 208 15,474 - - - - - 15,682
Issue of new shares RERKB LA

upon the conversion of BT 2 AR

convertible preference shares BEREET

issued by subsidiaries (Note 24) Mikin (Hit24) 581 171,112 - (149,614) - - - 22,079
Employee share option scheme EEEREE

- value of employee services —EERBER

(Note 24) (Hizt24) - - - 21616 - - - 21616
Deemed disposal of a subsidiary RELE-FHBAR

(Note 34) (Kiz#34) - - - - - - 34,868 34,868
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBAR

(Note 24 and 35) (Bfet24% 35) 92 92,158 - - - - 776 93,026
Exchange differences arising on REBIHBAR

translation of the financial YBEREE

statements of foreign subsidiaries ~ ZE X ZEE - - - - 33,272 - 2124 35,396
Balance at 31 December 2007 RZBBLE

+ZA=T-Bz&H% 5,580 548,330 168,434 34,496 40,960 257,047 46,013 1,100,860
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

SERBEEHR

Attributable to the equity holders of the Company

RARABREEAEL
Retained
earnings/
(accumulated
Share Share Contributed Other  Exchange losses)
capital  premium surplus  reserves reserve RERF/ Total
kE  ROEE EBHRES HAtRE  NERE (RHER) &it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAER TEL TEL TEL TAET TER
Balance at 1 January 2006 e
—RA-RzEH 3,330 100,556 125,310 15,627 872 (118,261) 127,434
Profit for the year FERE - - - - - 133600 133,600
Issue of convertible preference —ZHER
shares by a subsidiary (Note 27) B4 WH&@% I (Hiz27) - - - 138480 - - 138480
Shares issued under REARDABHRE
share options scheme SrEBRG (Bi24)
of the Company (Note 24) 459 24,196 - - - - 24,655
Issue of new shares (Note 24) BRI (Bi£24) 910 245450 - - - - 246,360
Share issuance expenses (Note 24) B3 %47B % (B3 24) - (60) - - - - (60)
Share premium reduction (Note 24)  BIERE (7 5 (& (B5224) - (100,556) 43,124 - - 57,432 -
Employee share option scheme EEREREE
- value of employee services —EERBZEE
(Note 24) (Hit24) - - - 2,387 - - 2,387
Exchange differences arising on BERNBAR
translation of the financial MERRES
statements of foreign subsidiaries ~ Z[E{Z® - - - - 6,816 - 6,816
Balance at 31 December 2006 RZZERE
+ZR=+—-Bz&% 4,699 269,586 168,434 156,494 7,688 72,771 679,672
The notes on pages 87 to 203 are an integral part of FRTE203E MM N E M BHRKR 2 EF

these consolidated financial statements.

N
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

AERETRER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+t—HBLEFE

2007 2006
—EELF ZETRF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FTERT FAT
Cash flows from operating REXBNRERE
activities
Cash generated from operations RERMBRE 31(a) 121,722 84,370
Interest paid =ENRAESS (2,464) (2,069)
Preferred dividend paid —XMBAREN
by a Subsidiary BEERRKRE (603) (422)
Hong Kong income tax paid BERNEBMER (4,156) -
Overseas income tax paid EAREINFIEHE (10,520) (5,183)
Net cash generated from REEBRE
operating activities ReFHE 103,979 76,696
Cash flows from investing RETBHNRERE
activities
Acquisition of 95% equity interest W BB BB A A 2 95%
subsidiaries, net of cash required feiE - ~ERE
W g F 58 35 (154,155) -
Purchase of investment properties BEREYHE 14 - (3,548)
Purchase of property, plant BEWE BE
and equipment B4 15 (34,131) (49,140)
Purchase of leasehold land BEHE LT 16 - (30,378)
Proceeds from sales of property, plant LEME - BE K&
and equipment REAE A 31(b) 5,240 39
Proceeds from deemed disposal of 20% RIEHE R — KK B
equity interest in a subsidiary NE]Z20%A%HE 2
Fr 15 3k 18 34 78,125 -
Interest received B W F B 9,303 4,831
Net cash used in investing activities KEGZSRES AL FE (95,618) (78,196)

The notes on pages 87 to 203 are an integral part of FQTE203EMM A NGAERBHRER 2 EF I
these consolidated financial statements. A
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GEEHERER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+t—HBLEFE

2007 2006
—EELHF TETRF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 3E FERT FAT
Cash flows from financing il & T B RY
activities HeRE
Proceeds from inception A EHIRITER
of short term bank loans Fr 15 3k 18 12,011 7,000
Repayment of short term EECHERITER
bank loans (8,390) (48,077)
Proceeds from issuance of convertible M8 QR IT A AR
preference shares by a subsidiary B E & Pfr 15318 27(b) - 138,480
Issue of new ordinary shares B ERaR 15,682 271,015
Payment of share issuance expense SHBETRHEA - (60)
Increase in restricted cash X MR 38 & 18 0 (7,500) -~
Net cash generated from BEE TS
financing activities REFH 11,803 368,358
Net increase in cash and ReERREEEYD
cash equivalents Z I NNFERE 20,164 366,858
Exchange gains on cash and ReERREEFEEY
cash equivalents B 0B 5 I 2 21,476 4,639
Cash and cash equivalents FUREERE
at beginning of the year EEM 528,076 156,579
Cash and cash equivalents FR|ELREE
at the end of the year B 23 569,716 528,076

The notes on pages 87 to 203 are an integral part of FRTE203EMMZF N BHREKR 2 EF

-
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these consolidated financial statements. 77 °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R MR

GENERAL INFORMATION
The principal activity of Hi Sun Technology (China)

Limited (the “Company”) is investment holding.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”), are principally engaged
in the sales of information technology products,
provision of business process operation services,
provision of information system consultancy and
integration services, and information technology
operation valued-added services.

The Company is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The address of its
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars
(HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 18
April 2008.

—REHR
BHRE (FE) ARAR (KRR 2%
THEHREER -

ARAIREMEAR (EWAIAKHE]) X
ZRFHEEMAMNEM BEXBES
AR~ R E R B S SR AR A K
BB REEEERSE -

RAARARRBREFMAKIHBRAR -
H 5F it = B2 o 4if & Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda °

ARAPRELHMARXZABRAR LM -
SRRABMEI  BEMBBERATET (T

AT RBEMEY - Ik FHEAPBHREN =
EENFHA+\BEEESH AT -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M wERNE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. EXREHBEME
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the RELEREVBEREABEANEIESR
preparation of these consolidated financial HEEHINDAT - RE BB - ZFHE
statements are set out below. These policies have REBOWAMBEFEE/REA -

been consistently applied to all the years presented,

unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation 21 mBEE

The consolidated financial statements of the RARWEE M BERKRIBRIESTEY
Company have been prepared in accordance BmEER (BB BHRELL]) R
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards B ZERAMBRRRELKARE
(HKFRS). The consolidated financial statements mE - WHERATFES AR EE
have been prepared under the historical cost JeMmEEMTREBE (BEITAT
convention, as modified by the revaluation of B) (DR A TFEYER) EMEEE -
financial assets and financial liabilities (including

derivative instruments) at fair value through profit

or loss which are carried at fair value.

REFRBHBREENBRN - HRY

The preparation of financial statements in

conformity with HKFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas

BRENERLETEEMNG &
i EREAAEEASEERH K
52 BIR R 1R HIBT « 35 B I
MR REGARGRETS
EEAYEBENEHSHERK
AW -

where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed in Note 4.

88 HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2007




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R EE

2. EXREHBEHRE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 mBEE(BE)
(a) Standards, amendment and (a) E-_ZFEZLFELEUMZER - &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

interpretations effective in 2007

HKFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments:
Disclosures’, and the complementary
amendment to HKAS 1, ‘Presentation of
financial statements - Capital disclosures’,
introduces new disclosures relating to
financial instruments. The Group has
assessed the impact of these new and
revised accounting standards and
concluded that there is no material impact
on the classification and valuation of the
Group’s financial instruments, or the
disclosures relating to taxation and trade
and other payables, except for the
additional disclosures on sensitivity analysis
to market risk and capital disclosure.

HK(IFRIC) - Int 8, ‘Scope of HKFRS 27,
requires consideration of transactions
involving the issuance of equity
instruments, where the identifiable
consideration received is less than the fair
value of the equity instruments issued in
order to establish whether or not they fall
within the scope of HKFRS 2. This
standard does not have any material
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

HK(IFRIC) - Int 10, ‘Interim financial
reporting and impairment’, prohibits the
impairment losses recognised in an interim
period on goodwill and investments in
equity instruments and in financial assets
carried at cost to be reversed at a
subsequent balance sheet date. This
standard does not have any material
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M wERNE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b)

(c)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2007

Interpretation early adopted by the
Group

HK(IFRIC) - Int 11, ‘HKFRS 2 - Group and
treasury share transactions’, was early
adopted in 2007. HK(IFRIC) - Int 11
provides guidance on whether share-based
transactions involving treasury shares or
involving Group entities (for example,
options over a parent’s shares) should be
accounted for as equity-settled or cash-
settled share-based payment transactions
in the stand-alone accounts of the parent
and Group companies. This interpretation
does not have material impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

Standards, amendments and interpretations
effective in 2007 but not relevant

The following standards, amendments and
interpretations to published standards are
mandatory for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2007 but
they are not relevant to the Group’s
operations:

e HK(IFRIC) - Int 7, ‘Applying the
restatement approach under HKAS
29, Financial reporting in hyper-
inflationary economies’; and

e HK(IFRIC) - Int 9, ‘Re-assessment of
embedded derivatives’.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(d) Standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards that
are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group
The following standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards have
been published and are mandatory for the
Group’s accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2008 or later periods,
but the Group has not early adopted them:

° HKAS 1 (Revised), ‘Presentation of
financial statements’ (effective from 1
January 2009). The amendment
requires all owner changes in equity
to be presented in a statement of
changes in equity. All comprehensive
income is presented in one statement
of comprehensive income or in two
statements (a separate income
statement and a statement of
comprehensive income). It requires
presenting a statement of financial
position as at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period in a
complete set of financial statements
when there are retrospective
adjustments or reclassification
adjustments. However, it does not
change the recognition, measurement
or disclosure of specific transactions
and other events required by other
HKFRS. The Group will apply HKAS
1 (Revised) from 1 January 2009.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M wERNE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. EREFHEBE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 mEEE(E)
(d) Standards, amendments and (d) 177K 4 24 i 2N 5 B ) 4 12 B R
interpretations to existing standards that ZER - (EFTREBE BRI 2
are not yet effective and have not been (&)

92

early adopted by the Group (continued)

e HKFRS 2 Amendment “Share-based
Payment Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations” (effective from 1
January 2009). The amendment
clarifies the definition of “vesting
conditions” and specifies the
accounting treatment of
“cancellations” by the counterparty to
a share-based payment arrangement.
Vesting conditions are service
conditions (which require a
counterparty to complete a specified
period of service) and performance
conditions (which require a specified
period of service and specified
performance targets to be met) only.
All “non-vesting conditions” and
vesting conditions that are market
conditions shall be taken into account
when estimating the fair value of the
equity instruments granted. All
cancellations are accounted for as an
acceleration of vesting and the
amount that would otherwise have
been recognised over the remainder
of the vesting period is recognised
immediately. The Group will apply
HKFRS 2 Amendment from 1 January
2009, but it is not expected to have
any impact on the Group’s accounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R EE

2. EXBHHERE @

21 BBEE(E)
(@) 10K AE XL Ty AN 5 (B T A 52 7 R A

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(d) Standards, amendments and

interpretations to existing standards that
are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (continued)

HKFRS 3 (Revised) “Business
Combination” (effective for business
combinations with acquisition date on
or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting period beginning on
or after 1 July 2009). The amendment
may bring more transactions into
acquisition accounting as
combinations by contract alone and
combinations of mutual entities are
brought into the scope of the standard
and the definition of a business has
been amended slightly. It now states
that the elements are “capable of
being conducted” rather than “are
conducted and managed”. It requires
considerations (including contingent
consideration), each identifiable asset
and liability to be measured at its
acquisition-date fair value, except
leases and insurance contracts,
reacquired right, indemnification
assets as well as some assets and
liabilities required to be measured in
accordance with other IFRSs. They
are income taxes, employee benefits,
share-based payment and non current
assets held for sale and discontinued
operations. Any non-controlling
interest in an acquiree is measured
either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquiree’s net identifiable
assets. The Group will apply HKFRS
3 (Revised) from 1 January 2010.
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2. EXRBHEHERE &)

21 REEE (B)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(d) Standards, amendments and (d) IR 4 XX 7K 5 B JF 1 R A
interpretations to existing standards that ZER - (EFTREBE BRI 72
are not yet effective and have not been (&)

94

early adopted by the Group (continued)
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HKAS 23 (Amendment), ‘Borrowing
costs’ (effective from 1 January 2009).
The amendment requires an entity to
capitalise borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a
qualifying asset (one that takes a
substantial period of time to get ready
for use or sale) as part of the cost of
that asset. The option of immediately
expensing those borrowing costs will
be removed. The Group will apply
HKAS 23 (Amendment) from 1
January 2009 but is currently not
applicable to the Group as there are
no qualifying assets.
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2. EXRBHEERE &)

21 REEE (E)
(d) 10K TN EE IR FERA

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(d) Standards, amendments and

interpretations to existing standards that
are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (continued)

HKAS 27 (Revised) “Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements”
(effective from annual period beginning
on or after 1 July 2009). The
amendment requires non-controlling
interests (i.e. minority interests) to be
presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within
equity, separately from the equity of
the owners of the parent. Total
comprehensive income must be
attributed to the owners of the parent
and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit
balance. Changes in a parent’s
ownership interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in the loss of control are
accounted for within equity. When
control of a subsidiary is lost, the
assets and liabilities and related equity
components of the former subsidiary
are derecognised. Any gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss. Any
investment retained in the former
subsidiary is measured at its fair value
at the date when control is lost. The
Group will apply HKAS 27 (Revised)
from 1 January 2010.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2. ERETHERE »

21 RBEE(E)

96

(d) Standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards that
are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (continued)
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HKFRS 8, ‘Operating segments
(effective from 1 January 2009).
HKFRS 8 replaces HKAS 14 and
aligns segment reporting with the
requirements of the US standard SFAS
131, ‘Disclosures about segments of
an enterprise and related information’.
The new standard requires a
‘management approach’, under which
segment information is presented on
the same basis as that used for
internal reporting purposes. The
Group will apply HKFRS 8 from 1
January 2009. The expected impact
is still being assessed in detail by
management, but it appears likely that
the number of reportable segments,
as well as the manner in which the
segments are reported, will change in
a manner that is consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. As goodwill
is allocated to groups of cash-
generating units based on segment
level, the change will also require
management to reallocate goodwill to
the newly identified operating
segments. Management does not
anticipate that this will result in any
material impairment to the goodwill
balance.
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2. EXRBHEERE &)

21 REEE (E)
(d) 10K TN EE IR FERA

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(d) Standards, amendments and

interpretations to existing standards that
are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (continued)

HK(FRIC) - Int 14, ‘HKAS 19 - The
limit on a defined benefit asset,
minimum funding requirements and
their interaction’ (effective from 1
January 2008). HK(IFRIC) - Int 14
provides guidance on assessing the
limit in HKAS 19 on the amount of
the surplus that can be recognised
as an asset. It also explains how the
pension asset or liability may be
affected by a statutory or contractual
minimum funding requirement. The
Group will apply HK(IFRIC) - Int 14
from 1 January 2008, but it is not
expected to have any material impact
on the Group’s financial statements.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(e) Interpretations to existing standards that
are not yet effective and not relevant for
the Group’s operations
The following interpretations to existing
standards have been published and are
mandatory for the Group’s accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January
2008 or later periods but are not relevant
for the Group’s operations:

e HK(IFRIC) - Int 12, ‘Service
concession arrangements’ (effective
from 1 January 2008). HK(IFRIC) - Int
12 applies to contractual
arrangements whereby a private
sector operator participates in the
development, financing, operation and
maintenance of infrastructure for
public sector services. HK(IFRIC) - Int
12 is not relevant to the Group’s
operations because none of the
Group’s companies provide public
sector services.

o HK(IFRIC) - Int 13, ‘Customer loyalty
programmes’ (effective from 1 July
2008). HK(IFRIC) - Int 13 clarifies that
where goods or services are sold
together with a customer loyalty
incentive (for example, loyalty points
or free products), the arrangement is
a multiple-element arrangement and
the consideration receivable from the
customer is allocated between the
components of the arrangement using
fair values. HK(IFRIC) - Int 13 is not
relevant to the Group’s operations
because none of the Group’s
companies operate any loyalty
programmes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and
all its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the
Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than
one half of the voting rights. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that
are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the
Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date that control ceases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. ERETHERE »

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)
(a) Subsidiaries (continued)

22 REKRAE (B)
(a) W& A (5)

The purchase method of accounting is
used to account for the acquisition of
subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the fair value of
the assets given, equity instruments issued
and liabilities incurred or assumed at the
date of exchange, plus costs directly
attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date,
irrespective of the extent of any minority
interest. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the
Group’s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost
of acquisition is less than the fair value of
the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in the
income statement. (Note 2.7(a))

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less provision for impairment losses.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted
by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2

2.3

2.4

Consolidation (continued)

(b) Transactions and minority interests
The Group applies a policy of treating
transactions with minority interests as
transactions with parties external to the
Group. Disposals to minority interests result
in gains and losses for the Group that are
recorded in the consolidated income
statement. Purchases from minority interests
result in goodwill, being the difference
between any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and
operations engaged in providing products or
services that are subject to risks and returns
that are different from those of other business
segments. A geographical segment is engaged
in providing products or services within a
particular economic environment that are subject
to risks and returns that are different from those
of segments operating in other economic
environments.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M wERNE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(b) Transactions and balances (continued)

(c)

Translation differences on non-monetary
items, such as equity instruments held at
fair value through profit or loss, are
reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary items, such as equities classified
as available-for-sale financial assets, are
included in the fair value reserve in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component
of equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group companies (continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments,
are taken to shareholders’ equity. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in the income
statement as part of the gain or loss on
sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in the
income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M wERNE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 5-10%
Leasehold improvements 20%
Office furniture and equipment 18%-25%
Plant and equipment 9%-25%

Motor vehicles 18% - 25%
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposal are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised within other gains/
(losses) — net, in the income statement.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not
occupied by the companies in the consolidated
Group, is classified as investment property.

The cost of an investment property comprises
its purchase price and any costs directly
attributable to bringing the property to its
intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R MR

2. EXRBHEERE &)

26 BEWE(B)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Investment properties (continued)

After initial recognition, investment property is
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate cost of the investment
property over its estimated useful lives, as
follows:

Buildings 5%

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the
asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in
the income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-
occupied, it is reclassified as property, plant
and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M wERNE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. EXREHBEHRE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.7 Intangible assets 27 BREEE
(a) Goodwill (a) BHE

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost
of an acquisition over the fair value of the
Group’s share of the net identifiable assets
of the acquired subsidiary at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of
subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.
Separately recognised goodwill is tested
annually for impairment and carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses.
Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal
of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units for the purpose of impairment testing.
The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or Group of cash-
generating units that are expected to
benefit from the business combination in
which the goodwill arose.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

nvj\

CLEE B

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.7 Intangible assets (continued)
(b) Brand name and customer list

(c)

Acquired brand name and customer list are
shown at historical cost. Brand name and
customer list have a finite useful life and
are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate
the cost of brand name and customer list
over their estimated useful lives (2-5 years).

Software development costs

Acquired software development costs are
capitalised on the basis of the costs
incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives
(five years).

Costs associated with developing or
maintaining computer
programmes are recognised as an expense
as incurred. Costs that are directly
associated with the development of
identifiable and unique software products
controlled by the Group, and that will
probably generate economic benefits
exceeding costs beyond one year, are
recognised as intangible assets. Costs
include the employee costs incurred as a
result of developing software and an
appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

software

Computer software development costs
recognised as assets are amortised over
their estimated useful lives.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M wERNE

2. EXRBHEHERE &)

28 REMBLAARFEHMEENRE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries

and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortisation, which are at least tested
annually for impairment and are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. Assets are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R MR

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. EXREHBEHRE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Financial assets 29 EWMEE
The Group classifies its financial assets in the AEBBESREESIER  BAT
following categories: financial assets at fair value Bt AR EBEZeMmEERE R
through profit or loss, and loans and receivables. NEWHKIE - pEBUARKESRE
The classification depends on the purpose for EsEHN EEERVITHEREETE
which the financial assets were acquired. ESmEELHE  YRERERHARA
Management determines the classification of its BT HBHERTE -

financial assets at initial recognition and re-
evaluates this designation at every reporting

date.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through (a) ERFEGTAZFKEER 26
profit or loss BE
Financial assets at fair value through profit BRAFEFARNSEER 2/
or loss are financial assets held for trading. BEDREEENCSREE ° W
A financial asset is classified in this WEEEREHASE - BIR
category if acquired principally for the HRDE - RIFTETRREE
purpose of selling in the short term. HHA% B -TEITAESE
Derivatives are classified as held for trading RISIEEE - WHAZEEED
unless they are designated as hedges. HERREBEE -

Assets in this category are classified as
current assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M wERNE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. EXREHBEHRE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.9 Financial assets (continued) 29 eWMEE (&)
(b) Loans and receivables (b) BEFKEKFIE

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12
months after the balance sheet date. These
are classified as non-current assets. Loans
and receivables are included in trade and
other receivables and cash and cash
equivalents in the balance sheet (Notes
2.11 and 2.12).

Regular purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date —
the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised
at fair value, and transaction costs are
expensed in the income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables
are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R MR

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Financial assets (continued)
(b) Loans and receivables (continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair value of the 'financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss' category are
presented in the income statement within
‘other (losses)/gains - net', in the period in
which they arise. Dividend income from
financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss is recognised in the income
statement as part of other income when
the Group's right to receive payments is
established.

The fair values of quoted investments are
based on current bid prices. If the market
for a financial asset is not active (and for
unlisted securities), the Group establish fair
value by using valuation techniques. These
include the use of recent arm's length
transactions, reference to other instruments
that are substantially the same, discounted
cash flow analysis and option pricing
models, making maximum use of market
inputs and relying as little as possible on
entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e mRMNEE

2. ERETHERE »

2107 E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials and direct labour. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.

2.11 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A
provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be
able to collect all amounts due according to
the original terms of the receivables significant
financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that
the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation and default or delinquency in
payments are considered indication that the
trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the
provision is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the assets is reduced through the
use of an allowance account, and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the income
statement within administrative expenses. When
a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for trade
receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against
administrative expenses in the income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. EXRBHEERE &)

2NBEERBELEEY

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-
term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown as
borrowings under current liabilities on the
balance sheet.

2.13 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.14 Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

2.15Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Transaction
costs are incremental costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition and issue of
borrowings including fees and commissions paid
to agents, advisers, brokers and dealers, levies
by regulatory agencies and securities
exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at
amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M wERNE

2. EXRBHEHERE &)

2158 K (&)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Borrowings (continued)

The fair value of the liability portion of convertible
preference shares issued by a subsidiary is
determined using a market interest rate for an
equivalent non- convertible preference shares.
This amount is recorded as a liability on an
amortised cost basis until extinguished on
conversion or on maturity. The remainder of the
proceeds is allocated to the equity component
and is included in shareholders’ equity, net of
income tax effects.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

2.16 Current and deferred income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date
in the countries where the company and the
Company’s subsidiaries operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation and
established provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the
tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R EE

2. EXRBHEERE &)

21ICEHRELEFRESHR (B)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using
the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, if
the deferred income tax arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not
accounted for. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

2.17 Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision, where appropriate,
is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.
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2. EXRBHEHERE &)

217 EEER (B)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Employee benefits (continued)

(b) Pension obligations (b) BRIk EHIF

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme (the “Pension Scheme”)
set up pursuant to the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of
the Pension Scheme. The assets of the
Pension Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently
administrated fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed to the Pension Scheme,
except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the
Group when the employee leaves
employment prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, in accordance with the rules
of the Pension Scheme.

The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as
an employee benefit expense when they are
due and are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a
cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

In addition, pursuant to the government
regulations in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”), the Group is required
to contribute an amount to certain
retirement benefit schemes based on
approximately 7% to 20% of the wages
for the year of those employees in the PRC.
The local municipal government undertakes
to assume the retirement benefits
obligations of those employees of the
Group. Contributions to these retirement
benefits schemes are charged to the
income statement as incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Employee benefits (continued)

(c)

(d)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates two equity-settled,
share- based compensation plans. The fair
value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed over the vesting
period is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options granted, excluding
the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and
sales growth targets). At each balance
sheet date, the entity revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected
to become exercisable. It recognises the
impact of the revision of original estimates,
if any, in the income statement, and a
corresponding adjustment to equity over
the remaining vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited
to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium when the options are exercised.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an
expense for bonuses and profit-sharing,
based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.
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2. EXRBHEHERE &)

2.18 8B 15

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is more likely than not
that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

2.19 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods and services in the ordinary course of
the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of
value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts
and after eliminating sales within the Group.
Revenue is recognised as follows:

(a) Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when a
Group entity has delivered products to the
customer, the customer has accepted the
products and collectibility of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition (continued)
(b) Sales of services

(c)

Services are provided on a transaction
basis or as a fixed-price contract, with
contract terms generally ranging from less
than one year to seven years.

Revenue from transaction contracts is
recognised at the contractual rates as
services are delivered and direct expenses
incurred.

Revenue from fixed-price contracts is
recognised using the stage of completion
method, measured by reference to the
agreed milestones of work performed and
is shown after eliminating sales within the
Group.

If circumstances arise that may change the
original estimates of revenues, costs or
extent of progress toward completion,
estimates are revised. These revisions may
result in increases or decreases in
estimated revenues or costs and are
reflected in the income statement in the
period in which the circumstances that give
rise to the revision become known by
management.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.
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2. EXRBHEHERE &)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition (continued) 219 AR (&)

(d) Lease income — finance lease

Lease income under finance lease is
recognised over the term of the lease using
the net investment method, which reflects
a constant periodic rate of return. When
assets are leased out under a finance
lease, the present value of the lease
payments is recognised as a receivable.
The difference between the gross
receivable and the present value of the
receivable is recognised as unearned
finance income.

(e) Lease income — operating lease
Lease income under operating lease is
recognised over the term of the lease in a
straight line basis.

2.20 Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) are
expensed in the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.

2.21 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at
their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all the attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to the purchase of
property, plant and equipment are deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset. The grant
is recognised as income over the life of a
depreciable asset by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.
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'[/ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Research and development

Research expenditure is expensed as incurred.
Costs incurred on development projects (relating
to the design and testing of new or improved
products) are recognised as intangible assets
when it is probable that the project will be a
success considering its commercial and
technological feasibility, and costs can be
measured reliably. Other development
expenditures are expensed as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an
expense are not recognised as an asset in a
subsequent period.

2.23 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Group'’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders.

2.24 Comparatives
Where necessary, comparative figures have
been reclassified to conform with changes in
presentation in current year.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group’s operations are subject to special
considerations and significant risks. These
include risks associated with, among others,
the political, economic and legal environment
and competition in the industry.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) and Hong Kong.
The exchange rate of Renminbi to HK
dollars is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government. At
present, the Group does not have any
financial instruments for hedging purposes.

Foreign exchange risk arises when future
transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities are denominated in a
currency that is not the entity’s functional
currency. The executive Directors are
responsible for managing the net position
in each foreign currency.

commercial

The Group'’s foreign currency transactions
are mainly denominated in Renminbi
(“RMB”), Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”) and US
dollar (“USD”). The majority of assets and
liabilities are denominated in RMB, HKD
and USD, and there are no significant
assets and liabilities denominated in other
currencies. The Group is subject to foreign
exchange rate risk arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised
assets and liabilities which are
denominated in a currency other than HKD.
The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. The Group
manages its foreign currency risk by closely
monitoring the movement of the foreign
currency rates.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. MBARERE w
(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BKEREE (&)
(i)  Foreign exchange risk (continued) (i) JMERPEE (&)
The carrying amount of the Group’s and REBERARRREEE BN
the Company’s foreign currency B ENEBEEREKAERD
denominated monetary assets and FREBEET :

monetary liabilities at the respective
balance sheet dates are as follows:

Group Company
AEE ¥ /N
As at 31 December As at 31 December
Rt+t=-—A=+-—H R+t=-—A=+—H
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELE —TIERF ZEBELE —ITETRF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Assets BE
RMB AR 647,860 161,244 - -
Usb ETT 196,385 152,832 64,720 429
EUR B 78 949 - - -
Liabilities 8E
RMB AR 328,525 94,509 - -
Usb ETT 242 86 - -
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(i)  Foreign exchange risk (continued)

The following table shows the sensitivity
analysis of a 5% increase/decrease in HKD
against other foreign currencies. The
sensitivity analysis includes only foreign
currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the year end for

3. MKEMER ®

3.1 MEEBREE (&)

() SMERE B (&)
TRERNBTHEMINEFE
BESHHIBERE DN « Z AT
ERFENIINEHENEKIER -
F R EEINE[E R EB) 5%
FRME o WATE HEMmINEF
B, B2 B5% + A ¥ F &% F &

a 5% change in foreign currency rates. If FEWMT
HKD strengthens/weakens by 5% against
the other foreign currencies, the effect on
the profit for the year is as follows:
Group Company
& N
2007 2006 2007 2006
—E2ELtFE —TTERF ZEBELFE TITRF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FHER FHETT FER FABT
RMB AR
Decrease/increase in profit 4 €& 5k 2~
for the year 3N 15,206 3,178 - -
USD ETT
Decrease/increase in profit 4 & & K JE 4
for the year # 0 9,340 7,274 3,082 20
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities
price risk because the Group has publicly
traded equity investments classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. To manage its price risk arising
from investments in equity securities, the
investment portfolio is continuously
reviewed and carefully monitored in
accordance with the limits set by the
executive Directors.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in
relation to its trade and other receivables,
and cash deposits with banks.

The carrying amounts of trade and other
receivables, restricted cash, cash and cash
equivalents represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to financial assets.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit risk (continued)

To manage this risk, deposits are mainly
placed with state-owned financial institutions
and reputable banks which are all high-credit-
quality financial institutions. The Group has
policies in place to ensure that sales are
made to reputable and credit-worthy
customers with an appropriate financial
strength, credit history and appropriate
percentage of down payments. It also has
other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews
regularly the authorisation of credit limits to
individual customers and recoverable amount
of each individual trade receivables to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts.

The Group has concentration of credit risk.
Sales of goods and services to the top
five customers constituted 46% of the
Group’s turnover for the year ended 31
December 2007.

Liquidity risk

With prudent liquidity risk management, the
Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and
cash equivalents and ensure the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of
available financing, including short-term bank
loans. Due to the dynamic nature of the
underlying businesses, the Group’s finance
department maintains flexibility in funding by
maintaining adequate amount of cash and
cash equivalents and flexibility in funding
through having available sources of financing.

3. MKEMER ®

3.1 MBEBRREE (&)

(iii)

(iv)
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. MBARERE w
(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BKEREE (&)
(iv) Liquidity risk (continued) (iv) nBEZERE (&)

The table below analyses the Group’s non- TEREBEEEAR THEZEEGL
derivative financial liabilities into relevant FERBS - BAEERIELT
maturity grouping based on the remaining SRS REMBEAMA
period at the balance sheet date to the Al e ZERFIBBENSEREG LR
contractual maturity date. The amounts BRIRIA SR - HRITEBEMFET
disclosed in the table are the contractual AR+ ZE A W?'Jﬂﬁﬂ,\\nﬁ%
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due MEERERMmA

within 12 months equal their carrying
balances, as the impact of discounting is
not significant.

Between  Between
Less than 1 and 2 2and 5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total
PR-F —-FEZF ZFE2IF IFHUL At
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET TAET TET TAET FET

At 31 December 2007 RZEZELF

+-ZA=1+—H
Borrowings & & 42 551 - - - 42 551
Trade and other payables BRI K

H i 508 288,653 12,836 - - 301,489
Total @t 331,204 12,836 - - 344,040
At 31 December 2006 RZZEERF

+-R=+—H
Borrowings EE 7,000 - - 22,485 29,485
Trade and other payables [ 1 BR 3t J% H 4t JE& £+

MR 115,469 1,813 - - 117,282
Total Bt 122,469 1,813 - 22,485 146,767
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

v)

Interest rate risk

The Group

The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates. The
Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets, except for cash placed with banks.
The Group’s exposure to changes in
interest rates is mainly attributable to its
borrowings. Borrowings at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk. As at year end, all borrowings were
at fixed rates.

The Group analyses its interest rate
exposure on a dynamic basis. Various
scenarios are simulated taking into
consideration refinancing, renewal of
existing positions, alternative financing and
hedging. Based on these scenarios, the
Group calculates the impact on profit and
loss of a defined interest rate shift. For
each simulation, the same interest rate shift
is used for all currencies. The scenarios
are run only for liabilities that represent the
major interest-bearing positions.

The Group currently does not use any
interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure
to interest rate risk. However, the Group
will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. BKRARER &)

(continued)

3.2 Capital risk management 32 BEXxEER

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings
divided by total equity.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.2

3.3

Capital risk management (continued)
The gearing ratios at 31 December 2007 and
2006 were as follows:

3. MKEMER ®
32 EXRRERE (&)
R-ET+ER-_TEAF+_A=
+—BRzEXEBEBELERDOT :

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—H
2007 2006
—EELFE _—ZTTXREF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FABT
Total borrowings (Note 29) B BEE (Ha29) 42,551 29,485
Total equity 48 7 1,100,860 679,672
Gearing ratio mBEEX 0.04 0.04

Fair value estimation

The nominal value less impairment provision of
trade receivable and payables approximate their
fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities
for disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows
at the current market interest rate that is
available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.

The fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of the Group is based on
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date
without any deduction for transaction costs.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING

ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the
consolidated financial statements are evaluated and
based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
may have a significant effect on the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are discussed below.

(a) Income taxes and deferred taxation
Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such
difference will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provision in the period in which
such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that
future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences or tax losses
can be utilised. The outcome of their actual
utilisation may be different.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING

ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(continued)

(b) Contract revenue recognition
According to the accounting policies of fixed-
price contracts as stated in note 2.19, the
Group uses the “percentage of completion
method” to determine the appropriate revenues,
costs and work-in-progress (“WIP”) to be
recognised in a given period. The stage of
completion is measured by reference to the
service performed and accepted by the
customers up to the balance sheet date as a
percentage of total services to be performed.

Upon applying the percentage of completion
method, the Group need to estimate the gross
profit margin of each contract, which was
determined based on the estimated total
contract costs and total contract sum. If the
actual gross profit margin of each contract
differs from the management’s estimates, the
contract cost and WIP to be recognised within
the next year will need to be adjusted
accordingly.

In addition, the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that there were no expected losses,
where the estimated total contract costs exceed
the total estimated contract revenue, and
needed to be recognised in the income
statement.

(c) Impairment of receivables
The executive Directors determine the provision
for impairment of trade and other receivables
based on the credit history of its customers
and the current market condition. The executive
Directors reassess the provision at each balance
sheet date.

132 HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2007

RS AET R E @

(b)

(c)

BRB AR

REBEEERERNSERE (K
E2.19%R) - AEERB KR ESD
X BEAEXBREIREAREROE
BWA - RANERTRE ° ST R
DEBEEERIIDETIERPE
MEIRTS - (HERETRBEENE D

Lt E o

EERATIBEOLAR  AKERZE
Bt EERMENE - RRGAFAR
BRANERBEBRE - WESA
FANERENXEEEENMRT T
[ P FERRBNE RKAMER
TRETEFELBEFE -

o - KRB EER R - AT AL EIE
KMEHEREKRABBGESAR
BN BRI R P ER

& W KRB
HWTEFENETPMEECHENLAR
1T - B TE FE WO SR M EL ftb J MR
R ERE HTESNEEER
B EEE -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(continued)

(d) Estimated value of the intangible assets,

(e)

except for goodwill, acquired on business
combinations

The fair value of the intangible assets, except
for goodwill, acquired on business combinations
is estimated by applying the discounted cash
flows method. The Group makes significant
assumptions of the useful life and future
economic benefits flowing from the intangible
assets based on available latest financial
information, business potential and plans, and
recent market information of industry and sector
performance.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has
suffered any impairment, in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in note 2.7(a). The
recoverable amount of the cash generating units
(CGUs) in the electronic power meters and
solutions group have been determined based
on the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value-in-use. The recoverable amounts of the
CGUs of other segments have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates (Note
17).
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5. TURNOVER, OTHER GAINS AND 5. BX¥ - HtWA RS EEH
SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Group is principally engaged in the sales of AEBMNTEEKAHEEARTES -
information technology products, provision of IBEEKBEERE  RBREZEHRGTZAN
business process operation services, provision of ERRE  URBMRFELEERE -
information system consultancy and integration REXNDHEINLEBREMKALT :

services, and information technology operation value-
added services. Turnover and other gains recognised
during the year are as follows:

For the year ended

BEFEL
2007 2006
—EELtE —ZTITX
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAET
Turnover -
Sales of goods HEE M 464,706 197,843
Provision of business process RREBEERS
operation services 12,282 1,521
Provision of information system REEMREZREAR
consultancy and integration services & K IR 7% 93,607 168,174
Information technology operation BB EEEE
value-added services AR 7% 207,959 105,584
Rental income Hal A 1,051 -
779,605 473,122
Other gains H b W 2%
Interest income B WA 9,303 4,831
Gain on deemed disposal of 20% BRIEEE —KM B R T Z220%
equity interest in a subsidiary (Note 34) A& ¥ 2 Wz (a2 34) 43,258 -
Gain on disposal of financial assets HERAFET ARFK
at fair value through profit or loss EEzMEEN K 43,101 59,727
Dividend income on financial assets BEAFE AnfkEE
at fair value through profit or loss ZLEREEREBA 672 -
Fair value gain on financial assets BATFE AR EE
at fair value through profit or loss ZeMmEEAFEKS 6,155 2,699
Tax refund R 5,357 -
Finance lease income mEAERA - 111
Other income H b A 5,570 991
113,416 68,359
Turnover and other gains EETE R EAM RS 893,021 541,481
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5. TURNOVER, OTHER GAINS AND
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Primary reporting format — business segments
The Group is organised into six main business
segments:

(@) Electronic payment products and services —
sales of electronic fund transfer point-of-sale
(“EFT-POS”) terminals;

(b) Information technology operation value-added
services — provision of Interactive Voice
Response (“IVR”) services;

(c) Telecommunication solutions, services and
related products — provision of information
system consultancy and integration services and
sales of information technology products to the
telecommunications industries;

(d) Financial solutions, services and related
products — provision of information system
consultancy and integration services and sales
of information technology products to financial
institutions and banks;

(e) Business process operations — provision of
outsourcing services to financial institutions and
banks with payment solutions, such as
automatic teller machines (“ATM”); and

(f)  Electronic power meters and solutions —
manufacturing and sales of electronic power
meters, data collection terminals and provision
of information system consultancy services.

There are no sales or other transactions between
the business segments.
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5. TURNOVER, OTHER GAINS AND 5. EX# - Htk AR D EEH
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) (%&)
Primary reporting format — business segments FTEEHAN-¥BI28(E)
(continued)
The segment results for the year ended 31 December ﬁﬁ_ggtiﬂ':ﬂ =t+—HILEFEZ
2007 and segment assets and liabilities at 31 DEESLE RRZ_ZEZTEF+—A=+—
December 2007 and capital expenditure for the year AZHMEERABEREBEZFEZEAR
then ended are as follows: AT :

Information Telecom-
technology  munication Financial
Electronic operation solutions, solutions,

payment value- services and  services and Electronic
products added related related power
and services products products Business  meters and

services EANE ERfR SRER process  solutions
Exf BEEE  FR B AR BHE  operations EFREHX  Unallocated Group
ERRES % LEBER REBER £HEE  REARE OB iS4
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TEn TEn TER TEn TiEn TEn TiEn TER

Turnover EEE 323,143 207,959 2,851 111,847 12,282 120,472 1,051 779,605
Other gains, net AthzFE - - - - - - 113,416 113,416
Segment results HERE 62,890 113,144 2,360 (8,106) (6,236) 1,1 53,802 219,565
Finance costs BERK (2,797) (2797)
Profit before income tax BAEHAET 216,768
Income tax expense A (24,247)
Profit for the year Ema 192,521
Segment assets PEEE 351,438 209,711 4,150 199,715 51,962 467,346 206,423 1,490,745
Seqment liabities SEAE (115208)  (14,247) (3060)  (30.413) - (160664) (57273 (389,885)
Other segment information: EtpBER
Depreciation of property, n%- BERRENE

plant and equipment 1,425 9,309 - 1,786 8,752 4,540 217 26,029
Depreciation of investment property REMENE - - - - - - 117 177
Amortisation of leasehold land %ﬁ‘*iﬁﬂ%f#} 5 - - - - 148 760 913
Amortisation of intangible assets ﬂﬁ/ﬁﬁﬁ - - - - - 2,892 - 2,802
Recovery of bad debts - - - - - (1,140) - (1,140)

Write-back of provision for impairment of ﬁ ”& ﬁﬁ FRBERREE

trade receivables - - (2,330) (566) - - - (2,896)
Provision for impairment of trade receivables B E R & 730 - - 14 - - 67 811
Write-back of provision for obsolete BOREGERE

inventories - - (591) (211) - - - (802)
Write-off of inventories FEHE 1,419 - - - - 2,149 - 3,568
Loss on disposal of property, plant LENE HERRGBESR

and equipment - - - - - 3,039 190 3,229
Capital expenditure EREY 607 3,895 - 3,446 24,878 215,193 283 248,302
Note: B &t
In prior years, the Group reported revenues generated from EEF AREERZ SRBRTR - R RAEMRE
business process operations in the financial solutions, services mEBDERESHER @ EE WA -
and related products segment.

In 2007, the Group has reorganised the business segments such R-TZELF  AEEEEZEBHEBINHEBRE
that revenues generated from business process operations has BEEZIA -

been shown separately.
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5. TURNOVER, OTHER GAINS AND 5. X HMWARSEER
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) (#8)
Primary reporting format — business segments FEEHRAIXN-EKSE(E)
(continued)
The segment results for the year ended 31 December HE-ZERFT_A=1T—HLFEN
2006 and segment assets and liabilities at 31 DRESE R_ETEXF+_A=+—H
December 2006 and capital expenditure for the year WO BHEERBEREEZFENE AR
then ended are as follows: YT
Information Telecom-
technology ~ munication Financial
Electronic operation solutions, solutions,
payment value-  services and  services and
products added related related
and services products products Business
services AR BN ERER process
BEFIH EEEE HE-RE  HERH  operatons  Unallocated Group
ERRRH k% REEER RABER ¥KBEE FAE rEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TAR FAR TAL TAR FAR TAL
Turnover BEE 197,843 105,584 5,221 162,953 1,621 - 473,122
Other gains, net EBaFE - - - - - 68,359 68,359
Segment results PEEE 30,081 41,950 2,649 35,157 (4,246) 43,454 149,045
Finance costs BERA (3,803) (3,808)
Profit before income tax R EBATE M 145,242
Income tax expenses FERAT (11,642) (11,642)
Profit for the year FREF 133,600
Segment assets BEE 151,158 127,136 1,398 206,986 33,675 326,857 847,110
Segment liabilties HEBRE (68,422) (27,026) (3,828) (37,142) - (31,0200 (167,438)
Other segment information: HtHEEH .
Depreciation of property, plant %% BERRERE
and equipment 1,413 7,739 - 2,504 1,261 172 13,089
Depreciation of investment property RENEME - - - - - 8 8
Amortisation of leasehold land RELmsH 5 - - - - 31 36
Write back of provision for impairment EYEFRERERR
of trade receivables - - (1,623) - - - (1,523)
Provision for impairment of ERET R ERE
trade receivables 897 - - 369 - - 1,266
Write-off of inventories 3t ¢ 1,504 - - - - - 1,504
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, LENE  BERZE
plant and equipment (k%) /BB (1) (10) - (18) - 11 (18)
Capital expenditure YN 1,502 11,165 - 121 34,192 36,086 83,066

i\
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

5. TURNOVER, OTHER GAINS AND 5.
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Secondary reporting format — Geographical
segments

The Group’s six business segments operate in two
main geographical areas:

Mainland China — electronic payment products and
services, information technology
operation value-added services,
telecommunication solutions,
services and related products,
financial solutions, services and
related products, business
process operations, and
electronic power meters and

solutions
Hong Kong, — electronic payment products and
South East services, financial solutions,
Asia and services and related products,
others and electronic power meters and
solutions

There are no sales or other transactions between
the geographical segments.
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Segment Total Capital
Turnover results assets expenditure
e DEEE EEHLE EXEX
2007 2007 2007 2007
“EELE —EELF —EELF —EELF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TERT TER TERT
Mainland China B K 698,518 166,707 1,104,553 247,965
Hong Kong, South East Asia A FEIEREM
and others 81,087 (908) 179,769 337
779,605 165,799 1,284,322 248,302
Other gains, net, unallocated HEmlmF8E KO0 113,416
Unallocated expenses AOBMHAX (59,650)
Operating profit 4 2R 219,565
Unallocated assets AN EE 206,423
Total assets EEBE 1,490,745
Unallocated capital expenditure 7k ) B & ANBI 2 -
Total capital expenditure EENGRE L 248,302
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5. TURNOVER, OTHER GAINS AND 5, X - HUW AR EER
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) (#8)
Secondary reporting format — geographical REEFHFA-HESE (B)
segments (continued)
Segment Total Capital
Turnover results assets expenditure
EER ECES EEMBE VNG
2006 2006 2006 2006
—EEREF —ETREF —ETREF —EERF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FHT FAT FHEL FHEL
Mainland China B K BE 363,082 99,649 262,833 46,966
Hong Kong, South East Asia 54 REEREM
and others 110,040 5,942 257,420 14
473,122 105,591 520,253 46,980
Other gains, net, unallocated HtWEF8E KOk 68,359
Unallocated expenses ROBMHAX _ (24,90)
Operating profit & 2R A 149,045
Unallocated assets KO EE 326,857
Total assets EEBE 847,110
Unallocated capital expenditure 7k 7 Bt & AN B 2 36,086
Total capital expenditure BERAZ B 83,066
Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant DEEETERRDE  BELEHE - £
and equipment, intangible assets, land use rights, WEE - TiEAE 78 BRFEK
inventories, receivables and operating cash. They LERG HHEETBRERELEFMSHE
exclude deferred income tax assets. E e
Segment liabilities consist primarily of operating SHBEEXE FJ%E.L,\%\ AT BEER
liabilities. They exclude deferred income tax liabilities EFEHBERENAEH
and income tax payable.
Capital expenditure comprises additions to leasehold EXARTBEEHEHELM  WE BEK
land, property, plant and equipment (Notes 15 and 16) FfE (MisE15k16) REFEE (MFE17) &9
and intangible assets (Note 17), including additions RNE  BREBRBEBSE O (M5E35) £1TI
resulting from acquisitions through business BEARNARE -

combinations (Note 35).
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T B | 5
wh 1 i~ =]

EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling expenses
and administrative expenses are analysed as follows:

6. AHEEEDHMX
REERA - HEMR RITHBIX AL
M M

2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Auditor’s remuneration % SR B & 3,406 1,894
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BEREZETE 26,029 13,089
Depreciation of investment property KEMERE 177 8
Amortisation of leasehold land & £ i 5H 913 36
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE#H 2,892 -
Employee benefit expense (including Directors’ EERNAX (BRES
emoluments) (Note 8) &) (Fats) 182,060 100,641
Costs of inventories sold EHHFEEKAR 292,872 147,246
Operating lease rentals for land THREFZ EHE
and buildings HEHES 10,664 9,379
Operating lease rentals for equipment HECEXEHERS 11,161 9,348
Research and development costs Bt 7t X A B8 pK AR 13,832 7,224
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEWE  BELEE
plant and equipment EiE (k) 3,229 (18)
Provision for impairment of trade receivables & WS BR SO E B 1 811 1,266
Write-back of provision for impairment of JiE LT BR SR B B 1
trade receivables 24l (2,896) (1,523)
Recovery of impaired receivables U B 5 AR (1,140) -~
Write-off of inventories 5 &8 i 85 3,568 1,504
Write-back of provision for obsolete inventories — #[EI & & 17 & B & (802)
Refund of value-added tax BEBER (1,829) (1,097)
7. NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE LOSS 7. 9|‘E7¥EE
The net foreign exchange loss recognised in the RERE W& P R INEFEET AR
consolidated income statement included as BHE_TTELFTA=T—BLFED
administrative expenses for the year ended 31 THRHEY - #2,224,0008 T (ZZEZ X
December 2007 amounted to HK$2,224,000 (2006: %F 1,736,000 7C) °

HK$1,736,000).
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8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 8. EERAFAX (BEEEM=)
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS)
2007 2006
ZEELFE —ZEZTRHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH& T
Wages and salaries TERE® 138,204 87,455
Social security costs g IREK A 7,941 5,987
Employee share option schemes — EEEREE —
value of employee services for ERTEBRENES
share options granted (Note 24(c)) RIS (EE (Hfat24(c)) 27,616 2,387
Pension costs — defined contribution plans BREKAE-RE
(Note (a)) G &l (Bt (a) 8,299 4,812
182,060 100,641
Note: Bfat -
(a) Pensions — defined contribution plans (a) EBHRE-REHRGE
Contributions totalling HK$10,228,000 (2006: 4 $£10,228,0008 TR (Z T TR F -
HK$8,696,000) were payable to the fund at the year end. 8,696,000 7T) ARFHRNFFTES
No contribution was forfeited during the year (2006: Nil). FRAUBEBERERZR (ZETF &) -
(b) Directors’ emoluments (b) EEME
There was no arrangement under which a Director waived FAVBRESHELIREREEAHE LT H
or agreed to waive any emolument during the year (2006: (ZEERF: &) o
Nil).
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8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (continued)

Note: (continued)

(b) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
The directors’ emoluments for the year are equivalent to
key management compensation. The remuneration of every

8. BEERFAX (BEEEMS)

(#8)

Hiat o (&)

(b) EEM< (B
FRESHMLSHERTZETEBNEE - BF
—ZT+HF+ A=+ HULFE SRES

Director for the year ended 31 December 2007, is set out MEemT -
below:
Employer’s
contribution
to pension
Discretionary scheme
Fees Salary bonus EEXMEKSE Total
Name of Director IR e e ML FEIRR A
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TET TER TER TER TET
Executive Directors HTEE
Cheung Yuk Fung REE 360 - - 12 372
Kui Man Chun FER - 1,200 2,000 12 3,212
Xu Wensheng BNE - 847 1,000 12 1,859
Li Wenjin EyE - 840 2,000 12 2,852
Chan Yiu Kwong (Note (i) BRI (Fif & (i) - 885 600 12 1,497
Xu Chung Jun #e® - 665 1,000 12 1,677
360 4,437 6,600 72 11,469
Independent Non-Executive
Directors BUkHTES
Tam Chun Fai ERE 60 - - - 60
Leung Wai Man, Roger 2ER 60 - - - 60
Xu Sitao FEE 60 - - - 60
180 - - - 180
540 4,437 6,600 72 11,649

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2007




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R MR

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 8. EEGFMX(BRESMHE)
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ (#8)
EMOLUMENTS) (continued)
Note: (continued) Wat o (&)
(b) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (b) EEME (B
The remuneration of every Director for the year ended 31 BE_TZXF+_A=1+—"BHILFE 84
December 2006 is set out below: EEMEnmT
Other benefits -

Share options (Note (i))
Hinfafl - BIRE (M)
Employer’s Value of
contribution services for
to pension  share options

Discretionary scheme granted
Fees Salary bonus EXMEKE ERLBERE Total
Name of Director ESHA ne g WA HEMR WREBEEEB BH
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK’000 HK$'000
TRET THT FHET TR TR TRET
Executive Directors HITES
Cheung Yuk Fung REE 360 - - 12 - 372
Kui Man Chun REF - 808 - 12 287 1,057
Xu Wensheng ®BE - 603 - 12 237 852
Li Wenjin FNE - 608 800 12 237 1,657
Chan Yiu Kwong (Note (i) BRAB (BiaE (i) - 888 600 12 72 1,572
Xu Chung Jun "EE - 505 - 12 237 754
Lo Siu Yu (Note (i) BT (B3 (i) - 441 - 10 237 688
Zhou Jian (Note (v)) R (W5 (v) - - - - - -
360 3,853 1,400 82 1,257 6,952
Non-Executive Director FYTES
Liu Yangsheng, Charles (Note (i) 21122 (#f3E(iv) 35 - - - - 35
Independent Non-Executive BYFYTES
Directors
Tam Chun Fai EiRE 60 - - - - 60
Leung Wai Man, Roger ZER 60 - - - - 60
Xu Sitao HFEE 60 - - - - 60
180 - - - - 180
575 3,853 1,400 82 1,257 7,167
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8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (continued)

Note: (continued)
Directors’ emoluments (continued)

(b)

Note:
(i

(if)

(ifi)

(iv)

On 26 September 2005, 17,500,000 share options
were granted to certain Directors at an exercise price
of HK$0.768 per share (the average closing price of
the shares as quoted in the daily quotations sheets
issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
for the five business days immediately preceding 26
September 2005) with an expiry date of 25
September 2015. The exercisable period of the
options commenced on 26 September 2005 and
expires 10 years thereafter. Options granted are
vested as follows:

On 26 September 2005
On 26 September 2006

Up to 50%
Up to 100%

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 28 June
2006, each of the existing issued and unissued
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital
of the Company was subdivided into four ordinary
shares of HK$0.0025 each (the “Share Subdivision”),
which was approved by the shareholders of the
Company and became effective on 29 June 2006.

The Share Subdivision has led to an adjustment to
the exercise price of the outstanding options and
the number of shares to be issued by the Company
upon exercise of the outstanding options. For share
options granted to Directors with exercise period from
26 September 2005 to 25 September 2015, the
number of shares to be issued by the Company upon
full exercise of such options has been increased from
17,500,000 shares to 70,000,000 shares and the
exercise price has been adjusted from HK$0.768 to
HK$0.192 per share.

Mr. Chan Yiu Kwong has resigned as Director of the
Company on 3 December 2007.

Mr. Lo Siu Yu has resigned as director of the
Company on 18 October 2006.

Mr. Liu Yangsheng, Charles, has resigned as non-
Executive Director of the Company on 17 April 2006.

8. BEERFAX (BEEEMS)

(&)

fat - ()

(b)
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8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (continued)

Note: (continued)
(b) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
(v) Mr. Zhou Jian has resigned as director of the
Company on 20 November 2006.

(c) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year did not include any Director (2006:
four). The emoluments payable to the remaining five (2006:
one) individual during the year are as follows:

8. BEERFAX (BEEEMS)

(%)

fat - (#)
(b) EBMS (B
(v) BAREER-_ZERF+-—A-+AHE
ERRBESE -

) BEBBFAL
AEEAFERLREFALREOEAME
E(CETAF NR) c AFEENBTES
(CBEAE —B)ALZMERFIMT -

2007 2006
—EELHF ZETRF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMREWMNE 1,084 2,020
Value of services for share options granted EERLERENREGER 26,267 -
Pension cost RIS KA
- defined contribution plan —RAEH-REE 24 12
27,375 2,032
The emoluments fell within the following band: Bl F T AR
Number of individuals
A
2007 2006
Emolument band i < 48 Bl —EELHF —TER
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7T — 2,500,0007% 7T - 1
HK$2,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 2,500,001 JT — 5,000,0007% 7T 3 -
HK$5,000,001 — HK$7,500,000 5,000,001/ JT — 7,500,0007% 7T 2 -
5 1
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9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MEMRA
2007 2006
—EBEtLtE -—ZTERE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHETT
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts RITERRBEZHNE 2,464 2,069
Interest on financial liability portion of convertible — S B A &) % 17
preference shares issued by a subsidiary RREERVEAERE
(Note 27(a)) Bz ME (Hatz7(a) 333 1,734
2,797 3,803
10.INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FR 8RB XX
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate A AR 1F 10 I8 & DA G A 14 51 B AR B 8 Al
of 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable MEAT 5% (ZFEERF : 175%) 51 E -
profit for the year. Taxation on overseas profits has SVEFI TR IBRIAF AfE T ERBUE R - 1%
been calculated on the estimated assessable profit AEBEEMEBERERNTETE o
for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.
2007 2006
—EBELE Z—TTAREF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHETT
Current income tax WP S 18
- Hong Kong profits tax —BAMEHIE - 3,100
- Overseas taxation — FINFLIE 25,625 8,542
Deferred income tax (Note 30) EIEFTS B (M1 a2 30) (2,258) -
Underprovision in previous year EFEEETR 880 -
Income tax expense Fr8 i = 24,247 11,642
PRC taxation has been provided on the profits of AEBEEHERTEEENHBARMG
the Group’s subsidiaries operating in the PRC and wmAE R R IEE L EE - Wik33% (ZF
subject to Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) at a rate of TRF  33%) CMEHBEREMSEH ([
33% (2006: 33%), unless preferential rates are X¥MBRIFE  BREEBIEREEIN -
applicable.

146 HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2007

il




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R MR

10.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10. RSB B X )

i\

The subsidiaries in the PRC enjoy tax concessions
made available to Foreign Investment Enterprises and
Foreign Enterprises. Pursuant to the Income Tax Law
of the PRC concerning Foreign Investment
Enterprises and Foreign Enterprises, the subsidiaries
in the PRC are subject to tax rate and tax
concessions as follows:

PEMELTNTANECERNELE
BBEE - REGMNECERINECY
ZHhEMERE  ARECHBATTA
BERRBEEMOT

Applicable Year of tax
Name of subsidiaries tax rate exemption/relief
S NI BABR R FABBHE AR
Hangzhou Hualong Information Technology
Company Limited 15% 2004 to 2008
MMEREE FRMERAF —EENFEE_FTENEF
Pax Technology (Shenzhen) Limited 15% 2004 to 2008
BEAE#EMN ORI BRAF —TEEMFETT)\F
Beijing Hi Sun Advanced Business Solutions
Information Technology Limited 15% N/A
tREEeEELRMARRA A i A
Beijing Hi Sunsray Information Technology Limited 15% N/A
IReGERREERMAERA A A iE B
On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the RZEZELF=ZA+T B FTEZEA

Tenth National People’s Congress passed the
Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic
of China (the “New CIT Law”) which will take effect
on 1 January 2008. From 1 January 2008, the
income tax rate for the operating subsidiaries
mentioned above will be gradually changed to the
standard rate of 25% over a five-year transition
period. According to the Circular 39 passed by the
State Council on 26 December 2007, the tax
exemption and reduction will be terminated latest by
2012. The Group has assessed the impact of the
change and consider the financial effect on the
change in tax rate does not have material and
significant effect to the accounts.

RRRAGFAREZEBR _TTN\F
—A—HBRITOCFEARKMBELEME
BOR) ([FEEMREBED - R —TENF
—A—RE  LEEWNBRRBRAF
BERAZRTEE /R ERER25% - RIF
BHEER —_ZTLEFT AT/ BEB
H) Bl % (2007139 SRABAN - FRIAF % KRl
PREBN_-_FT—_F&IE - AEEDF
HUBEEHNTE  RANEEHI I Y
REELEBEAMNBEMBEE -
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10. FR S8 X ()

10.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The new tax rate of 25% has been applied in the R BEEERZEMNBRAINR T LF
measurement of the Group’s deferred tax at 31 TZA=T—HWMEERIBERDERIH
December 2007 in respect of these subsidiaries. K 25% o

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax AEBBRASHRA RN 2 HEHEKA

175% 2 BBEARE(ZZTEZEARF
175%) stEZEmESBEERIWT ¢

differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
using the applicable tax rate in Hong Kong of 17.5%
(2006: 17.5%) as follows:

2007 2006

—EEBLFE ZZZEEEREF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FER FAT

Profit before income tax B BT 15 B¢ A& A 216,768 145,242
Calculated at a taxation rate of 17.5% TR EAT. 5%(_ ETRF .

(2006: 17.5%) 17.5%) 5T & 37,934 25,417
Effect of different taxation rates in other countries ~ Efh B R 1~ [A i K Hy 57 & (6,981) (2,477)
Effect of tax holiday %M%E?EHEZ B (8,611) (2,284)
Income not subject to taxation HBARB B A (17,472) (4,513)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes ARG mME IR 14,189 3,270
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses ®ABAERER 2 HIBEE (539) (7,870)
Unrecognised tax losses AERTIEEE 4,847 99
Underprovision in previous year EFEEETR 880 -
Income tax expense P13 15 24,247 11,642

11. (LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE 1.2 7 Eﬁ%ﬁ*@‘ﬁ (E5#8)
TO THE EQUITY HOLDERS OF /7 A
THE COMPANY
The loss attributable to equity holders of the RAaEREB ARILEE2461,0008 T
Company is dealt with in the financial statements of (ZZEZTRF & 155,064,000/ 7T) A A
the Company to the extent of HK$2,461,000 (2006: RNAIMBEWMERER -
profit of HK$55,064,000).

12. DIVIDENDS 12. R 2

No dividend has been paid or declared by the
Company during the year (2006: Nil).
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13.8REF
(a) EX

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by
dividing the profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company by the weighted average

BREXRBNDRAAREZFTE A
FEAE 4 R BR F A E 1T & AN F
BHEE -

number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year.

For the year ended
31 December
BE+t-A=+—HLEE
2007
—E2tF —TTX

Profit attributable to equity holders PANYNEIE - XS RIN

of the Company (HK$’000) JFE 5% M (F&TT) 184,276 133,600
Weighted average number of ordinary shares EETERRMNETHH

in issue (thousands) (Note) (F8&) (K7at) 2,050,870 1,606,721
Basic earnings per share (HK$ per share) ERERZFN (FRET) 0.090 0.083

(b) Diluted
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by
adjusting the number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all
potentially dilutive shares. The Company has
two categories of potentially dilutive shares:
convertible preference shares issued by
subsidiaries and share options. The convertible
preference shares issued by subsidiaries are
assumed to be converted into ordinary shares
of the Company and the net profit is adjusted
to eliminate the interest expense less the tax
effect. For the share options, a calculation is A RFTEZROEEB HHEBRER
done to determine the number of shares that EETEREEEITZRMHEE L
would have been acquired at fair value B o
(determined as the average market share price
of the Company’s shares during the current year)
based on the monetary value of the subscription
rights attached to these outstanding share
options. The number of shares calculated as
above is compared with the number of shares
that would have been issued assuming the
exercise of the share options.

(b) #F
SHREERN VR A BB BEEE
Befn 2 Rk A B E 1T E B A
itE e KRB ZBEEERD D AW
B MBRRBIT AT MEREER R
A - (B AREIT 2 AT RAE L
BREBEREERRARREER - ¥E
BRI DAY S A B R ST INBR RS
B-BRESE  REKRITERBRE
I RBERCEREBENE  UEE
ARAFEE/SRNRARNDAER
ZFHmE)BEZRNOHBAE - HE

BB (PE)ERAT —22LEFH 149




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M wERNE

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 13. 8 EBF )
(b) Diluted (continued) (o) #F (&)

For the year ended
31 December
BEZ+-A=+—HLEFE
2007 2006
—BBLFE —TTAF

Profit attributable to equity holders ZANYNESIY EE RN

of the Company (HK$’000) FE 5% A (F&TT) 184,276 133,600
Interest expense on convertible preference —XMBARIETLZ

shares issued by a subsidiary Al R R AE S AR T B

(Note 9) (HK$’000) M (BfaF9) (FH&T) 333 1,734

Profit used to determine diluted earnings

REEEERETRNZ

per share (HK$’000) @ A (FETT) 184,609 135,334
Weighted average number of ordinary shares EETERRMNE
in issue (thousands) T E (TR 2,050,870 1,606,721
Adjustments for BTN SIEEL '
— assumed conversion of convertible —REEBH B A A
preference shares issued by subsidiaries BITZ AT AR
(thousands) 18 5 i (T A%) 124,799 138,206
— share options (thousands) —ERE (F1%) 40,619 178,314

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

HESRESRT Y

for diluted earnings per share 5 AR N A
(thousands) FHE (FR) 2,216,288 1,923,241
Diluted earnings per share (HK$ per share) BERESERN (BRAET) 0.083 0.070
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14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. RE W
Group Company
E b NN
Buildings Buildings
B BF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT
At 1 January 2006 R-BEXE—-H—H
Cost B R - -
Accumulated depreciation R E - -
Net book amount R FE - -
Year ended 31 December 2006 BE-ZEZXRF+=H
=+—HILEE
Opening net book amount Y BREFE - -
Additions NE 3,548 5,157
Depreciation e (8) (11)
Closing net book amount B AR DR 1E 3,540 5,146
At 31 December 2006 R-BEARF+=-A=+—H
Cost B AR 3,548 5,157
Accumulated depreciation REHE (8) (11)
Net book amount FREFE 3,540 5,146
At 1 January 2007 R=-ZEELtHE—-—H—H
Cost B AR 3,548 5,157
Accumulated depreciation REtinE (8) (11)
Net book amount REFE 3,540 5,146
Year ended 31 December 2007 BE-_ZZtH+=A
ET-HLEHFE
Opening net book amount B BREF B 3,540 5,146
Depreciation e (177) (258)
Closing net book amount B BREF B 3,363 4,888
At 31 December 2007 R-EBEZELtF+=-AR=+—H
Cost (DN 3,548 5,157
Accumulated depreciation REHE (185) (269)
Net book amount FREFE 3,363 4,888
Fair value (Note below) NYEE HFHT) 3,627 5,128
Note: Bt -

BE-ZZAHF+-_A=+—H0 uRdxmEEE
ERETHRRMBAEIS1TR I REMEZ AFE
B BBEIEXSERMGEMRRAEENGLERE
RAR - BRIERT S 2RITEBMEE -

The fair value of the investment properties located at 1t 5 i /&
TR BRI 6757 R #0AE 15-1742 as at 31 December 2007 was
assessed by the independent and professionally qualified valuer,
Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited based on current prices in
an active market.

e <
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14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(continued)
Interests in investment properties at their net book
values are analysed as follows:

14. B EY % @)

BREMEERRERFEIMOT

Group Company
rEH ARTF
2007 2007
—EERLF ZBELHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FTHER
Outside Hong Kong, held on: BABEIN -

Leases of between 10 to 50 years 102 S0FEHLFE 3,363 4,888
The following amounts have been recognised in the NESWNEERERZEBUOT
consolidated income statement:

Group Company

rEH ARTF

For the For the

year ended year ended

31 December 31 December

BEt+t=-R BZEt=A

=+—H =+—H

LFE LtEFEE

2007 2007

—EEtE ZEBETLHF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FER THET

Rental income Hael A 1,051 -
Direct operating expenses arising HRESWAZEEY

from investment property that FTEEEE 2
generated rental income (1,014) -

There were no direct operating expenses arising from
investment property that did not generate rental
income during the year.

The period of leases whereby the Group or the
Company leases out its investment property under
operating leases ranged from 1 to 2 years.
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14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. B EY ¥ @)
(continued)

At 31 December 2007, the future aggregate minimum RZFEZELF+A=+—8 BRELH
rentals receivables under non-cancellable operating BIEGEHN 2 R REERIHESEFEN

leases are as follows: o
Group Company
rE b NN
2007 2007
—EELE ZEBELHE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FER
Not later than 1 year —F R 561 -

Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years —®F A F1BERHF R - -
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15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND 15. 9% - MERRZE
EQUIPMENT
Group
A&EE
Office
furniture
and
Leasehold equipment Plant and Motor
Buildings  improvements N equipment vehicles Total
B HEXE RARRHE HBERRE RE A3t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FET TEL FET TEL
At 1 January 2006 R-ZBEXE-H-H
Cost AR 5,786 6,698 42,043 740 5,695 60,962
Accumulated depreciation BiME - (6,492) (12,821) (381) (3,508) (23,202)
Net book amount REFE 5,786 206 29,222 359 2,187 37,760

Year ended 31 December 2006 HZ=-ZEAF+=f

=+-HLEE
Opening net book amount BOEEEE 5,786 206 29,222 359 2,187 37,760
Exchange differences EXEE 233 7 1,839 17 73 2,169
Additions NE 1,609 1,080 45,476 231 744 49,140
Disposals (Note 31(b)) HeE (B #31(b) - - 24 (45) - (21)
Depreciation e (668) (370) (11,183) (162) (706) (13,089)
Closing net book amount BAEHZE 6,960 923 65,378 400 2,298 75,959
At 31 December 2006 R-BEXE+ZA=t—H
Cost AR 7,643 5,383 88,712 998 6,438 109,174
Accumulated depreciation Zithe (683) (4,460) (23,334) (598) (4,140) (33,215)
Net book amount REFE 6,960 923 65,378 400 2,298 75,959

Year ended 31 December 2007 HZ=-ZEZ+F+ =4

=St-ALFE

Opening net book amount BURETE 6,960 923 65,378 400 2,298 75,959
Exchange differences ERESR 1,869 62 5,160 761 424 8,276
Additions RE - - 30,632 819 2,680 34,131
Acquisition of subsidiaries g1 =pNG

(Note 35) (1 5£35) 43,923 - 6,525 19,772 6,489 76,709
Disposals (Note 31(b)) HE (Bfa31(b) (3,732) - (57) - (440) (4,229)
Depreciation e (1,631) (252) (20,711) (1,820) (1,615) (26,029)
Closing net book amount BAEHZE 47,389 733 86,927 19,932 9,836 164,817

At 31 December 2007 RZEZtE+=ZA=+-H

Cost AR 48,712 5,459 133,086 22,464 15,620 225,341
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (1,323) (4,726) (46,159) (2,532) (5,784) (60,524)
Net book amount EEFE 47,389 733 86,927 19,932 9,836 164,817
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15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT (continued)

Depreciation expense of HK$17,116,000 (2006:
HK$6,072,000) has been expensed in cost of sales
and HK$8,913,000 (2006: HK$7,017,000) in
administrative expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2006, the
Company acquired leasehold land, building and
investment property from Beijing Hi Sun Electric Power
Information Technology Limited, a connected person
and a related company of the Company, at a total
consideration of RMB34,500,000 (Notes 16 and 36).

As at 31 December 2007, bank borrowings are
secured on buildings with a total net book amount
of HK$18,845,000 (2006: 5,354,000) (Note 29).

e R R MR

15. 9% - BERSZE @

FEMZH 17,116,000 70 (Z T ZT /N4 -
6,072,000 70) ERNEEKXAANZIH 0 &
8,913,000 7L (ZZEZF /N4 : 7,017,000
T RITHRAX 8 -

BHE_ZZXF+-A= + BIEFE -
ARABAARRZ —REAEQRFBEER
it?%ll%%‘ﬁ%&mg,%\%;‘zmiﬁﬁﬁﬁaﬁuﬁzﬁﬁ
HELH  BFREREVE  BREAA
R # 34, 500,0007T (Kf7E16536) °

F\_gg‘t¢+ A= ‘f— H - fETTTETJ\
J5 LA BR T 48 % {8 /& 18,845,000/ T 2 1 F

R (T T X4 : 5,354,000/ 1) (M

F£29) o
Company
¥ NN
Office furniture and equipment
MAERARSEE
HK$’000
:F/% JC
At 1 January 2006 R-ZEBAF-A—H
Cost BN 12
Accumulated depreciation 2t e (8)
_ Netbookamount ~__ ___ FEEFE . __ 4
Year ended 31 December 2006 BEZE_ZZE X XF+-A=+—HLFE
Opening net book amount HIY) R F A 4
Depreciation e (3)
_ Closing net book amount FAMREFE L _______ 1
At 31 December 2006 R-ZEXF+=-A=+—H
Cost X A< 12
Accumulated depreciation Rt e (11)
_ Netbookamount —__ ____ FBEFE . ______ 1
Year ended 31 December 2007 BEZE_2Z+tH+_-A=+—-RALFE
Opening net book amount B9 BR EDF 1B 1
Depreciation ne (1)
_ Closing net book amount __ ___ FRBRERE L ________ .
At 31 December 2007 R-Z2TtH&+=-A=+-—H
Cost N 12
Accumulated depreciation Rt E (12)
Net book amount REFE -

i\
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16.LEASEHOLD LAND 16.FHE 1 b
The Group’s interests in leasehold land represent AEERHETHOERAERERLE
operating lease prepayments and their net book MHFRIE - AREFEI BT -

amounts are analysed as follows:

Group Company
& ¥ NN
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EEtHF —ETRE —EELE —EERF
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTHER TAET FERT FHET
Outside Hong Kong, held on: BAEI -
Leases of between 10 to Z10E50%F 7
50 years HOKE 44,032 30,595 30,378 30,378
Amortisation BiERY (655) (36) (791) (31)
Net book amount REFE 43,377 30,559 29,587 30,347
The movement of the net book amount for leasehold MEITHH  REFEZESHNT -
land is as follows:
Group Company
xE ¥ NN
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELE ZEERF —EELF ZEERF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTHER FAT TAERT FEL
Net book amount at beginning ~ F ¥R F(E

of year 30,559 208 30,347 -
Additions (Note (a)) NE (Bt (a) - 30,378 - 30,378
Acquisition of a subsidiary g AUy = NE]

(Note 35) (K #%35) 17,448 - - -
Amortisation B (913) (36) (760) (31)
Disposal (Notes 31(b)) HE (H:31(b) (4,240) - - -
Exchange difference bE N E%E 523 9 - -
Net book amount at end of year FE R F(E 43,377 30,559 29,587 30,347
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16. HE T ib (@)
(a) BE-_ZTZTNEF+-_A=+—HItF
B ARARARAZ —RBEHF
BEARILRSMEE AT NE BRI
BRARWELA AL RHEER B K
FOTIRIFE R E1S-17TE 2 W - &
R E AR #34,500,0007T (f17£36) °

16. LEASEHOLD LAND (continued)

(@) During the year ended 31 December 2006, the
Company acquired the property located at 1t
REE R B K67 IRE A E 15-171 from a
related company and a connected person of
the Company, Beijing Hi Sun Electric Power
Information Technology Limited, at a total
consideration of RMB34,500,000 (Note 36).

UG B8 AX AN B 5 9 % 1K {8 34,500,000/
7T K& BE B 481,035,000 70

Acquisition costs including the consideration of
the property of HK$34,500,000 and direct costs
of HK$1,035,000 are as follows:

Group Company

rE b NN

2006 2006

—BERE Z—ZBEAE

HK$'000 HK$’000

FAT FAET

Leasehold land ME LT 30,378 30,378
Property, plant and equipment Y- BEREZE

- building —BF 1,609 -

Investment property wEYE 3,548 5,157

35,535 35,535
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178 EE —F&H

Capitalised

software

development

Customer costs
Goodwill Brand name list ERZTERZ Total
BE mEER EFEE RUBEEAXE g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TERL TER TERL TERL

17.INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP

HE-EZtE+-fA=1-H

Year ended 31 December

2007 LEE
Opening net book amount HNEEFE - - - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 35) WEEN B A R (H13135) 91,770 4120 4,120 20,004 120,014
Exchange difference EREE 4137 126 148 711 5,122
Amortisation charge BT - (858) (344) (1,690) (2,892)
Closing net book amount HARREFE 95,907 3,388 3,924 19,025 122,244

At 31 December 2007 R-EE+tE+-A=1+-H

Cost KAE 95,907 4,246 4,268 20,715 125,136
Accurnulated amortisation and impairment ZEEERAE - (858) (344) (1,690) (2,892)
Net book amount RRFE 95,907 3,388 3,924 19,025 122,244

Impairment tests for goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash-generating
units (CGUs) identified according to business
segment. As at 31 December 2007, goodwill is solely
allocated to the electronic power meters and
solutions in the mainland china.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated
growth rates stated below. The growth rate does
not exceed the long-term average growth rate for
the electronic meters and solutions business in which
the CGU operates.
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17.INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP

(continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill (continued)

The key assumptions used for value-in-use
calculations are as follows:

Gross margin 30-44%
Growth rate 15-45%
Discount rate 15%

Management determined budgeted gross margin
based on past performance and its expectations for
the market development. The weighted average
growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts
included in industry reports. The discount rates used
are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the
relevant segments.

During the year, no intangible asset was considered
impaired by the management.

178 EE - XE8 @®»

&R E R (&)
EREEFEEIARBEARBERAT

EHE 30-44%
# R & 15-45%
W= 15%
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18.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. A I /B Ag ZREREW A

AND DUE FROM/(TO) (FEAS) Bt 1B A Bl FRIR
SUBSIDIARIES
Company
b NN
2007 2006
—BELE ZEBEERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FET
Unlisted investments, at cost FELEMEE AR 4,136 4,136
Due from subsidiaries Jr& W B J8 2~ B FRIAR
(Note below) (2 TXHat) 757,929 100,822
762,065 104,958
Due to a subsidiary & — MY B A B 3RIE
(Note below) (R FXHtat) (35,535) (21,035)
726,530 83,923
Note: Bfat -
The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free, and MBRARIZEREHAEELT  2ERRERE
repayable on demand. fF o
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18.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

18. FWE@EZEE&EL&/

.

AND DUE FROM/(TO) (FEAS) Bt 1B A Bl FRIE ()
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at RZEZLF+_A=+—H FEWES
31 December 2007: NEIZBEWMT
Particulars
Place of Principal activities of issued
incorporation and and place of share capital/ Interest
Name type of legal entity operation registered capital held
o 8 B 3L 3t B TEEBR BITRE
£ REEERER EEE AMERFE P&
R&EGEEEEARMERAR PRC, limited liability Provision of financial HK$100,000,000 100%
(Beijing Hi Sun Advanced company and banking 100,000,000/ 7T
Business Solutions Information HE  BRAA solutions and
Technology Limited) services in the PRC
ERERESERRT
BARFTRRRH
tReBERRE LM PRC, limited liability Provision of HK$80,000,000 100%
BRAA company telecommunication 80,000,0005% 7T
(Beijing Hi Sunsray Information HE - BRAA solutions, services,
Technology Limited) related products and
information technology
operation value-added
services in the PRC
EHBEREE
BRRZE - HEI‘F‘&
HEEDNURER
MEESEERY
Emerging Technology Limited The British Virgin Investment holding 7,692,308 ordinary 100%
(“Emerging Technology”) Islands (“BVI”), in PRC shares of US$1 each
limited liability TERENYE 7,692,308/ F R E (B
company REER 1EZETZEBR
RERUES
BRAA
Hi Sun (BVI) Limited BVI, limited liability Investment holding in 2 ordinary shares of 100%
company Hong Kong and PRC US$1 each
EBELES EEBRPH RBREBEIET
BERAR REREER AR
Hi Sun Development Hong Kong, limited Provision of 2 ordinary shares of 100%
Management Limited liability company management services HK$1 each
EGEREEEERAR "5 BRAR in Hong Kong RERMEVET
EERRHEEERY EgElq
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18.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. RMIB ARz REREW
AND DUE FROM/(TO) (FEAY) Bfff B 2 R FRIE ()

2

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars
Place of Principal activities of issued
incorporation and and place of share capital/ Interest
Name type of legal entity operation registered capital held
B AR Y TEEER BRTRE/
=X REEERER EXNH AMERFE ks
Hi Sun Technology Holding Limited Bermuda, limited Provision of financial 168,070,000 ordinary 100%
SE R ERER AR liability company services and related shares of HK$0.1
BEE BRAA products in each
Hong Kong 168,070,000
EEBRESA SREBEAET
R RERER 2 EEK
Pax Technology Limited Hong Kong, limited Sale of electronic 35,000,000 ordinary 100%
BERBEBERAR liability company payment products shares of HK$1 each
7% BRAR and services in 35,000,0000% Bk A E
Hong Kong 1B T2 EBR
EERHEEFXNM
& m KR
Turbo Speed Technology Limited BVI, limited liability Investment holding 35,897,440 ordinary 100%
(“Turbo Speed”) company in PRC shares of US$0.1 each
EBRAES ETBEREREZK 35,897,440M% & R E (B
BRAA 01Xz E®BR
BREAERRNCRIDBRAF PRC, limited liability Sale of electronic HK$50,000,000 100%
(Pax Technology (Shenzhen) company payment products 50,000,000 7T

Limited)

Max Hero Group Limited

hE - ARAA

BVI, limited liability

and services

in the PRC
EHRBEHEESET

THERRRE

Investment holding

1 ordinary share of US$1  100%'

company in Hong Kong 1REEIET W
EBEXES  ARAT EEBUREREER
New Concept Services Limited BVI, limited liability Investment holding 100 Ordinary share 95%'
company in PRC of US$1
EBEXES  BRAT EHBEREREER 100REE1ET 2 @R
Hangzhou PAX Electric PRC, limited liability Investment Holding RMB27,500,000 100%
Technology Limited company in PRC AR #27,500,0007T

MHNBEEE N RMBR AR
(formerly known as

“Hangzhou Baifu Holding
Company Limited”)
(RIBIMMEEERERAF])

FE - ARAA
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18.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. RIB AR ZRERER
=] =% e
AND DUE FROM/(TO) (FEAY) fif BB 2 R FRIE ()
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Particulars
Place of Principal activities of issued
incorporation and and place of share capital/ Interest
Name type of legal entity operation registered capital held
o il AR 3L 3t B TEEBR BRITRA
8 REEERER X HZMELRFS ST £
Pacific Sheen International Limited Hong Kong, limited Investment Holding HK$3,900,000 100%
BB AR A A liability company in PRC 3,900,0007 7©
ER - ARAA EHBEREREER
Hangzhou Hualong Electronic PRC, limited liability Manufacturing and sales  RMB50,000,000 100%
Technology Company Limited company of electronic power AR #50,000,0007T
MMERSFREMERAA HE  BRAA meters and provision
of management
HFERHEEEFAER
NRRHER
Hangzhou Hualong Information PRC, limited Design of electronic RMB3,400,000 100%
Technology Company Limited liability company power meters in AR #3,400,0007T
MMEREERMBRAA RE - BERARA the PRC
EHRERAEFAERR
Hangzhou Fushun Information PRC, limited liability Properties Holding US$3,500,000 100%
Technology Company Limited company in PRC 3,500,000% 7T
MMNEIREBRMABR A A hE BRAF ERBEBENE
Perfect Ally Investments Limited Samoa, limited liability Investment Holding Us$1.00 100%
company in Hong Kong 1.00% T
EEDHE  ARDA EEBURERERR
1 Shares held directly by the Company. ! KAREEFBEZRD -
i)
19.INVENTORIES 19.%8
Group
rE
2007 2006
—EELF Z—ZZTITRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FABT
Raw materials R+ 39,005 7,339
Work in progress £ 5 36,782 5,589
Finished goods 2K 62,794 15,624
138,581 28,552

i\
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19.INVENTORIES (continued) 19. 7 & @
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and BRAEMAI KT AHEHEK AN TFEKANE
included in cost of sales amounted to 292,872,000 ;t (= & & X F
HK$292,872,000 (2006: HK$147,246,000). 147,246,000% 7T) °
20. TRADE AND OTHER 20 BRI R HAb FEW R IE ~ T8
RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS TRERES
AND DEPOSITS
Group Company
£ %E KD
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EZLHE —TEREF —EELE —EERF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TAET THERT TAET
Trade receivables (Note (a))  FEUER X (KY 77 (a)) 250,962 120,603 - -
Bills receivables (Note (b)) JEW 1R (KBi7E (b)) 95,403 9,617 - -
Finance leases receivables BMEE L EWERR
(Note (c)) (Kt (c) - 720 - -
Less: provision for impairment J&  [i& W Bk 7R &
of receivables (Note (d) BiE (i) (1,615) (4,318) - -
344,750 126,622 - -
Prepayments, deposits and B FHIE « B Rk
other receivables H fth & U 511 60,798 12,454 485 382
405,548 139,076 485 382
Note (a): Trade receivables Mtat(a) - FEYBEK
The Group’s credit terms to trade debtors range from 0 to 180 TEBRTESFIESANEEHHETE180H T -
days. At 31 December 2007 and 2006, the ageing analysis of REZEZLFR_ZTRNFT+_A=+—H ' EKE
the trade receivables was as follows: RZEwRDWWT -
Group
rEE
2007 2006
—EZtHF ZEERF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEx FHET
Current to 90 days BIHR= 90H 186,567 107,834
91 to 180 days 91H ZE 180H 25,456 6,774
181 to 365 days 181% 365H 14,278 3,519
Over 365 days 365H A 24,661 2,476
250,962 120,603
The Group’ sales are made to several major customers and there $‘§ EZHENRNSEETEZRPELAGEESFRE
is concentration of credit risks. Collections of outstanding o REBMTEZ R WA E BB RIESRE I
receivable balances are closely monitored on an ongoing basis | o AR EEEERR

to minimise such credit risk.
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20. TRADE AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS
AND DEPOSITS (continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Note (b): Bills receivable

The balance represents bank acceptance notes with maturity dates
within six months.

Group

The maturity profile of the bills receivable of the Group is as
follows:

20. EWEBRR R HAbEUNFRIE ~ T8

NREREZES #)

BHERRENEEERAHEREEERIFRSHE
BOETBILER - ERNURTREFNEGE  ZBHF
FERRBEAEEREL At BUGRIBETE A B -
ERBAEHZERTATTERDRELEE - A%
BRFAEMZERIGRIBSSRNIERR o

KiaE () © K ER
ZAERIE I E B R NE A AR IRIT A LESR o

A&

FEBREKREENDHRROT -

2007 2006

iy ZETRF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

Falling within 90 days A 90H A 2| 30,212 9,617
Falling within 91 to 180 days RO1E180H A 2 A 65,191 -
95,403 9,617

As at 31 December 2007, the Group’s bills receivable amounting
to HK$10,550,000 (2006: Nil) were pledged to banks for short-
term borrowings (Note 29).

RZZZ+HF+-F=+—H A&%E[E10,550,000/%
FT(ZBERF  Bn) MEREBEEHEM FRTAR
5
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20. TRADE AND OTHER 20 EWRERR R HAMLEWFTE » T
+= £ o
RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS RREREE @®
AND DEPOSITS (continued)
Note (c): Finance leases receivables Biat(c) - B & T4 FE UL AR K
Group
E
2007 2006
—EFLE —EERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Current receivables IR B W KB
Gross receivables from finance leases: RLETH A R WBR SR AR -
Not later than 1 year TER—F - 729
Unearned future finance income on finance leases B E M AR BREAY R R BB WA - (9)
Net investment in finance leases RIERNIRE FHE - 720
The net investment in finance leases is RERNREFESTAT -
analysed as follows:
Not later than 1 year TER—F - 720
Note (d): Provision for impairment receivables Bt aE(d) © JE M sk B R (8
The movement on the provision for impairment of receivables FERFEREREZSHOT

are as follows:

2007 2006
—ZTELF —ETXRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
At 1 January n—A—H 4,318 10,831
Write-back of provision o B (2,896) (1,523)
Provision recognised in income statement AU 5 2 W R R B 811 1,266
Receivables written-off during the year as uncollectible 4 P/ & #ift $5 &9 71~ 7] Uiz [B] JiE U 7% 18 (749) (6,477)
Exchange differences EHER 131 221
At 31 December w+=-—A=+—8H 1,615 4,318
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date in the THREHE EERRNSsRBRER LIMSHEE
fair value of each class of receivable mentioned above. The Group WHRIENAFE NEBETHEEMNEAERNEKT

does not hold any collateral as securities. o e
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21.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR 21. BAFEFABNHEEZ2E
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR MEE-AFEBERAXRAT
LOSS —- GROUP AND COMPANY
2007 2006
—EEtLtE —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHEIT
Listed securities: EmESF
- Equity securities — PRC N - 41,281
— Equity securities — Hong Kong — AT E BB 34,488 -
34,488 41,281

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are presented in operating activities as part of
changes in working capital in the consolidated cash
flow statement (Note 31).

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recorded as other gains -
net in the consolidated income statement (Note 5).

The fair value of all equity securities is based on
their current bid prices in an active market.

BRAFEFARZFRBREBZEREEDIR
BES D EEH (MHEE31) »
BAFEFAGFEBIEZEREEQAT
EEPIRAGAEKRSIRCHB AL MK FE
(Pt 5£5) °

FERAES 2 AT ENERERTSZ
RITEAETE -
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22.RESTRICTED CASH 22.ZREBRE
Group Company
r5HE b /N
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EEtLE CZTTRF —ETtE ZTERF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FET TR FET
Restricted bank deposit Z R FIRITIER 7,500 - 7,500 -
The effective interest rate on restricted bank deposits ZREIRITEFROERFNER2.745%  Fi A
was 2.745% per annum. All of the restricted bank ZREBITFF I ANBILEE - WHEEE T
deposits are denominated in HKD. It represents RITOEFER - UEAREEERRTEER -

deposits pledged to a bank to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group.

23.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS WBHRERACEEY

Group Company
rEE ¥ NN
2007 2006 2007 2006
—ETLHF —EER —ETLHF —ETRF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FAT FTHERT FAT
Cash at bank and in hand BTk F RS 569,716 528,076 121,113 247,802
Funds of the Group amounting to HK$287,774,000 NEB 7 B4 F 287,774,000 0 (ZEZ
(2006: HK$76,129,000) are kept in the bank 7N 176,129,000/ 7T) + 94T A R E
accounts opened with banks in the PRC where the WERTTHRMWERP AN - HPEREXINE
remittance funds is subject to foreign exchange EERR -

control.
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24. SHARE CAPITAL 24 B A
Ordinary shares of Ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each HK$0.0025 each
BREE0VETR SREE0.0025%8 T
LAk LRk
No. of shares HK$'000 No. of shares HK$'000
& Thn ke ThEL
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2006 RZEE F-A—H 1,000,000,000 10,000 - -
Share subdivision (Note (b)) B3 2% (W3 (b) (1,000,000,000) (10,000) 4,000,000,000 10,000
At 31 December 2006 and RZFEREF-A=T-HR
31 December 2007 “2T+E+ZA=1-H - - 4,000,000,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BRIRHE:
At 1 January 2006 RZEEREF-A—H 333,054,030 3,330 - -
Issue of new ordinary shares (Note (a)fi) BINEBR (WEa)0) 66,000,000 660 - -
Shares issued under share option REXLDAERETE
scheme of the Company (Note (c)) BORN (W) 10,000,000 100 - -
Reduction of par value of BRG 2 KW
ordinary shares due to AL AR
share subdivision (Note (b)) HfE (H#(b) (409,054,030) (4,090) 1,636,216,120 4,090
Issue of new ordinary shares (Note (a){ii) BITHERR (W (a)i) - - 100,000,000 250
Share issued under share option REXDAERETE
scheme of the Company (Note (c)) BORN (W) - - 143,200,000 359
At 31 December 2006 RZEERF+_A=1-H - - 1,879,416,120 4,699
Shares issued under share options BERARERENE
scheme of the Company (Note (c)) 21R4 (K () - - 83,210,000 208
Issue of new shares upon the conversion REAMBRRIZET 2 THE
of convertible preference shares issued BEBRERT
by subsidiaries (Note (d)) qRG (A1) - - 232,446,569 581
Shares issued on acquisition of RyEREL M
subsidiaries (Note (g)) BARG (K (e) - - 36,900,146 92
At 31 December 2007 RZERLE+-A=1-H - - 2,231,972,835 5,580
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24. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note:

(a)

(b)

Issue of new ordinary shares

(i)

(if)

On 21 March 2006, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement with a subscriber in relation
to the subscription by the subscriber at a price of
HK$1.46 per share of an aggregate of 66,000,000
new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each to be issued
by the Company pursuant to the subscription
agreement. The subscription consideration of
HK$96,360,000 was settled by the subscriber in cash
and the subscription was completed on 31 March
2006. The net proceeds from the subscription of
approximately HK$96 million will be utilised for future
investments or developments in outsourcing services,
research and development of electronic payment
products and general working capital of the Group.

On 27 September 2006, the Company entered into
six subscription agreements with certain subscribers,
in relation to the subscription by these subscribers
at a price of HK$1.50 per share of an aggregate of
100,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each
to be issued by the Company pursuant to the
subscription agreements. The total subscription
consideration of HK$150,000,000 was settled by the
subscribers in cash and the subscription was
completed on 11 October 2006. The net proceeds
from the subscription of approximately HK$149
million will be utilised for expansion of the ATM
operation services business and for general working
capital of the Group.

Share subdivision

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 28 June 2006,
each of the existing issued and unissued ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company was
subdivided into four ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each
(the “Share Subdivision”), which was approved by the
shareholders of the Company and became effective on 29
June 2006.

24 B A ()

(a)

(b)
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RZBEXRF=ZA_+—H FRAHE
—HRBHIURBEWE - DERAE
HIRBEABEHEAER1.46/B THER
RIER A AT 3174 #£66,000,0000%
K mEEO0E TH EEK -
96,360,000/8 7T 2 R B KB K hRES
NBEeXN  MEBRBBER _ZTZT R
FZA=+t—HZEX - BEBZASFIA
R K 596,000,000 T - B AMERR
BRERBERINAIRY  HREREEET
XNER UBREAEEZ —REEER

DS

“EERFNAZLT LR ARFHR
ETRBFILAODREHRE - AR
HERBTREZSERBHEZER
15082 B1%  REARAE TEDT
& #£100,000,0000% & i {E0.00257%8 7T
2T mAL o 4B (8 /150,000,000
T TEHZERBITUARSIN M
RBER_TTZRFTA+—HREK -
RBFERZIFAISREAIFELOR
149,000,000/ 7T + I % A {EE R R 1T B
PEERESRBEY  UBEEEZ
—REEES -

T

&5 2 3
RER-ZZREFNATNABRBZ EBR
BE - ARFBEATEREEIOIBTZIESR

BEBITRARETERR

B0 ANk ERE

B0.00258 L2 L@ ([ DIF)) - BRHED
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24. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note: (continued)

(c)

Share options of the Company

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of attracting, retaining and
motivating talented employees in order to strive for future
developments and expansion of the Group. Eligible
participants of the Scheme include the Group’s full-time
employees, and executive and non-executive Directors. The
Scheme became effective on 29 November 2001 and
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain valid
and effective for a period of 10 years from that date.

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted shall not (together with all the other
Schemes, if any) exceed 10% of the total issued capital of
the Company as at date of approval of the Scheme unless
the Company obtains a fresh approval from shareholders
to renew the 10% limit.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme, together with any
unexercised share options granted under the Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company in issue,
may not exceed 30% of the relevant class of securities of
the Company in issue at any time. On 18 March 2004,
33,000,000 share options were granted to certain directors
and employees at an exercise price of HK$0.374 per share
(the average closing price of the shares as quoted in the
daily quotations sheets issued by The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited for the five business days immediately
preceding 18 March 2004) with an expiry date of 17 March
2014.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 17 August
2005, a refreshment of the limit on grant of options under
the Scheme was approved by the Company’s shareholders.
Upon refreshing the 10% limit on grant of options under
the Scheme, 33,305,403 shares may be issued pursuant
to the grant of further options under the Scheme.

On 26 September 2005, 33,300,000 share options were
granted to certain directors and employees at an exercise
price of HK$0.768 per share (the average closing price of
the shares as quoted in the daily quotations sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the five
business days immediately preceding 26 September 2005)
with an expiry date of 25 September 2015. The option
period commences on 26 September 2005 and expires 10
years thereafter.

24. B A ()

ffa - (&)

(c)
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RATZBRE
AREEE-EBRESS ([ZAE)) B&
ol  BRELRABAETBZEE  UPHAKH
RRERNEAER - ZrfEBNAER2HEE
BRASENZBERARRNITRIFENTE
FoZAER-_FET -+ -A-t+NLB&E
Mo BRIERZATEIBUBSER] - BRI HZ AL
FH10FMAB B AR -

BRI EMERESE (A) TR 2
RS Ko 2 B fp Ha8k - NS EBBAR R RN E
ZAt B E AR RITRABLEZ10% - HEARTF]
RS BER 5 OMRF A B 3T 3% 10% H0 IR BB RR Ob

HETEIE TR 2 R E R Z A 8 kR
NEME M EbERET B T EH L M ARTT
FE2ERBREMSFRZBRNEE 5T E
BETABEAARCETHBEINESZ
30% c R-ZZME=F+ /B KAAFAH
TEE K& 8% H33,000,00010 Bk # - 171F
BEAEROI74E T (ANBRZE_STWF=A+
NBRAEEEEREEHAL AR QA%
HmrzERARERABBD 2 FHRTE) BIH
BA-Z—WFE=A++EH-

BRER-ZZEZTRAFN\A+LtHBBNTRRE
= REBEZETRENERERBERAA
PRERHE SR o XAt EITE TR LB RIEZ10%
REBRBEEF% - AIREZ SR L EINER
HE %% 1733,305,4030% f% 1 °

RZZEZRFNA-FTRB  ARBRETE
= {8 B % 133,300,000 B A #E - & AITE
Bo.768 8L (MEH —_ZTTRFNA - +XH
AIRERXAEEHMARSMERRREMZ
BHREXRMBEBROZFHRTE) IHAR
“ZE-hFNA-THA  BREPEH_-FT
ERFNAZT/RAME - 105FKREH -



172

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M wERNE

24. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note: (continued)

(c)
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Share options of the Company (continued)
Options granted are vested as follows:

On 26 September 2005
On 26 September 2006

Up to 50%
Up to 100%

The Share Subdivision has led to an adjustment to the
exercise price of the outstanding options and the number
of shares to be issued by the Company upon exercise of
the outstanding options. For share options with exercise
period from 18 March 2004 to 17 March 2014, the number
of shares to be issued by the Company upon full exercise
of such outstanding options immediately before the Share
Subdivision has been increased from 23,000,000 shares
to 92,000,000 shares and the exercise price has been
adjusted from HK$0.374 to HK$0.0935 per share. For share
options with exercise period from 26 September 2005 to
25 September 2015, the number of shares to be issued by
the Company upon full exercise of such outstanding options
immediately before the Share Subdivision has been
increased from 33,300,000 shares to 133,200,000 shares
and the exercise price has been adjusted from HK$0.768
to HK$0.192 per share.

On 2 January 2007, 43,000,000 share options were granted
to certain employees at an exercise price of HK$2.00 per
share (the average closing price of the shares as quoted in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited for the five business days
immediately preceding 2 January 2007) with an expiry date
of 1 January 2010.

The fair values of options granted during the period
determined using the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing
model were:

24 B A ()

fa - ()

(c)

QR ZBERE(E)
EHMBRESEOT

R-ZEZTRFNLA=-+H
RZTEERNFNLA=Z+<AH

&%50%
&% 100%

B tn 53 I EBRE RITE B R AR B R R
TEERERETERS TREITZROHBAE (EL
AE-pOTEHAR - TENF=A+NA\BEC
Z-NE=ZATLtAZBRERS  A27R
FHBEREEZSTERETHITZROK
B - £ #23,000,000/% ¥ % 92,000,0008% * i
TEERTR037T4E THEEFNR0.0935/8
T RITEAR - EERAFAA T RAEC
Z-RFNA-THBZEBRENS - AAF
RNEBEREETERS TRTZRHEE -
£ F1.33,300,000/% 1 % 133,200,000/% - m1T{E
BHEKR0.768ETTHEEEM0192B T »

RZZZ+HF A0 ARAMETEER
i 43,000,000 fE fc#E - 1T B R T K 2.008
T MER_TELF-A_HAREZS%A
EEMARIMER AT EM 2T HBRERM
BEHFHKRTE FHERR T —FF— A
g

HIN R 2 B AR AR ) 5o — AT T BB A i 2
EREABEZATENT

Fair value

AFE

Options to be vested on Number of options HK$’000
RTIEHEENERE BREZE TET
2 January 2007 —ET+F—-AZH 43,000,000 27,616
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24. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note: (continued)

(c) Share options of the Company (continued)

The significant inputs into the model were share price of
HK$2.00 at the grant date, exercise price shown above,
standard deviation of expected share price returns of
63.5%, expected life of options of 1.5 years, expected
dividend paid out rate of 0% and annual risk-free interest
rate of 3.552%. The volatility measured at the standard
deviation of expected share price returns is based on
statistical analysis of daily share prices of the Company
over the past 260 trading days prior to the grant date.

Share options outstanding (in thousands) at the end of the
year have the following expiry date and exercise prices:

24. B A ()

fa - ()

(c) ERATZHERE (B
RZERGANEZERAREL BB KM
Z IR EI&2.00/8 7T - LITEE - B RE
[E13763.5% 2 12 % » Bt A1.5F 2 BERIES
WE - TR AB0% KB R K% 3.552% 7 FF B
ERFE LUIZEZAE Y BARERRE
B EUARASAREABREBHATAE
260X B BZHANMERBEEMAE -

BEAFEHAER EHEARITENELRE AT
2B BMARITEBNOT

Exercise price Share options

TEE B
Expiry date HK$ per share 2007 2006
EHA sRET —EZEHE —TIETRF
17 March 2014 —E—NMFE=ZA++AH 0.0935 - 25,200
25 September 2015 —ZE—HRF N A -+ EHH 0.192 - 56,800
1 January 2010 —E—ZTF¥—A—H 2.00 41,458 -
41,458 82,000
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24. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 24 & 7 (@)
Note: (continued) Mt - (&)
(c) Share options of the Company (continued) (c) EATMZEBRRE(E)

RZZZ+HF+-F=+—H  RELHEM
EERADAEESERE ZEREFS N

As at 31 December 2007, the particulars of the options
granted to each of the Directors and employees of the

Company under the Scheme are as follows: o
Number of
options held at
Number of 31 December
Exercise price options held at 2007
after Share 1 January 2007 Granted  Exercised  Lapsed HWZZZt#E
Subdivision R-BFLE during during during T=A=1-H
Name Date of grant R ook -B-AME  theyear  theyear theyear fik 2
4 RiLAH éZﬁﬁg LBREHR ERCEE FhETE EREEN  BREHSA
HK
(1)
Directors
gz
Mr. Kui Man Chun 18 March 2004" 0.0935 12,000,000 - (12,000,000) - -
RERRE ZEEREZATNR
26 September 2005™ 0.192 13,200,000 - (13,200,000) - -
“ERREAACTREM
Mr. Xu Wensheng 26 September 2005 0.192 13,200,000 - (13,200,000) - -
BERE ZETREAAC TR
Mr. Li Wenjin 26 September 2005™ 0192 13,200,000 - (13,200,000) - -
FXEL ZERRENAZTREY
Mr. Xu Chang Jun 26 September 2005* 0.192 13,200,000 - (13,200,000) - -
HEERE ZETRENAZ AR
Mr. Chan Yiu Kwong 26 September 2005 0.192 4,000,000 - (4,000,000) - -
RErEE “ERRENAZTAEM
(Note 1)
(W)
68,800,000 - (68,800,000) - -
Employees
|
(In aggregate) 18 March 2004* 0.0935 13,200,000 - (13,200,000) - -
2 January 2007 ** 200 - 43,000,000 (1210,000)  (332,000) 41,458,000
“ERLE-foA
82,000,000 43,000,000 (83,210,000  (332,000) 41,458,000
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24. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note: (continued)

(c) Share options of the Company (continued)
The exercisable period of the above share options is
from 18 March 2004 to 17 March 2014 (both dates
inclusive).
o The option period commences on 26 September
2005 and expires 10 years thereafter. Options granted
are vested as follows:

On 26 September 2005 Up to 50%
On 26 September 2006 Up to 100%

Note 1: On 3 December 2007, Mr Chan has resigned
as Executive Director of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the weighted
average closing price immediately before the dates on
which the options were exercised was HK$2.38 per share.

During the year ended 31 December 2006, no share options
was granted. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligation to repurchase or settle the options in cash.

As at the date of this report, the Company has 41,458,000
share options outstanding.

24. B A ()

ffa - (&)

(c) ZISATZH%HQE(F)
LiERE TFEHB_STNF= A
+NBE-Z-—NF=A++tH (BEM
AEREER) -

. %%%%ﬁmijﬁinﬂ +XA
R EREETFER FREBERES
BERLOT
—EERFNAZ+AH % %50%
—EERFAAZ+ABE  &%Z100%

M1 R-EEEE T -A=H " RE
EHERARAHNITES -

BE—ZTLHF+-_A=+—HILLFE E%
BRETEASNZMEFAETELSER
23887 °

HEZZZRET _A=ZT—HILFE UHE
EEERE  AEEYEERFLETEEAR
LB ORFEBRE -

WA E HE - AR R A 41,458,00010 i Ak 2
M ARTTIE -
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24. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note: (continued)

(d)

Convertible preference shares issued by Turbo Speed

On 9 November 2004, Turbo Speed, a subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a subscription agreement with
independent third parties in relation to the subscription
of 6,837,608 convertible preference shares of US$0.10
each of Turbo Speed for a total subscription price of
US$4 million (approximately HK$31.2 million) (the “TS
Subscription”).

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 4 April 2005,
the Company approved the TS Subscription and the TS
Subscription was completed on 29 April 2005.

On 18 January 2007 and 27 April 2007, 6,837,608
convertible preference shares in Turbo Speed were
converted into 103,733,334 new ordinary shares of the
Company of HK$0.0025 each at a conversion price of
HK$0.3 per share.

As at 31 December 2007, no convertible preference share
in Turbo Speed was outstanding.

Convertible preference shares issued by Emerging
Technology Limited (“Emerging Technology”)

On 21 August 2006, Emerging Technology, a subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a subscription agreement
with independent third parties and connected persons in
relation to the subscription of 760,778 convertible
preference shares of US$1.00 each of Emerging for a
total subscription price of US$18 million (approximately
HK$140 million) (the “ET Subscription”).

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 25
September 2006, the Company approved the ET
Subscription and the ET Subscription was completed on
12 October 2006.

On 28 September 2007 and 22 November 2007, 760,778
convertible preference shares in Emerging Technology
were converted into 128,713,235 new ordinary shares of
the Company of HK$0.0025 each at a conversion price
of HK$1.088 per share.

As at 31 December 2007, no convertible preference
shares in Emerging Technology was outstanding.

24 B A ()

wist -

(d)
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(&)
Turbo Speed®# T 2 TR KR E £ R

R-ZZEZTMFE+—AALA ARARMBER
Turbo Speed 828 37 2 = 5 7 7R #E 6,837, 608Hx
M EEO0.105 7T Z Turbo Speed ] 4 f% (8 4
MRET SR BE % - 4838 BE (€ A 4,000,000% 7T
(,%U31,2oo,oooﬁérn> (TZTSRME]) -

BER-FETEDAMAAALE B
B RATIRKTSRE - MHTSRBE N
TERAmAC S AARA .

R_EE+F A+ \BER_ZEZTLFWA-
+-+8 - 6,837,608 Turbo Speed 7] # % {& 5
f&i% 5 E R 0.378 7T 732 A 103,733,334 %
FRREEO0.0025F L 2 AN A A & @Ak -

R—_ZEE+HF+=-_A=+—8"
Turbo Speed™] # J& 18 % j% -

MEDLETY

Emerging Technology Limited ([ Emerging
Technologyl) BT 2 T R KRB £ K

RZZEZERNFNAZ+—H  RARAKEBEAF
Emerging Technology8 % 37 % = 77 R A& A

L2 B Emerging 760,7780% & i & 1.003
EZT#HQ@%H&(FE&ET B8 ) BTN R BB 1
% - # R E K 18,000,000% T (4
140,000,000 7C) °

BER-ZZEZAFAA-THABBAZ LZRER
BE  ARFHEZETRE - MZETREER
—ERRETATZBEK -

REZEZE+FAAZFTNBARZZEELF+—
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24. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note: (continued)

(e)

Acquisition of the entire interest in Baifu Hualong
and Pacific Sheen and disposal of 5% interest in
Hualong Holding

On 10 February 2007, the Company entered into a sale
and purchase agreement (the “Hualong Agreement”) with
F % A (Wang Bing Ren), £ # 75 (Wang Zhong Fang), #& 7
 (Jiang Jie Zhong), ##18 &)(Zhao Shu Xun (also known as
8 713 (Zhao Li Bin)), 22 JI|(Li Ning Chuan) and Everon
Group Holdings Limited (a company incorporated in Hong
Kong) (collectively the “Hualong Vendors”), who are parties
then independent of the Group, pursuant to which the
Company agreed to procure the acquisition of the entire
registered capital of Hangzhou PAX Electric Technology
Limited (Formerly known as “Hangzhou Baifu Holding
Company Limited”), a company incorporated in the PRC
which holds the entire interest in #T /N ZE & & 7 K it B R
‘A Al (Hangzhou Hualong Electronic Technology Company
Limited), a company established in the PRC (“Hualong
Electronic”) and #1/N % [£ {5 B £ 17 A B 2 & (Hangzhou
Hualong Information Technology Company Limited), a
company established in the PRC (“Hualong Information”),
the entire issued share capital of Pacific Sheen International
Limited (= JIEBIFE B R A 7)), a company incorporated in
Hong Kong (“Pacific Sheen”) and its subsidiary (collectively
referred to as the “Hualong Group”) and the shareholders’
loans of HK$24.0 million (the “Shareholders’ Loans”) for a
total consideration of RMB270.7 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$268.6 million) (the “Hualong Acquisition”).
The consideration for the Hualong Acquisition was satisfied
as to RMB170.7 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$176.3 million) in cash and as to the remaining balance
of RMB100.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$92.3
million) by way of the issuance of 36,900,146 new shares
of the Company (the “Consideration Shares”). The fair value
of the consideration shares was based on the published
closing share price of HK$2.5 as at 30 July 2007 (Note
35).

24. B A ()

Kt - ()

e) WEBEEZEERERER2NEZRLEE
Hualong Holding 5% &

R-ZZETLF_A+8 ARREEHBELR
REBIZALTIRA - ITHH - BAR - B
B(XBEIR)  TENNRELZERERAF
(REBFMEALZRR) (FEEREEH])F]
VEEHGE ([EERZE] - Bl A28RE
RfFE BN R E MK 2 N E EE
BERAR (FIEMMMNEEERERAE]) 2
AMBEA  REEFMRLZEIBEBERA
A ([EIEEER]) REMBAR (RBIERESE
B ) 232 817 IR A K& A% R & 724,000,000
BT (IRRER])  BREAARE
270,700,000t (4) 48 & 7 268,600,000/ 7T)
(TEEWE]) - MINEETEHEMNARA B
BAERPBERKZZMMNERETRITBRA A
(IFERET]) RRFBA L MMNEREER
MAERDR ([FEEEBRMN]) 28R - FEE
I EEREFR - AR¥170,700,0007T (HHEER
176,300,000/ L) EUIB & S - BBEARE
100,000,0007T (4948 & 792,300,000/ 7t) Al LA
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e REROZAFEBENIZ-ZZZELFLA
—tHEAHmZRME255 LT B (H335) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25. OTHER RESERVES 25. Hfhf# &
Group (a) &&
(Accumulated
Contributed losses)/
surplus retained
Share (Note(i)) Other  Exchange  earnings
premium  BHEH  reserves reserve (Rt E8R)/ Total
RGEE  (WE)  HbRE  EXRE  REEA fit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThEn ThEL ThEL ThEL ThEL ThEL
At 1 January 2006 RZZERE-A—H 100,556 125,310 15,627 872 (118,261) 124,104
Profit for the year EERA - - - - 133,600 133,600
Shares issued under share option READAIERE
scheme of the Company (Note 24(c)) SHEIRTRG (Hi24(c) 24,196 - - - - 24,196
Issue of new shares (Note 24(3)) BIMBRG (Wit24(a) 245,450 - - - - 245450
Share Issuance expenses RABIRS 60) - - - - (60)
Share premium reduction (Noteb)(ii) BB R B (A3t (b)) (100,556) 43,124 - - 57,432 -
Issue of convertible preference —FHBARAES
shares by a subsidiary (Note 27(b)) MRRELR (B727(0) - - 138,480 - - 138,480
Employee share option scheme EEERERE
- value of employee services - EERKER - - 2,387 - - 2,387
Exchange differences arising on BEGINRELT
translation of the financial BBl
statements of foreign subsidiaries EREE - - - 6,816 - 6,816
At 31 December 2006 RZEERET-A=1-H 260,586 168,434 156,494 7,688 72,711 674,973
At 1 January 2007 RZZT+5-A—H 269,586 168,434 156,494 7,688 72,771 674,973
Profit for the year ERRET - - - - 184,276 184,276
Shares issued under share option READAIERE
scheme of the Company (Note 24(c)) TEBTRY (K 24(c) 15,474 - - - - 15,474
Issue of new shares upon the conversion M B2 B & i
of convertible preference shares issued ~ 2ETARKELR
by subsidiaries (Note 24(d) BRIIREG (Ari24(d) 171112 - (149,614) - - 21,498
Employee share option scheme fEBBERIE:T 2
- value of employee services (Note 24(c) - EERHBE(E (Hfit24(c)) - - 27,616 - - 27,616
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 24(e) ~ WEEM B F) (M 5#24(e)) 92,158 - - - - 92,158
Exchange differences arising on BEBNIBAT
translation of the financial BBRERL
statements of foreign subsidiaries ERER - - - 33,272 - 33,272
At 31 December 2007 RZZ5+F+-A=1+-H 548,330 168,434 34,496 40,960 257,047 1,049,267
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25.0THER RESERVES

(a) Group (continued)

Note:

(i) The contributed surplus of the Group represents the

difference between the nominal value of the ordinary

shares and share premium account of Hi Sun
Holdings Limited (“HSHL”) acquired pursuant to the
group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) on 17
October 2001 as set out in the circular to the
shareholders of HSHL dated 9 August 2001, over
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in

exchange thereof.

(b) Company

5 B S R R MR

25. Hfbf@E
(a) =KM@ (&)

(b) EAF

(i) ZIKEIZ%%(&E%?EW%'K%?W@EE
A(EEER])BERTERRA -
—FNANBZBHFTHE $E'<}J€E<\_7

—ETATERETZEEER(E
B KEZRBERZ &

3 A TE A &

B a Bk BAXRFRERHZEH
TRNEEBEZZER -

(Accumulated

Contributed losses)/
surplus retained
Share (Note (i) Other earnings
premium E4RH reserves (ZiEE)/ Total
RAEE (BaE(i) Hihfete REEAN &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FET TET TET
At 1 January 2006 “EEXNE-A-H 100,556 3,293 4,220 (57,431) 50,638
Profit for the year i& bl - - - 55,064 55,064
Shares issued under share option RERARERE
scheme of the Company (Note 24(c)  :tEI%47R % (Hfit24(c)) 24,196 - - - 24,196
Issue of new shares (Note 24(a)) BATHR (B 24(a) 245,450 - - - 245,450
Share issuance expenses BHEITRY (60) - - - (60)
Share premium reduction (Note (b)fii) Bl &E (K (b)ii) (100,556) 43,124 - 57,432 -
Employee share option scheme - value 1€ 5 B R #E51 2
of employee services (Note 24(c)) —EEBRBEE (Wi 24(c) - - 2,387 - 2,387
At 31 December 2006 RZEERE+-A=1+-H 269,586 46,417 6,607 55,065 377,675
At 1 January 2007 e e 269,586 46,417 6,607 55,085 377,675
Profit for the year EEER - - - (2,461) (2,461)
Shares issued under share option RERARERE
scheme of the Company (Note 24(c) st BB (Hfit24(c)) 15,474 - - - 15,474
Issue of new shares upon the conversion i B2 IR E#
of convertible preference shares BETURREER
issued by subsidiaries (Note 24(d)) ERAABRS (W H24(a)) 398,816 - - - 398,816
Employee share option scheme - value 1€ 8 B R #E5t 2
of employee services (Note 24(c)) —EEBRBERE (H24(c) - - 27,616 - 27,616
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 24(e))  WEMB L&l (A 24(e) 92,158 - - - 92,158
At 31 December 2007 R=2Bt&+-A=t-H 776,034 46,417 34,223 52,604 909,278
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25.OTHER RESERVES (continued)
(b) Company (continued)

Note:

(i)

(if)

(i)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the excess of the fair value of the shares of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Reorganisation
over the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange thereof. Under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda, a company may make
distributions to its members out of the contributed
surplus under certain circumstances.

In compliance with section 46 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda and with effect from 28 June 2006
(the date of the passing of the special resolution),
the entire amount standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company as at 31 December
2005 of HK$100,556,000 was cancelled and the
directors of the Company was authorised to apply
part of the credit arising from the aforesaid reduction
of the share premium account of the Company in
the sum of HK$57,432,000 to offset the accumulated
losses of the Company in full and the remaining
balance of the credit arising therefrom in the sum of
HK$43,124,000 was transferred to the contributed
surplus account of the Company in accordance with
the Bye-laws of the Company and all applicable laws.

As at 31 December 2007, the aggregate amount of
reserves available for distribution to the equity holders
of the Company, including contributed surplus, other
reserves and retained earnings, was HK$133,244,000
(2006: 108,089,000).
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

e R R MR

26. B BRF & H b FE {3 F 18

Group Company
rEH ¥ NN
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EEEF —ITERFE ZEBELFE —ITETRF
HK$°000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T THET FET FET
Trade payables J& - BR 3K
(Note below) (KHatznT) 130,057 54,611 - -
Other payables and H Ath pE 3B K
accruals JE T R IE 143,656 44,399 10,789 8,908
Pension obligations RIKEHK 10,228 8,696 - -
Social security and HERER
other taxes H Ath 751 18 17,548 9,576 - -
301,489 117,282 10,789 8,908
Note: B -
At 31 December 2007 and 2006, the ageing analysis of the RZZBZEFR-_FTRNFT_A= +—H " EHN
trade payables was as follows: IR ERR T
Group
AEBE
2007 2006
—2TLE  —TIAE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current to 90 days IH B 2 90H 98,001 44,888
91 to 180 days 91%180H 14,097 4,923
181 to 365 days 18123658 5,123 2,987
Over 365 days B 365H 12,836 1,813
130,057 54,611
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27. B A RIRITUIBRKRE LR -
RKEHE

(a) Turbo SpeedZZ T2 AT AR E £ K

27.CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE
SHARES ISSUED BY
SUBSIDIARIES - GROUP

(a) Convertible preference shares issued by

Turbo Speed

On 9 November 2004, Turbo Speed, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a subscription agreement with independent third
parties in relation to the subscription of
6,837,608 convertible preference shares of
US$0.10 each of Turbo Speed for a total
subscription price of US$4 million (approximately
HK$31.2 million) (the “TS Subscription”). The
subscription price had been received by Turbo
Speed shortly after signing of the said
subscription agreement and was held in a jointly
controlled bank account and would be released
on completion of the Subscription.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 4
April 2005, the Company approved the TS
Subscription and the TS Subscription was
completed on 29 April 2005.

According to the said subscription agreement,
the rights attached to holders of convertible
preference shares of Turbo Speed are
summarised as follows:

(a) Income (assuming no conversion of
convertible preference shares)
(i) A fixed cumulative preferred dividend
equal to HK$624,000 for each
financial year of Turbo Speed; and
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27. CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE
SHARES ISSUED BY
SUBSIDIARIES - GROUP (continued)
(a) Convertible preference shares issued by

Turbo Speed (continued)
(a) Income (assuming no conversion of

27. B AR BITUBRRE LR -
AEER @)

(@) Turbo SpeedZ 1T Z AR E LR (&)

(a) WA (1R R AE 57 18 A 2 R 8 5

convertible preference shares)
(continued)

(if

Participation in part of dividends
declared and payable by Turbo Speed
(after the preferred dividend),
calculated by applying an agreed
formula so that the aggregate of the
preferred dividend and ordinary
dividend to the holders of the
convertible preference shares would
be equal to 16% (on an annual basis)
of the total dividends payable by
Turbo Speed.

(b) Conversion options

(1)

Convertible at any time from the date
of completion of the TS Subscription
for a period of 24 months into new
shares of the Company at a
conversion price of HK$1.2 per share,
subject to adjustment set out in the
subscription agreement (the
“Conversion”). The amount for the
Conversion shall be US$4 million; and

Automatic conversion into ordinary
shares of Turbo Speed at a ratio of
1:1 on the business day after Turbo
Speed has paid total dividends on
each convertible preference share
which exceed its original issue price
of US$4 million.

i) (%)

(i) RNERELKRRSR Bk
#84> Turbo Speedt /& &
ERORE - £FERFEH
WEFENGE - BEAR
REFERFFE AMNELRRK
BREBRRKRESEEER
Turbo SpeedfE - i% B 42 %8
(RFET) 216% °

(b) BEyRiEfERE

(i) FAIRRZTSREESTA BHAE —
+ U {E A HAfE R B R R AR
RNEF G BREAER
12870 - ATRREHBEFT
AR ([ZER])ME °
ZzEBN R R
4,000,000 7T : &

(i) 7ETurbo Speedit & % 7] #a
IR(B S AR A B4 R B 21T
{€ 4,000,000 7T #) 42 j% &
BHEER BB
tb & 5,3 A Turbo Speed
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27.CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE
SHARES ISSUED BY
SUBSIDIARIES - GROUP (continued)
(a) Convertible preference shares issued by
Turbo Speed (continued)
(b) Conversion options (continued)

27. B AR BT BRRE LR -
AEER @)

(@) Turbo SpeedB 1T Z AR E LR (&)

(b) BrEERE (B

According to a shareholders’ agreement
entered into by the Company and the
convertible preference shareholders of
Turbo Speed on 29 April 2005, under
certain specified conditions, the Company
shall transfer an agreed percentage of
shares in Turbo Speed to the then
convertible preference shareholders of
Turbo Speed for a consideration of HK$1.

The fair values of the liability component
and the equity conversion component were
determined at issuance of the convertible
preference shares.

The fair value of the liability component,
included in long-term borrowings, was
calculated using a market interest rate for
an equivalent non-convertible preference
share. The residual amount, representing
the value of the equity conversion
component, is included in shareholders’
equity in other reserves.
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27. CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE

i\

SHARES ISSUED BY

SUBSIDIARIES - GROUP (continued)

(a) Convertible preference shares issued by
Turbo Speed (continued)

e R R MR

27. B A RIRITHBRRELR -

AEE @

(@) Turbo SpeedB 1T Z AR E LR (&)

2007 2006
ZEBEELE —TTHFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FAET
At beginning of the year F 1) 22,485 21,173
Interest expenses for the year FRF B
(Note 9) (K17 9) 333 1,734
Preferred dividend paid FALIK
for the year BERKE (603) (422)
Conversion of convertible 1 A #2 {R A8 5t iR 3 R
preference shares into BARNAEBR
the ordinary shares of the (Hfa 40 T)
Company (Note below) (22,080) -
Preferred dividend payable and RKTBEREEY A
reclassified to other payable H i & 1~ R (135) -
At end of year (Note 29) FR (M aE29) - 22,485

Note:

On 12 January 2007 and 23 April 2007, the Company received
Notices from holders of the convertible preference shares issued
by Turbo Speed for the conversions of all of their 6,837,608
convertible preference shares into the ordinary shares of the
Company pursuant to the terms of the subscription agreement
dated 9 November 2004.

As a result of the above conversions, aggregate total of
103,733,334 new ordinary shares of the Company were issued
and allotted to the convertible preference shares holders at a
conversion price of HK$0.3 per share on 18 January 2007 and
27 April 2007, respectively (Note 24(d)).

All convertible preference shares issued by Turbo Speed have
been converted into ordinary shares of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2007.

Mt

RZZEZEF-—ATZBRZZTELFMA=-+=
B AAQF U E B Turbo Speed* 1T 2 A #a % 8 5 BX
BAEABLHZABN  EXRE-_ZSTWNF+—ANE
I 2 RIEWM G - 51 %5 2 506,837,608% A #2
RELERAIBLABRRT LB

T R R E - ARAPIRZZEELF—A+N
AER—ZTLFMNA-t+tA  BABRESRIE
TEHABRBRELTRFIBEABTREZ S &
103,733,334 /% #7 & i@ A% (Fif3E24(d)) °

HE_ZZLtHF+_A=Z+—BLEE  Turbo
SpeedBEITHMAE N RBRELREER AR R AER
B o
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27.CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE
SHARES ISSUED BY
SUBSIDIARIES - GROUP (continued)

(a) Convertible preference shares issued by

27. B AR BT BRRE LR -
AEER @)

(@) Turbo Speed# 1T Z AT R & % I (%)

Turbo Speed (continued)

The fair value of the liability component of
convertible preference shares at 31 December
2006 amounted to HK$21,525,000. The fair
value is calculated using cash flows discounted
at a rate based on the borrowings rate of 6.59%
per annum. All convertible preference shares
have been converted into ordinary shares of
the Company during the year ended 31
December 2007.

Interest expense on the convertible preference
shares is calculated using the effective interest
method by applying the effective interest rate
of 8.27% (2006: 8.27%) per annum to the
liability component.
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27. B AR BITUBRRE LR -
AEER @)

27.CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE
SHARES ISSUED BY
SUBSIDIARIES - GROUP (continued)

(b) Convertible preference shares issued by (b) HEmerging Technology3 1T 2 7] #

Emerging Technology

On 21 August 2006, Emerging Technology, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a subscription agreement with
independent third parties in relation to the
subscription of 760,778 convertible preference
shares of US$1.00 each of Emerging Technology
at a total subscription price of US$18 million
(approximately HK$140 million) (the “ET
Subscription”).

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on
25 September 2006, the Company approved
the ET Subscription and the ET Subscription
was completed on 12 October 2006.

According to the said subscription agreement,
the rights attached to holders of convertible
preference shares of Emerging Technology are
summarised as follows:

(a) Income (assuming no conversion of
convertible preference shares)

()  Participation in dividends declared and
payable by Emerging Technology so
that the aggregate of the preferred
dividend to the holders of the
convertible preference shares would
be equal to 9% (on an annual basis)
of the total dividends payable by
Emerging Technology.

% 8 % B
RZBEEXFNA=-+—8  AQ7F
% & [f1 8 2 F1Emerging Technology
BB VE=FRHRE760,778 F IR
H & 1.00% 7t # Emerging
Technology 7] # i 18 %t iR 5] 32 3R & 173
# ' #R E18,000,000% 7t (4
140,000,000 7T) ([FZETREE]) -

BER-_ZEZTNFNA-THBRAB
MEBREER  ARQAHEZETR
B MZETRBR _ZEEE+A+
“HEK °

Bt BB WE - Emerging
Technology A] 1% B L R B #F B A B
R T -

(a) WA (I HEFE 2 ] #2 iR (8 5F
A)

(i) % Emerging Technology
BB IR & ER RS B E Al iR
BRI ARELERR
B & #18 % R Emerging
Technology &k i% S 4858 2
(BF57H) 9% °
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27.CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE
SHARES ISSUED BY
SUBSIDIARIES - GROUP (continued)
(b) Convertible preference shares issued by
Emerging Technology (continued)
(b) Conversion options

(i)

(i)

Convertible at any time from the date
of completion of the ET Subscription
for a period of 24 months into new
shares of the Company at a
conversion price of HK$1.088 per
share, subject to adjustment set out
in the subscription agreement (the “HS
Conversion”). The amount for the HS
Conversion shall be US$18 million;

Convertible at any time from the date
of completion of the ET Subscription
for a period of 24 months into ordinary
share of Emerging Technology at a
ratio of 1:1; and

Automatic conversion into ordinary
shares of Emerging Technology at a
ratio of 1:1 on the business day after
Emerging Technology has paid total
dividends on each convertible
preference share which exceed its
original issue price.
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27. B AR BITUBRRE LR -
AEER @)

27.CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE
SHARES ISSUED BY
SUBSIDIARIES - GROUP (continued)

(b) Convertible preference shares issued by (b) HEmerging Technology3 1T 2 7] #

Emerging Technology (continued)

The convertible preference shares issued are
initially recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet is calculated as follows:

RE LR ()
RIFBEERBERT T BRI AR
B RBFENT

31 December

2007
—EELF
+=A=+—8H
HK$’000
FET
Face value of convertible preference RZEERF+H+=H
shares issued on 12 October 2006 BITH A MR ELREE 140,040
Legal and professional fees directly HETRBEEEE 2
attributable to the ET Subscription EREREHXEEHA (1,560)
Equity component = E D (138,480)

Liability component on initial recogition

RN T HERFHNAERD -

Note:

On 28 September 2007 and 22 November 2007, the
Company received Notices from holders of the convertible
preference shares issued by Emerging Technology for the
conversion of all of their 760,778 convertible preference
shares into the ordinary shares of the Company pursuant
to the terms of the subscription agreement dated 21 August
2006.

As a result of the above conversions, aggregate total of
128,713,235 new ordinary shares of the Company were
issued and allotted to the convertible preference shares
holders at a conversion price of HK$1.088 per share on
28 September 2007 and 22 November 2007, respectively
(Note 24).

All convertible preference shares issued by Emerging

Technology have been converted into ordinary shares of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2007.

iz -

RZEELFNA-+NAR_ZTEZTLF+—
AZ+ =8 &2 &7 %K E A Emerging
Technology /T2 AT REERFHEAZEL 2
BH - BRRBE-_ZTEZAAFNA-+—HFIXZ
ZREMEIGER - B E2E760,778% 7] R
BEEBRIEBABRAR L BR -

EIT % ARRDBR_ZETLFAN
AZt+N\BERZZZE+F+—A=Z+ZH &
HI(EE1.0888 Lm AR E L REE A
17 R B3 A $£128,713,235 08 5 & i@ M (B 5%
24) °

BHE_TE+tEF+_A=+t—RHIFE
Emerging Technology 1T 89 FT & 7] #2 j% (8 5%
REE@RAEARBLEER -
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28.DUE FROM/TO A RELATED

COMPANY AND A FELLOW RERHE A FKE
SUBSIDIARY
The amounts due from/to a related company and a FEU M —REEBERA R —RARWE
fellow subsidiary are interest free, unsecured, and NREAIRERELE  EBEBERNZERE
repayable on demand. F o
29. BORROWINGS 29 & F
Group
KE
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FER FAET
Non-current 3k B 3
Financial liability portion of convertible — ZX {8 A &) 317 A #2i%
preference shares issued by BEBRNTBAEISD
a subsidiary (Note 27(a)) (Hiat27(a)) - 22,485
Current Bp &8
Short term bank loans — PRC, HERTER—FR
secured (Note) BHEA (/WE) 42,551 7,000
Total borrowings BB 42,551 29,485

Note: M -

As at 31 December 2007, short term bank loans of RZZTEZ+F+-_A=+—H  AR¥30,400,0007C

RMB30,400,000 (approximately HK$32,528,000) (2006:
HK$7,000,000) were secured by the leasehold land and building
of the subsidiaries of the Company (Note 15) and the corporate
guarantee from an independent third party, % JII T & # & iR &
¥R AR A7) (Shenzhen High and New Technology Investment
Guarantee Company Limited).

As at 31 December 2007, short term bank loans of
RMB9,367,000 (approximately HK$10,023,000) (2006: Nil) were
secured by the bills receivable of a subsidiary of the Company
(Note 20).
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29. BORROWINGS (continued) 29.fE R #®)
The maturity of borrowings is as follows: AEEERZIHALT
Group
rEH

Financial liability portion of
convertible preference
shares issued

Bank borrowings by a subsidiary
—RMBARBITARRK
RITEN BERNBKEERD
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELE —ITERF ZEBEELtE —ITETRF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FET FET FAET
Within 1 year —F K 42,551 7,000 - -~
Over 5 years BhHF - - - 22,485
42,551 7,000 - 22,485
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date REERNERENEMAT
were as follows:
2007 2006
“EBLE ZEERE
Hong Kong Hong Kong
dollar Renminbi dollar Renminbi
BT AR BT ARE
per annum per annum per annum per annum
5% 5% 5% (SX3
Financial liability portion of — XM BARET
convertible preference shares ABRE LR
issued by a subsidiary BBaEHs - - 8.27% -
Short term bank borrowings RHRTEE - 7.35% - 6.8%
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29. BORROWINGS (continued) 29.fB K )
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are EREERENATIEETE

denominated in the following currencies:

Group
rEH
2007 2006
—EBE2LE —ZTTEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Hong Kong dollar BT - 22,485
Renminbi AR 42,551 7,000
42,551 29,485
As at 31 December 2007, a bank guarantee line of RZETELEF+HA=+T—8 KRAI%E
HK$7,500,000 was provided to the Company, which REMIRITIREZE /7,500,000 7T + 1D
was secured by fixed deposits of the Company at a AR R B — K ER1THY € Hi77 57,500,000
bank of HK$7,500,000 and corporate guarantee by BT AR AR AR A B ER M L KR (T
the Company (Note 22). 5¥22) o
30.DEFERRED INCOME TAX - 0. EIEFBHR —4AKEH
GROUP
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset EALERNAGRAENBEEEREAN
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset HEERE  BREMEH LSRR —K
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and e - IR EEFREHEEHEAEE M
when the deferred income taxes relate to the same ;g - WIES BT -
fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:
2007 2006
—EBE2LE —ZTTHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
Deferred tax assets to be recovered TZEAASTEEA
within 12 months EXERIEEE (119) (6)
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled =@ A A#
within 12 months REFHIBERE 119 6
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled +ZEA B
after 12 months RERIBAEE 11,522 -
Deferred tax liabilities — net RIETHIARE - F5 11,522 -
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30. DEFERRED INCOME TAX - 0.ELERBH —FEE )
GROUP (continued)
The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities FA - HHEARBEIEER CEHREAEE
(prior to offsetting of balances within the same HAT BREREEEERBE2EHOAT

taxation jurisdiction) during the year is as follows:

2007 2006
—EELF —EERF
Accelerated Accelerated
tax Fair value tax
depreciation gains Total depreciation
MERERE AFEEKRSE a5 MEBBEHE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
TER TER TERT FAT
Deferred tax liabilities ERERIEEE
At 1 January R—A—H 6 - 6 56
Acquired on acquisition P UL B /B A ] B
of subsidiaries (Note 35) B (Kr7£35) - 13,350 13,350 -
Exchange differences 5 =R - 430 430 -
Charged/(credited) to BirA WaER
consolidated income meg,/ (G A)
statement 113 (2,258) (2,145) (50)
At 31 December R+-_A=+—H 119 11,522 11,641 6
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30. DEFERRED INCOME TAX - B0.ELEFED —FAEEH @
GROUP (continued)
Tax losses
R
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE
At 1 January n—H—H (6) (56)
Charged/(credited) to BirE sk
consolidated income statement Mk (GA) (113) 50
At 31 December ®n+—A=+—H (119) (6)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax BIEPTSEMEE HEEEBN = A Al 588
losses carried forward to the extent that realisation MARERT AN ERMMTEE 2B
of the related benefits through the future taxable EEEER BE_ZTLF+A=+
profits is probable. As at 31 December 2007, the —B FAXEBZABRBEEEBEEA
Group has unrecognised tax losses HK$32,440,000 32,440, OOO/E,TL_, (ZZFZT/NF : 13,117,000
(2006: HK$13,117,000) to carry forward against BIT) - AIAAEAKIE R R ERBIA - &
future taxable income. These tax losses have not N N EEEJ:LM THBERED NG RE
been recognised due to uncertainty of their future B - R mER EAM R IEEE - WEBIE
recoverability. The tax losses will expire according to EBEZIAARBEASELEBER 2EA
the prevailing tax laws and regulations in the MOERIBHImE °

countries in which the Group operates.
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31.NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED

i\

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax

e R R MR

NN.GERERERME

(a) BRATEBBAGNEEEXBELNR

to cash generated from operating YR
activities
2007 2006
—EELE ZETRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
Profit before income tax BR P 15 %50 31 4 A 216,768 145,242
Interest income MEWA (9,303) (4,831)
Gain on deemed disposal of 20% equity in BIEHE—RHBAA
interest in a subsidiary 20% % 1 2 Y 28 (43,258) -
Employee share option scheme EERREE
- value of employee services - EERKEE 27,616 2,387
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ #1%¥ BERRENE 26,029 13,089
Depreciation of investment property REMESE 177 8
Amortisation of leasehold land ME L it 913 36
Amortisation of intangible assets BV EESHN 2,892 -
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HENE  BER
plant and equipment REBER/ (WS 3,229 (18)
Write-back provision for impairment of & 2 BR R (B B 1B
trade receivable, net B 8 (3,225) (257)
Write-off of inventories, net WEFE  FHE 2,766 1,504
Finance costs BEKAK 2,797 3,803
Operating profit before working capital changes & B & & & 8 5 ) &8 & 3% 7 227,401 160,963
Increase in trade and other receivables, JE T BR 0 I E A B MR IE -
prepayments and deposits BERNFEREZSEM (91,504) (41,300)
Increase in inventories FEEM (65,548) (8,448)
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets at BATEFARNIEBEEZ
fair value through profit or loss SREERD,/ (M) 6,793 (41,281)
Decrease in amount due from a related company & — K B & 1 B 5B W 4 67 -
Increase in trade and other payables JE 151 BR 3R N LA FE 5 SRIEE AN 59,121 1,329
Decrease in amount due to a fellow subsidiary N — KR R KB 2 &) 2 A (1,111) -
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to ERRZWBARFIE
fellow subsidiaries OB /Em (13,497) 13,107
Cash generated from operation REEEMRE 121,722 84,370
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31.NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH
FLOW STATEMENT (continued)
(b) In the cash flow statement, proceeds from
sale of property, plant and equipment

A

MN.GZERERERMT @

(b) REERERA  HEWX BEK
REAEREDT :

comprise:
2007 2006
—EBELE —TTAREF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Net book amount (Note 15 and 16) BT FE (Kf:£ 15K 16) 8,469 21
(Loss)/gain on sale of property, HEMZE  BELREZ
plant and equipment (E548) (3,229) 18
Proceeds from sale of property, HEWE - BELE&HE
plant and equipment F 18 308 5,240 39

Note: Property included leasehold
land and buildings

M MEBERHEHELHMRET

32.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2007, the Group and the
Company had no contingent liabilities (2006: Nil).

33. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 33.

At 31 December 2007, the Group had future
aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases as follows:

R.HZAREE

N=EFLET-A=+—A ARER

REEAEE
R-FBEBLET-A=1+—A AKER
R S TR A0 T S R R A BT A
HBEWT

Land and buildings Equipment
T REF B4
2007 2006 2007 2006
—BELFE —ZZTERX —E2E2tLtFE Z—ZZTTRF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT FHET FAT
Not later than one year TER—F 6,279 5,705 9,792 8,102
Later than one year and EBER—F  BTE
not later than five years REF 1,079 5,428 - -
7,358 11,133 9,792 8,102
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34. DEEMED DISPOSAL OF 20%

EQUITY INTEREST IN A

SUBSIDIARY

On 4 April 2007, PAX Technology Limited (“PAX”), a
then wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
the Company entered into a subscription agreement
with Digital Investment Limited (the “PAX Subscriber”)
in relation to the subscription by the PAX Subscriber
of 8,750,000 preference shares of PAX of HK$1.00
each (the “PAX Preference Shares”) at a total
subscription price of US$10 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$78.1 million) (the “PAX
Subscription”). The PAX Preference Shares represent
25% of the then existing issued share capital of PAX
and 20% of the issued share capital of PAX as

4. RFHER—

tes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R MR

ZHBRARZ
20% B% #E

R-ZEZLFMAMNHE » ARAIEHZE
EWNBRRAEEREARRAA([BE]) X
AN A 7 B Digital Investment Limited ([ &
ERBAREERBEALRARERE
10,000,000 7t (1655 4978,100,000/% 7T)
H/L,\E%B 750 OOOHX‘!‘HXE{E1 OO/%TEZ{E?E
AR TE?EHXJ)J_LE B ([BER
BEHE|) BEELIRGEEEEREET
AE AN 2 25% - L\A&ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ?%%%lﬁ
BABEBEITRAZ20% - BERBEAT
AEBZEBIE=ZH BB+ ﬁ%%lﬁaw
:ggtiﬂﬂ_wL_ElmW

enlarged by the PAX Subscription. The PAX
Subscriber is a third party independent of the Group.
The PAX Subscription was completed on 23 May
2007.

As a result of the issuance of new shares of PAX,
the Group’s shareholding in the PAX Group has been
diluted to 80% and resulted in a gain of
HK$43,258,000 in 2007.

EREEEBRAFERITHER  A5E
m_7?tiﬁﬁﬁhE%EIW%&ﬁ
543,258,000 JTHY L 25 ©

As at 23 May 2007
R=-Z2EZ2LtHFHA=-+=H

HK$’000
FAT
Satisfied by: XA
Cash received 2R & 78,125
Analysis of net inflow of cash BRIEEE —KH B QA
and cash equivalents in HEzRE R
connection with the deemed ReFEYR
disposal of a subsidiary: NFBEZDTWT -
Cash consideration ReRE 78,125
Cash and cash equivalents received BRIELEWNBARI 2R S
on deemed disposal of a subsidiary EBEeEED -
Net inflow of cash and cash EARELHE —FRMBLARZ
equivalents in respect of ReERREEFEEY
deemed disposal of AR
a subsidiary 78,125
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35.BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 35. ¥ & H

According to a shareholders’ agreement entered into
by the Company, PAX and the PAX Subscriber on
23 May 2007, if the audited net profit after taxation
of the PAX and its subsidiary for the financial year
ending 31 December 2007, as stated in the audited
consolidated financial statements of PAX, is less than
US$7 million, the Company shall transfer an agreed
percentage of ordinary shares in PAX, up to 5% of
the issued share capital of PAX as enlarged by the
PAX Subscription, to the PAX Subscriber at a nominal
consideration of HK$1.

On 30 July 2007, the Group acquired an effective
95% equity interest of Hangzhou Baifu Electric
Technology Company Limited (formerly known as
Hangzhou Baifu Hualong Holding Company Limited)
and Pacific Sheen International Limited and their
respective subsidiaries (collectively the “Hualong
Group”). The acquired business contributed revenues
of HK$120.47 million and net profit of HK$1.12
million to the Group for the period from 31 July 2007
to 31 December 2007.

These amounts have been calculated using the
Group's accounting policies and by adjusting the
results of the subsidiaries to reflect the additional
depreciation and amortisation that would have been
charged assuming the fair value adjustments to
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
had applied, together with the consequential tax
effects.

Details of net assets acquired and goodwill are as
follows:

BEARAR  BEEHEEREAR-EE
+tFERA -+ =ZHIILZRERZE - W
MEEZREBECEAVERENE  BE
MHEMBRAREE —EE+HF+ A=+
—BUIUBRFEZEEBEZBRREATTE
7,000,000 7T * ARRZBARABREAE
EWMEEOLZEEEEREN (RZAHK
BERETHLEACEEEBEITRAZ
5%) RBARERBIABT -

RZZEZELFELA=+H x&£EEA
Hangzhou Baifu Electric Technology
Company Limited (AT Hangzhou Baifu
Hualong Holding Company Limited) & &
BRI BR AR REE B 2B A (5
[FEEEE]) BEERSRIRAEZ o FTEBAZ
KR _ETEEFLA=+—"HEZ2Z-_Z2Z+
FT_A=T—HBHEATREERTRKA
120,470,000/ 7T K& AL F1,120,000/8 7T °

ZEFRBCERAAEENSAHEEK - BB
AEMNBAREEARRRAREE X HH)
BIMTEMEEMIEL A E (RERAFER
BEEARDE BERRKEBMELEE
AREBRRBFE)

FIBAEEFERBEFBOT ¢

Purchase consideration of the entire EREEEHERD HK$’'000

interest in Hualong Group: BERE : FET
— Cash paid —BEfRe 176,346
— Direct costs relating to the acquisition -~ HBEWE s BEERA 7,800
— Fair value of shares issued (Note 24(e)) — BTN 2R FE (B it24(e) 92,250
Total purchase consideration BERERS 276,396
Fair value of net assets acquired BABEFEZRATE

— shown as below — R T X (169,867)
Goodwill (Note 17) e (Mat17) 106,529
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e R EE

35.BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 35. ¥ & 6t ()
(continued)
The goodwill is attributable to the workforce of the HEBARFWEXK BT -
acquired business.
The fair value of the consideration shares was based REBROZAFEDNER_ZTZTLF LA
on the published closing share price of HK$2.5 per =t+THAAMzZRHUTESR25F T °

share as at 30 July 2007.

The assets and liabilities as of 30 July 2007 arising HWEmEE s —STELFELA=1THE
from the acquisition are as follows: ERBEAT :
Acquiree's
carrying
Fair value amount
g N
AFE ZERHEE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeEED 14,457 14,457
Leasehold land and land use rights HE T R T A
(Note 16) (Kt 16) 17,448 10,806
Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) %% B k& (Mt 15) 76,709 70,708
Brand name (included in intangible mEEE (BEEEREEY)
assets) (Note 17) (M1 17) 4,120 -
Customer list (included in intangible XS (BREEREER)
assets) (Note 17) (Hiaz17) 4,120 -
Software (included in intangible Bt (EREERVEEF)
assets) (Note 17) (KHtat17) 20,004 434
Inventories = 47,247 47,247
Trade and other receivables JiE L BR 5% B L A FE U R IE 171,744 171,744
Trade and other payables JE A< BR 3k B2 E b JE 5 SR IB (124,951) (124,951)
Short term borrowings ySRREE N (31,930) (31,930)
Taxation payable JE AR5 18 (15,751) (15,751)
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 30) BRAET IR B A (A7 71 30) (13,350) -
Net assets BEFE 169,867 142,764
Goodwill B 106,529
276,396
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEE4 7 FH LA H -
Purchase consideration settled in cash ¥4 X T E KRB 176,346
Direct costs relating to the acquisition & B8 Ut B8 2 B & ik A 7,800
Cash and cash equivalents in W BB B B~ R ETS
subsidiaries acquired RekBEEEED (14,457)
169,689
Less: Cash received arising from the  Jil @ HEFERE E B 5%E S
disposal of 5% interest in the Frig B 2 3R &
Hualong Group (15,534)
Net cash outflow arising from the e B 2 [ & B 95% AR 1
acquisition of 95% equity interest FIEAX2Re ML FE
in the Hualong Group 154,155
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35.BUSINESS COMBINATIONS B[ EKEH@®
(continued)
Disposal of 5% interest in Hualong Group: HEEEEBELS%RER ¢
As part of the transaction in relation to the acquisition ERWNBERZEEEBARZMN IR -
of the Hualong Group, the Company disposed 5% RAARIMEEEBR CEFNRRLES
interest of New Concept, the immediate holding el (EREEE T BEEIZRAA]) 5%
company of the Hualong Group to the then @ REAARY15,032,5007T (HE
shareholders of the Hualong Group for a 215,534,000/ 70) °

consideration of RMB15,032,500 (equivalent to
HK$15,534,000).

As at 30 July 2007
R-ZEBEE+HF+HA=1+H

HK$’000

FAT

15,511

Minority interests VYRR ER 775

Goodwill attributable to minority interests 2> A% R fE 15 pg 2 14,759
Cash received from the then shareholders = Y 2 [& & @ & i Y

of the Hualong Group RRZRE 15,534
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS B.EAEIRS

As at 31 December 2007, the Group is controlled RZEZEEF+A=1T—8H ' ~&EH
by Rich Global Limited (incorporated in British Virgin 7B R & B 5 s AKX SZ Y Rich Global
Islands), which owns 33.92% of the Company’s Limited?%Z &l - 5% 22 A1¥E A AR 2 7]33.92% %
shares. The remaining 66.08% of the shares are o A T66.08%RMBARALTIEE - &
widely held. In the opinion of the Directors, the ERB ARARKBERARANEBRE
ultimate holding company of the Company is Hi Sun 2 BF B 51 M B SZ B9 Hi Sun Limited ©

Limited (incorporated in British Virgin Islands).

(a) The following transactions were carried (a) EHABEFETHRZOT :
out with the related parties:

2007 2006
—EELFE —FTETRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Rental fees paid to a related company TR THEQAFTNES
(Note (i) B (W) - 797

Acquisition of property from a related WHiEEERRME

company (Notes (i) and 14(a)) (Kt &£ (ii) J 14(a)) - 34,500

Note: Hia -

()  The subsidiaries, Beijing Hi Sun Advanced Business () HWEBEBRARILERSESEREERMEAERA
Solutions Information Technology Limited and Pax AR BB EMKENM ORI BRAFM
Technology (Shenzhen) Limited, paid rental fees to trRmBEERENEERMAER AR (H
Beijing Hi Sun Electric Power Information Technology RARAR—HREERIZRFHEFEZRAR
Limited, a fellow subsidiary company owned by a MEAR) XHHES -

Director and a substantial shareholder, of the
Company.

(i)  On 2 November 2006, the Company entered into (i RZZTEERF+—HAZH XARHEI
acquisition agreement with Beijing Hi Sun Electric AEBEARENEERMARARG L
Power Information Technology Limited in relation to W AR {E A R 34,500,000
the acquisition of property located at 1t 7 1 /& JE & (#734,500,000/%8 7T) WEE AL AL m T8
B Ak %6755 8R #5 A B 15-17#2 for a consideration of B R B K EE7TIRIRA K E 15171 2 Y
RMB34,500,000 (approximately equal to ¥ o

HK$34,500,000).
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

The following transactions were carried

out with the related parties: (continued)
Note: (continued)

The consideration of the acquisition of the property from
Beijing Hi Sun Electric Power Information Technology
Limited (as disclosed in note (iii)) was determined by
reference to the fair market value at the date of acquisition
as assessed by an independent valuer. Other transactions
were conducted in the normal course of business and
charged at terms mutually agreed or in accordance with
the terms of the underlying agreements, where appropriate.

Year end balances with related parties are
as follows:

.EAERRS @)

(a) HBERETHIZME :

(&)

Hrar o ()
AEREEESENEERMERIBMEA
Wz KB AR EE) h2E R A
Mz AFMISERTMRE - L hB LG EE
il R RSN BEEEBHET  LIAE
TIHEMGFRERIEE iR G (REA
B E) MATSL

(b) REAESFEBNFESLSHMOT .

2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHETT
Receivable from a related company JEW —KE R F FIE
Panorama Stock Limited PREEBERAR - 67
Receivable from a fellow subsidiary & — R [A Z B A & A
Beijing Hi Sun Electric Power ItRaBE s
Information Technology Ltd. BN EERMER AR 1,111 -
Payable to a fellow subsidiary &~ — = [A] Z Bt BB A B KB
Beijing Hi Sun Electric Power trREBEER
Information Technology Limited BENEERMER QA - 13,497
The balances with related parties were R o ERAEER  RERR
unsecured, interest fee and repayable on RERKMNE -
demand.
Key management compensation (c) XEEBEAEHE

During the years ended 31 December 2006 and
2007 key management compensation is
equivalent to the Directors’ emolument as
disclosed in Note 8(b).
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37.SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
(i)

Acquisition of 5% interest in New Concept
Services Limited

The Company currently owns 95% of the entire
issued share capital of New Concept. On 8 April
2008, the Company entered into an agreement
with Universal Star Group Ltd. (the “Vendor”),
pursuant to which the Company conditionally
agreed to purchase, and the Vendor agreed to
sell the 5 ordinary shares of nominal value
USD1.00 each in New Concept, representing
5% of the entire issued share capital of New
Concept, owned by the Vendor, for a cash
consideration of approximately HK$15.5 million
(the “Acquisition”).

The Acquisition constitutes a connected
transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules and is subject to reporting,
announcement and approval by the independent
shareholders at the special general meeting of
the Company to be convened and held to
consider and if thought appropriate, to approve
the Acquisition and the transaction
contemplated under the acquisition agreement
by the independent shareholders of the
Company (the “SGM”). Details of the Acquisition
and the SGM are disclosed in the
announcement of the Company of 10 April
2008.

7. #&EEHREE

(i)

Wt B8 37 Bl BR 75 B BR 2 B 5% &=
AARBEREANA 2D HITRA
5% - RZZEZENFWANA - AR
7] B2 Universal Star Group Ltd. ([ &
FDEIL W - Bl - NAEE KRS

RERBLRESRELEEFMES
2B FREE1.00% T 250 @
B AEF R 2 BEBITRAS% - RIEB
A8 & 4915,500,000/8 7T ([Ue BE =
| e

WREEERE LT RS 14AEERK
ARPIZEBERS - BETHBR 1A
ERRGARRBITZARBBRRE
ARE ([BREFRAEG]) LEART
B IR AE 2R TE - TR RS B
RELBIBRREE BN (MR RE
BEIMERBEHEIEE RS T HE
TZRS - Hﬂlﬁ%$lﬁ)§zﬁx$%ﬁlﬁiA
ZHBEARR _ZTENFNOATH
Zﬂﬁ?ﬁqﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ% °
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Summary Financial Information

MBERRE

A summary of the published consolidated results and of
the consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is

set as below:

B ARERMBRRLIZERBAEF N
MASBBERFEMBRERED 2
RAEEE BBEMELT

Year ended 31 December

BZ+-A=+-HL
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
“BBtF ZITTRFE —TTHF —TTMFE _—TIT=F
Continuing  Continuing ~ Continuing ~ Continuing ~ Continuing
operations  operations  operations  operations  Operations
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TET TET TER TET
Results %E
Profit/(Loss) attributable BasEAER
to equity holders & A/ (B8 184,276 133,600 62,304 (12,127) (3,454)
Assets and liabilities EEREE
Total assets BEE 1,490,745 847,110 313,741 240,721 163,676
Total liabilities FEN=E (389,885) (167,438) (186,307) (192,090) (102,918)
Capital and reserves ARAIEEFBA
attributable to the AR & 4
Company’s equity holders 1,100,860 679,672 127,434 48,631 60,758
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